AGENDA
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
26 FEBRUARY 2018

(a

DUBBO REGIONAL MEMBERSHIP: Councillors J Diffey, V Etheridge, D F—irant, D Gumley, A
COUNCIL Jones, S Lawrence, G Mohr, K Parker, J Ryan and B Shields.

The meeting is scheduled to commence at 5.30pm.

PRAYER:
O God, Grant that by the knowledge of thy will, all we may resolve shall work together for
good, we pray through Jesus Christ our Lord. Amen!

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY:

“I would like to acknowledge the Wiradjuri People who are the Traditional Custodians of the
Land. | would also like to pay respect to the Elders both past and present of the Wiradjuri
Nation and extend that respect to other Aboriginal peoples from other nations who are
present”.

Page
CCL18/12 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES (ID18/9) 8
Confirmation of the minutes of the proceedings of the Ordinary
Council meeting held on 18 December 2017, Extraordinary Council
meeting held on 19 January 2018, Extraordinary Council meeting
held on 31 January 2018 and Extraordinary Council meeting held
on 14 February 2018.
CCL18/13 LEAVE OF ABSENCE (ID18/10)
CCL18/14 PUBLIC FORUM (ID18/11)
MAYORAL MINUTES:
CCL18/15 SUPPORT FOR 'PROTECT THE PROTECTORS' CAMPAIGN (1D18/144) 45
The Council had before it the Mayoral Minute regarding Support
for 'Protect the Protectors' Campaign.
CCL18/16 PLAYMATES COTTAGE UPDATE (1D18/203) 47

The Council had before it the Mayoral Minute regarding Playmates
Cottage Update.
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CCL18/17

IMPROVING MOBILE PHONE COVERAGE THROUGHOUT THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA (1D18/213)

The Council had before it the Mayoral Minute regarding Improving
Mobile Phone Coverage Throughout the Local Government Area.

MATTERS CONSIDERED BY COMMITTEES:

CCL18/18

PDEC18/6

REPORT OF THE PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND ENVIRONMENT
COMMITTEE - MEETING 19 FEBRUARY 2018 (1D18/12)

The Council had before it the report of the Planning, Development
and Environment Committee meeting held 19 February 2018.

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION D2017-611 - THREE (3) LOT
SUBDIVISION (COMMUNITY TITLE)

PROPERTY: 7 RAWSON STREET, DUBBO

APPLICANT/OWNER: MR N & MRS J DENNIS

DATE LODGED: 24 NOVEMBER 2017 (ID18/170)

The Council had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from
the Planner regarding Development Application D2017-611 - Three
(3) Lot Subdivision (Community Title).

Councillor S Lawrence declared a pecuniary, significant interest in
the matter when it was before the Committee and left the room and
was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration of this
matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor S Lawrence
owns a neighbouring property.

Councillor G Mohr declared a non-pecuniary, significant interest in
the matter when it was before the Committee and left the room and
was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration of this
matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor G Mohr has
previously been a colleague of the complainant.

Councillor D Gumley declared a non-pecuniary, significant interest in
the matter when it was before the Committee and left the room and
was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration of this
matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor D Gumley
knows, through his employment, a party who holds an objection to
this item.
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PDEC18/7 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION D2017-620 - THREE (3) LOT
SUBDIVISION (STRATA TITLE)
PROPERTY: 1 POZIERES STREET, DUBBO
APPLICANT/OWNER: FAODAIL PTY LTD
DATE LODGED: 29 NOVEMBER 2017 (ID18/201)
The Council had before it the report dated 7 February 2018 from
the Planner regarding Development Application D2017-620 - Three
(3) Lot Subdivision (Strata Title).

PDEC18/8 MODIFIED DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION D2016-482 PART 2 -
EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRY (QUARRY)
PROPERTY: LOT 211 DP 1220433, 20L SHERATON ROAD, DUBBO
OWNER/APPLICANT: REGIONAL HARDROCK PTY LTD
LODGED: 26 SEPTEMBER 2017 (1D18/216)
The Council had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from
the Senior Planner regarding Modified Development Application
D2016-482 Part 2 - Extractive Industry (Quarry).

CCL18/19 REPORT OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE, COMMUNITY - MEETING 19
FEBRUARY 2018 (ID18/13) 58
The Council had before it the report of the Infrastructure,
Community and Recreation Committee meeting held 19 February
2018.

ICRC18/4 PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE OF PART FITZROY STREET ADJACENT

TO COUNCIL'S LOT 10 DP 258615 (ID18/241)

The Council had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from
the Manager Transport and Emergency regarding Proposed Road
Closure of Part Fitzroy Street adjacent to Council's Lot 10 DP
258615.

Councillor D Grant declared a pecuniary, significant interest in the
matter when it was before the Committee and left the room and
was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration of this
matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor D Grant has
business dealings with S and P Maroulis through his work with
Elders Insurance.
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ICRC18/7

ICRC18/10

CCL18/20

EDBC18/6

REQUEST FOR REVIEW OF WATER CHARGES - ASSESSMENT
1162677 (ID18/204)

The Council had before it the report dated 2 February 2018 from
the Director Infrastructure and Operations regarding Request for
Review of Water Charges - Assessment 1162677.

Councillor J Diffey declared a non-pecuniary, less than significant
interest in the matter when it was before the Committee and
remained in the room and was out of sight during the Committee’s
consideration of this matter. The reason for such interest is that Mr
and Mrs Day’s property is located in community plan that Councillor
J Diffey previously managed as a strata manager for Dubbo Strata
Management.

DUBBO FAMILY DAY CARE SCHEME-PROPOSED INCREASE IN FEES
AND THE PROPOSED INTRODUCTION OF A BUILDING LEASE
(ID18/129)

The Council had before it the report dated 22 January 2018 from
the Manager Social Services regarding Dubbo Family Day Care
Scheme-Proposed Increase in Fees and the Proposed Introduction
of a Building Lease.

Councillor J Diffey declared a pecuniary, significant interest in the
matter when it was before the Committee and left the room and
was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration of this
matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor J Diffey’s
daughter is cared for by Dubbo Family Day care.

REPORT OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND
CORPORATE COMMITTEE - MEETING 19 FEBRUARY 2018 (ID18/14)
The Council had before it the report of the Economic Development,
Business and Corporate Committee meeting held 19 February
2018.

INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 625 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
ACT - JANUARY 2018 (ID18/212)

The Council had before it the report dated 5 February 2018 from
the Director Corporate Services regarding Investments Under
Section 625 of the Local Government Act - January 2018.
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EDBC18/7

EDBC18/10

Councillor K Parker declared a non-pecuniary, less than significant
interest in the matter when it was before the Committee and left the
room and was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration of
this matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor K Parker is
the Manager of the Dubbo Branch of the Bank of Queensland, a
bank that Council has funds invested with.

INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 625 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
ACT - DECEMBER 2017 (ID18/211)

The Council had before it the report dated 5 February 2018 from
the Director Corporate Services regarding Investments Under
Section 625 of the Local Government Act - December 2017.

Councillor K Parker declared a non-pecuniary, less than significant
interest in the matter when it was before the Committee and left the
room and was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration of
this matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor K Parker is
the Manager of the Dubbo Branch of the Bank of Queensland, a
bank that Council has funds invested with.

REQUEST FOR REVIEW OF WATER CONSUMPTION AND NON-
RESIDENTIAL SEWER CHARGES ISSUED FOR 135-141 BRISBANE
STREET DUBBO (ID18/202)

The Council had before it the report dated 1 February 2018 from
the Revenue Accountant regarding Request for review of Water
Consumption and Non-Residential Sewer Charges issued for 135-
141 Brisbane Street Dubbo.

Councillor D Gumley declared a non-pecuniary, less than
significant interest in the matter when it was before the
Committee and remained in the room during the Committee’s
consideration of this matter. The reason for such interest is that
Dubbo Court House is a location where Councillor D Gumley
performs a significant part of his employment and that such
interest would not impair his decision making on the matter.

Councillor G Mohr declared a non-pecuniary, less than significant
interest in the matter when it was before the Committee and
remained in the room during the Committee’s consideration of this
matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor G Mohr is
employed by the Department of Justice, Dubbo Court House is one
of his work locations and that such interest would not impair his
decision making on the matter.
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CcCL18/21

AUD18/1

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE -
MEETING 19 FEBRUARY 2018 (1D18/257)

The Council had before it the report of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee meeting held 19 February 2018.

PRESENTATION OF COUNCIL'S 2016/2017 FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (1D18/240)

The Council had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from
the Manager Financial Operations regarding Presentation of
Council's 2016/2017 Financial Statements. The Council will be
addressed by the Audit Office of NSW, regarding this matter.

REPORTS FROM STAFF:

CCL18/22

CCL18/23

CCL18/24

CCL18/25

POWER OF ATTORNEY FOR THE GENERAL MANAGER (ID18/172)
The Council had before it the report dated 30 January 2018 from
the General Manager regarding Power of Attorney for the General
Manager.

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY TO THE GENERAL MANAGER
(1ID18/197)

The Council had before it the report dated 1 February 2018 from
the Manager Governance and Risk regarding Delegation of
Authority to the General Manager.

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY TO COUNCIL COMMITTEES
(1ID18/228)

The Council had before it the report dated 8 February 2018 from
the Manager Governance and Risk regarding Delegation of
Authority to Council Committees.

PROPOSED POLICY - INJURED COMPANION ANIMALS NOT IN
COUNCIL'S CARE/IMPOUND (ID18/229)

The Council had before it the report dated 19 February 2018 from
the Manager Environmental Control regarding Proposed Policy -
Injured Companion Animals not in Council's Care/Impound.
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CCL18/26

CCL18/27

CCL18/28

CCL18/29

CCL18/30

UPDATE ON ENQUIRY TO PURCHASE COUNCIL OWNED LAND 10L
MOGRIGUY ROAD BY AGRIBUSINESS ENTERPRISE (ID18/255)

The Council had before it the report dated 14 February 2018 from
the Manager Property Assets regarding Update on enquiry to
purchase Council owned land 10L Mogriguy Road by Agribusiness
enterprise.

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL REVIEW - SAFETY CAMERA NETWORK
IN DUBBO AND WELLINGTON (1D18/270)

The Council had before it the report dated 16 February 2018 from
the Manager Social Services regarding Dubbo Regional Council
review - Safety Camera Network in Dubbo and Wellington.

APPOINTMENT OF DUBBO STATE EMERGENCY SERVICE UNIT
LOCAL CONTROLLER (ID18/275)

The Council had before it the report dated 16 February 2018 from
the Director Infrastructure and Operations regarding Appointment
of Dubbo State Emergency Service Unit Local Controller.

NEIGHBOURHOOD SHOPPING STRIP REDEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS
(1ID18/276)

The Council had before it the report dated 19 February 2018 from
the Director Infrastructure and Operations regarding
Neighbourhood Shopping Strip Redevelopment Concepts.

COMMENTS AND MATTERS OF URGENCY (1D18/15)

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

265

269

272

276

Page 7



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
26 FEBRUARY 2018 CCL18/12

Confirmation of Minutes

DUBBO REGIONAL
COUNCIL

Confirmation of the minutes of the proceedings of the Ordinary Council meeting held on 18
December 2017, Extraordinary Council meeting held on 19 January 2018, Extraordinary
Council meeting held on 31 January 2018 and Extraordinary Council meeting held on 14
February 2018.

RECOMMENDATION

That the minutes of the proceedings of the Dubbo Regional Council at the Ordinary Council
meeting held on 18 December 2017 comprising pages 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18,
19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28 and29 of the series, Extraordinary Council meeting held
on 19 January 2018 comprising pages 35, 36 and 37 of the series, Extraordinary Council
meeting held on 31 January 2018 comprising pages 38 and 39 of the series and
Extraordinary Council meeting held on 14 February 2018 comprising pages 42, 43, 44 and 45
of the series be taken as read, confirmed as correct minutes and signed by the Mayor and
the General Manager.

Appendices:
10  Ordinary Council - Minutes - 18 December 2017
2]  Committee of the Whole - Minutes - 18 December 2017
30  Ordinary Council - Minutes - 19 January 2018
4Ll  Ordinary Council - Minutes - 31 January 2018
51  Committee of the Whole - Minutes - 31 January 2018
6]  Ordinary Council - Minutes - 14 February 2018
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H REPORT
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
18 DECEMBER 2017

DUBBO REGIONAL
COUNCIL

PRESENT: Councillors J Diffey, V Etheridge, D Grant, D Gumley, A Jones, S Lawrence, G Mohr,
K Parker, J Ryan and B Shields.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

The General Manager, the Director Corporate Services (M Crisante), the Manager
Governance and Risk (S Wade), the Administrative Officer Governance, the Director Economic
Development and Business, the Communications Coordinator, the Director Infrastructure and
Operations, the Manager Infrastructure Delivery, the Manager Transport and Emergency, the
Manager Water Supply and Sewerage, the Manager Fleet Services, the Director Planning and
Environment, the Manager Building and Development Services, the Statutory Planning
Services Team Leader, the Manager Strategic Planning Services, the Strategic Planning
Supervisor and the Director Community and Recreation.

Councillor B Shields assumed chairmanship of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 5.32pm with a prayer for Divine Guidance to
the Council in its deliberations and activities. The acknowledgement of country was also read
by Councillor B Shields.

CCL17/179 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES (ID17/2203)
Confirmation of the minutes of the proceedings of the Ordinary Council meeting held on 27
November 2017.

Moved by Councillor S Lawrence and seconded by Councillor G Mohr
MOTION

That the minutes of the proceedings of the Dubbo Regional Council at the Ordinary Council
meeting held on 27 November 2017 comprising pages 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18,
19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29 and 30 of the series be taken as read, confirmed as
correct minutes and signed by the Mayor and the General Manager.

CARRIED

CCL17/180 LEAVE OF ABSENCE (ID17/2204)
There were no requests for leave of absence recorded.
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CCL17/181 PUBLIC FORUM (ID17/2205)
The Council reports having met with the following person during Public Forum:

. Mr Neil Webster regarding CCL17/197 - Dubbo Regional Sports Council Consultation on
the Victoria Park Redevelopment proposal.

. Mr Adam Wells regarding CCL17/197 - Dubbo Regional Sports Council Consultation on
the Victoria Park Redevelopment proposal.

o Ms Barbara Sutherland regarding CCL17/194 - CCL17/194 Opportunities to Improve the
Street Tree Canopy — Update.

o Mr Glen Shepherd - CCL17/197 - Dubbo Regional Sports Council Consultation on the
Victoria Park Redevelopment proposal.

o Mr Wes Maas, regarding CCL17/189 - Planning Proposal (R16-5) - Southlakes Estate,
Dubbo.

MAYORAL MINUTES:

CCL17/182 INTERNAL OMBUDSMAN FOR DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL (ID17/2226)

The Council had before it the Mayoral Minute regarding Internal Ombudsman for Dubbo
Regional Council.

Moved by Councillor B Shields

MOTION

That Council add the role of Internal Ombudsman to the current staff establishment and
provide funding for the position through adapting the current organisation structure.

CARRIED

CCL17/183  WEEKLY MIXED WASTE COLLECTION (ID17/2228)
The Council had before it the Mayoral Minute regarding Weekly Mixed Waste Collection.

Moved by Councillor B Shields
MOTION

That the Council show support for this initiative when it is considered later tonight.
CARRIED
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MATTERS CONSIDERED BY COMMITTEES:

CCL17/184 REPORT OF THE PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE
- MEETING 11 DECEMBER 2017 (ID17/2206)

The Council had before it the report of the Planning, Development and Environment

Committee meeting held 11 December 2017.

Moved by Councillor S Lawrence and seconded by Councillor D Gumley
MOTION

That the report of the Planning, Development and Environment Committee meeting held
on 11 December 2017, be adopted, save and except clause PDEC17/14 with such matter
being dealt with separately.

CARRIED

PDEC17/14 PLANNING PROPOSAL - (R16-3) - AMENDMENT TO DUBBO LEP 2011
PROPERTY: 4L CAMP ROAD, DUBBO
APPLICANT: DOHERTY SMITH AND ASSOCIATES
OWNER: MRS L K BENDER (ID17/2083)
The Council had before it the report dated 5 December 2017 from the Manager Strategic
Planning Services regarding Planning Proposal - (R16-3) - Amendment to Dubbo LEP 2011.

Moved by Councillor S Lawrence and seconded by Councillor G Mohr
MOTION

1. That Council endorse the amended Planning Proposal included as Appendix 2 and the
further information included as Appendix 3 to the report of the Manager Strategic
Planning Services dated 5 December 2017 for the following amendments to the
Dubbo Local Environmental Plan 2011:

. That the RU6 Transition zone be inserted into the Dubbo Local Environmental
Plan 2011, including the Land Use Table as included in this report;

. That part of Lot 8 DP 1063425, 4L Camp Road, Dubbo be rezoned from SP3
Tourist to RU6 Transition;

° That part of Lot 8 DP 1063425, 4L Camp Road, Dubbo be rezoned from SP3
Tourist to E3 Environmental Management;

° That part of Lot 8 DP 1063425, 4L Camp Road, proposed to be zoned RU6
Transition be provided with a minimum allotment size for subdivision of two (2)
hectares; and

° That part of Lot 8 DP 1063425, 4L Camp Road, Dubbo proposed to be zoned E3
Environmental Management be provided with a minimum allotment size for
subdivision of 100 hectares.

2. That Council support a minimum 28 day public exhibition period for the Planning
Proposal.
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3. That Council not use its delegation under Section 59 of the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act, 1979 to draft the amendment to the Dubbo Local Environmental
Plan 2011 as the State Government may issue a conditional Gateway Determination
in respect of the Planning Proposal.

4. That following the completion of the public exhibition period, a further report be
provided to Council detailing the results of the public exhibition and for further
consideration of the Planning Proposal.

CARRIED

In accordance with s375A(2) of the Local Government Act 1993, a division was duly called, the
following votes on the motion were recorded:

FOR AGAINST
Councillor Diffey

Councillor Etheridge

Councillor Grant

Councillor Gumley

Councillor Jones

Councillor Lawrence

Councillor Mohr

Councillor Parker

Councillor Shields

Total (9) Total (0)

Ms Melissa Watkins, Director Planning and Environment declared a non-pecuniary, significant
interest in the matter now before the Council and left the room and was out of sight during
the Council’s consideration of this matter. The reason for such interest is that Ms Watkins
engaged the husband of the owner of the land (Matt Bender) to undertake demolition of her
property 276 Brisbane Street, Dubbo (in July 2017). She has had no other dealings with Mr
Bender or the subject Planning Proposal since this time.

Councillor J Ryan declared a non-pecuniary, significant interest in the matter now before the
Council and left the room and was out of sight during the Council’s consideration of this
matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor J Ryan owns a 50 acre block of land on
Camp Road.
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CCL17/185 REPORT OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE, COMMUNITY AND RECREATION
COMMITTEE - MEETING 11 DECEMBER 2017 (ID17/2207)

The Council had before it the report of the Infrastructure, Community and Recreation

Committee meeting held 11 December 2017.

Moved by Councillor S Lawrence and seconded by Councillor A Jones
MOTION

That the report of the Infrastructure, Community and Recreation Committee meeting held
on 11 December 2017, be adopted, save and except clause ICRC17/34 with such matter
being dealt with separately.

CARRIED

ICRC17/34 DUBBO FAMILY DAY CARE SCHEME-PROPOSED INCREASE IN FEES AND THE
PROPOSED INTRODUCTION OF A FEE TO LEASE THE LEARNING
ENVIRONMENT UNIT IN THE COLLEEN MONTGOMERY COTTAGE VICTORIA
PARK DUBBO (ID17/2155)

The Council had before it the report dated 30 November 2017 from the Manager Social

Services regarding Dubbo Family Day Care Scheme-proposed increase in fees and the

proposed introduction of a fee to lease the learning environment unit in the Colleen

Montgomery Cottage Victoria Park Dubbo.

Moved by Councillor S Lawrence and seconded by Councillor D Grant
MOTION

1. That the information contained within the report of the Manager Social Services
dated 30 November 2017 be noted.

2. That the Dubbo Family Day Care Scheme increase the Parent Administration Levy
from the current figure of $1.00/hour to $1.75/hour by 1 July 2019. Such increase will
be undertaken in .25 cents/hour blocks from 1 March 2018 to 1 July 2019 as detailed
in Appendix 1 attached to this report.

3. That the proposed charges be placed on public exhibition for a period of 28 days and a
report detailing the outcome of public exhibition be brought to the February 2018
Ordinary meeting of Council.

4. That the Dubbo Family Day Care Scheme lease the learning environment facilities
located within the Coordination Unit on an as needs basis at a cost of $20 per session
from 1 February 2018. Educational resources located within the facility to be leased at
$10 per session from 1 February 2018 as detailed in Appendix 1 of this report.

5. That the necessary action be taken to publicise the proposed increase in fees and the
proposed fee to lease the learning environment facilities located within the facility as
an element of the public exhibition process.

6. That the increase in fees and the introduction of new fees are monitored so that the
Dubbo Family Day Care Scheme remains a viable cost effective option for child care in
the community.

CARRIED
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Councillor J Diffey declared a pecuniary, less than significant interest in the matter now before
the Council and left the room and was out of sight during the Council’s consideration of this
matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor J Diffey’s daughter is cared for by Dubbo
Family Day care.

CCL17/186 REPORT OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE - MEETING 11 DECEMBER 2017 (ID17/2208)

The Council had before it the report of the Economic Development, Business and Corporate

Committee meeting held 11 December 2017.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor J Diffey
MOTION

That the report of the Economic Development, Business and Corporate Committee meeting
held on 11 December 2017, be adopted, save and except clauses EDBC17/22, EDBC17/23
and EDBC17/24 with such matters being dealt with separately.

CARRIED

EDBC17/22 INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 625 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT
(ID17/2169)

The Council had before it the report dated 4 December 2017 from the Director Corporate

Services regarding Investments Under Section 625 of the Local Government Act.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor A Jones
MOTION
That the information provided within the report of the Director Corporate Services, dated 4
December 2017 be noted.

CARRIED
Councillor K Parker declared a pecuniary, significant interest in the matter now before the
Council and left the room and was out of sight during the Council’s consideration of this

matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor K Parker is the Manager of the Dubbo
Branch of the Bank of Queensland, a bank that Council has funds invested with.
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EDBC17/23 INVESTMENT POLICY AND STRATEGY REVIEW (1D17/2159)
The Council had before it the report dated 4 December 2017 from the Manager Financial
Operations regarding Investment Policy and Strategy Review.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor D Gumley
MOTION

1. That the draft Investment Policy December 2017 and the Draft Investment Strategy
December 2017 as Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 attached to this report of the Manager
Financial Operations dated 4 December 2017 be adopted.

2. That Council’s Investment Policy and Investment Strategy be again reviewed and
submitted to Council for determination via Council’s Economic Development,
Business and Corporate Committee in June 2018.

CARRIED

Councillor K Parker declared a pecuniary, significant interest in the matter now before the
Council and left the room and was out of sight during the Council’s consideration of this
matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor K Parker is the Manager of the Dubbo
Branch of the Bank of Queensland, a bank that Council has funds invested with.

EDBC17/24 RESULTS OF EXPRESSION OF INTEREST - COUNCIL'S COMMITTEES/WORKING
PARTIES/GROUPS (ID17/2164)

The Council had before it the report dated 4 December 2017 from the Administration Officer

- Governance regarding Results of Expression of Interest - Council's Committees/Working

Parties/Groups.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor A Jones

MOTION
1. That the community representatives for the following Committees, Working Parties
and Other Groups be as follows:

Wellington Town Assembly
Five (5) community representatives, noting that these representatives are to be residents of
the township of Wellington, including the nearby large lot residential estates and Nanima
village being:

. Danielle Griffiths

. Adam Peckham

. Matthew Pike

. Adam Ryan

° Leanne Stanley

Dubbo Showground Advisory Committee

Two (2) representatives of the Dubbo community being:
. Robert Shanks
o Debra Bell
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Dubbo Community Awards and Events Committee
Five (5) Dubbo Community Representatives being:
. Cynthia Foley
° Ronda Bramble
° William Greenwood
. Geoff Mann
. Geraldine McMahon

Wellington Community Awards and Events Committee
Five (5) Wellington Community Representatives being:
° Peter Sheridan
° Molly Griggs
° Marcus Hanney
° Mark Griggs
. Adam Peckham

Sister Cities Advisory Committee
Six (6) Community Representatives

. Phil Priest

. Bridget Mann

. Cynthia Foley

. Christine Bray

. Shilbli Chowdury

. Karen Hyland

Rural Consultative Working Party

One (1) Resident Representative and One (1) Alternate Resident Representative from
Ballimore, Wongarbon, Toongi, Rawsonville, Eumungerie, Brocklehurst, Geurie, Elong
Elong, Mumbil, Stuart Town, Euchareena, North Yeoval plus two (2) Community
Representatives to represent rural residents being:

Ballimore Kate Charlton
Ballimore (alternate) John O’Leary
Stuart Town Marcus Hanney
Elong Elong Louise Hennessy
Wongarbon Alan Comerford
Rawsonville Lauraine Rose
Elong Elong Jennifer Tunks
Rural Representative Nigel Payne

Cultural Facilities Committee

Two (2) Community Representatives
° Dr J Benton
° Vicki Canalese
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2. That a further expression of interest be called to fill the outstanding vacancies of
these committees with a further report being presented to Council in due course.

CARRIED

CCL17/187 REPORT OF THE AIRPORT/AIRSTRIP WORKING PARTY - MEETING 11
DECEMBER 2017 (ID17/2202)

The Council had before it the report of the Airport/Airstrip Working Party meeting held 11

December 2017.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor D Gumley

MOTION

That the report of the Airport/Airstrip Working Party meeting held on 11 December 2017,

be adopted, save and except clause AWP17/8 with such matter being dealt with separately.
CARRIED

AWP17/8 DUBBO CITY REGIONAL AIRPORT CAFE LICENCE RECOMMENDATION

(1D17/2187)

The Council had before it the report dated 7 December 2017 from the Manager Airport

Operations regarding Dubbo City Regional Airport Cafe Licence Recommendation.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor D Gumley

MOTION

That the matter be deferred to Committee of the Whole.
CARRIED
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CCL17/188 REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - MEETING 18
DECEMBER 2017 (ID17/2209)

The Council had before it the report dated 11 December 2017 from the Administration Officer

- Governance regarding Report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee - meeting 18

December 2017.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION

1. That it be noted that the meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
scheduled for 18 December 2017 did not proceed due to the lack of a quorum,
further noting that the Mr J Walkom (Independent Member), Mr A Fletcher
(Independent Member), Mr S Bassett (Community Representative), Mr J Shanks (Luka
Group), the General Manager, the Director Corporate Services (M Crisante), the
Manager Financial Operations, the Director Economic Development and Business, the
Manager Business Services — Economic Development and Business, the Statutory
Reporting Accountant, the Workplace Safety Advisor and Manager Visitor Experiences
and Services were in attendance for the meeting.

2.  That the items listed on the agenda for the meeting schedule 18 December 2017 be
deferred to the next meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee, noting
that this date is yet to be determined.

CARRIED

REPORTS FROM STAFF:

CCL17/189 PLANNING PROPOSAL (R16-5) - SOUTHLAKES ESTATE, DUBBO (ID17/2227)
The Council had before it the report dated 13 December 2017 from the Manager Strategic
Planning Services regarding Planning Proposal (R16-5) - Southlakes Estate, Dubbo.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor S Lawrence
MOTION

1. That the Planning Proposal, as exhibited, to undertake the following amendments to
the Dubbo Local Environmental Plan 2011 be adopted by Council:

. That part of the subject land be rezoned from R2 Low Density Residential to R1
General Residential, B1 Neighbour Centre and the existing RE1 Public Recreation
zone be reconfigured;

o That minimum lot sizes be changed from existing 600 m? and 4000 m? to a range
of no minimum lot sizes, 450 m?, 600 m?, 800 m? and 2000 m?;

. That land situated to the south of the indicative location of the Southern
Distributor be zoned RU2 Rural Landscape;

° That the area of land proposed to be zoned B1 Neighbourhood Centre be subject
to a suitable provision in the Dubbo Local Environmental Plan 2011 that limits the
total retail floor space of any centre to 5,000 m?; and
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° That the additional use of Recreational Facility (Indoor) be permitted on the
subject area of the land proposed to be zoned B1 Neighbourhood Centre under
the provisions of the Dubbo Local Environmental Plan 2011.

2.  That Council request the Department of Planning and Environment to prepare the draft
amendment to the Dubbo Local Environmental Plan 2011 and provide Council with an
Opinion that the Plan be made.

3.  That following receipt of an Opinion from the Department that the Plan be made, that
the General Manager request gazettal of the Plan.

4.  That those who made a submission be thanked and advised of Council’s determination

in this matter.

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor A Jones

AMENDMENT

That the matter be deferred to the Ordinary Council meeting in February 2018.

The amendment on being put to the meeting was carried. CARRIED

The amendment then became the motion and on being put to the meeting was carried.
CARRIED

In accordance with s375A(2) of the Local Government Act 1993, a division was duly called, the
following votes on the motion were recorded:

FOR AGAINST

Councillor Etheridge Councillor Diffey
Councillor Gumley Councillor Grant
Councillor Jones Councillor Lawrence
Councillor Mohr Councillor Parker

Councillor Ryan
Councillor Shields
Total (6) Total (4)
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Councillor A Jones assumed chairmanship of the meeting for consideration of this matter.

CCL17/190 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION D17-415 - REGISTERED CLUB (ALTERATIONS
AND ADDITIONS)
PROPERTY: 82 WHYLANDRA STREET, DUBBO
APPLICANT: CLUB DUBBO
OWNER: WEST DUBBO BOWLING CLUB LTD (1D17/2199)
The Council had before it the report dated 13 December 2017 from the Senior Strategic
Planner regarding Development Application D17-415 - Registered Club (Alterations and
Additions).

Moved by Councillor J Ryan and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION

1. That the report by the Senior Strategic Planner dated 14 November 2017 be noted.
2. That the matter be deferred until such time as Council engages an independent

Acoustic Consultant for the purposes of undertaking an additional Acoustic Report.
CARRIED

In accordance with s375A(2) of the Local Government Act 1993, a division was duly called, the
following votes on the motion were recorded:

FOR AGAINST
Councillor Diffey

Councillor Etheridge

Councillor Grant

Councillor Gumley

Councillor Jones

Councillor Lawrence

Councillor Mohr

Councillor Parker

Councillor Ryan

Total (9) Total (0)

Councillor B Shields declared a non-pecuniary, significant interest in the matter now before
the Committee and left the room and was out of sight during Committee’s consideration. The
reason for such interest is that Councillor B Shields is a former employee of Club Dubbo and

was employed by Club Dubbo in the past 12 months.

Councillor B Shields resumed chairmanship of the meeting.
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CCL17/191

ADDENDUM TO PDEC17/9 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION D2017-462 - TWO (2)
LOT SUBDIVISION, MULTI DWELLING HOUSING AND FOUR (4) LOT STRATA
SUBDIVISION

PROPERTY: 197 WINGEWARRA STREET, DUBBO

APPLICANT: MR R STEVENSON

OWNER: RACEBAIL PTY LTD (ID17/2213)

The Council had before it the report dated 12 December 2017 from the Statutory Planning
Services Team Leader regarding Addendum to PDEC17/9 Development Application D2017-
462 - Two (2) Lot Subdivision, Multi Dwelling Housing and Four (4) Lot Strata Subdivision.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor J Diffey

MOTION

1.  That the information included in the report of the Statutory Planning Services Team
Leader dated 12 December 2017 be noted.

2.  That Development Application D2017-462 for a two (2) lot subdivision, multi dwelling
housing (four (4) terrace dwellings) and four (4) lot strata subdivision at Lot 1 Sec 40 DP
758361, 197 Wingewarra Street, Dubbo, be refused for the following reasons:

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

g)

The proposed development does not represent the orderly development of land.
(Section 5(a) Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979);

The proposed strata subdivision fails to meet the minimum lot size requirements
as stated in Dubbo Local Environmental Plan 2011, Clause 4.1. The request to
vary the development standard in Clause 4.6 cannot be supported due to the
proposal’s failure against subclauses (3) and (4) and a number of requirements in
Dubbo Development Control Plan 2013, Chapter 2.1 Residential Development
and Subdivision. (Section 79C(1)(a)(i) Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act, 1979);

The subject development requires an exemption to the minimum lot size
standard in accordance with Clause 4.6 (4) of the Dubbo Local Environmental
Plan. The subject application is contrary to Clause 4.6 on the basis that Council is
not satisfied the proposal meets the requirements of Clause 4.6. (Section
79C(1)(a)(i) Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979);

The proposed driveways of terraces 1 and 2 are located within three (3) metres of
the existing power pole, contrary to the requirements of Essential Energy.
(Section 79C(1)(a)(i) Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979);
Proposed Lot 12 (being 528 m? in area) is below the minimum lot size of 700 m?
as required for multi dwelling housing development, in accordance with Dubbo
Development Control Plan 2013. (Section 79C(1)(a)(iii) Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act, 1979);

The private open space areas proposed for the four (4) terrace dwellings fail to
achieve the minimum required hours of direct sunlight in accordance with Dubbo
Development Control Plan 2013. (Section 79C(1)(a)(iii) Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act, 1979);

The private open space areas of the existing dwelling, together with terraces 2
and 3 fail to meet the minimum area requirements specified in the Dubbo
Development Control Plan 2013. (Section 79C(1)(a)(iii) Environmental Planning
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h)

j)

k)

and Assessment Act, 1979);

The vehicle access arrangements for the four (4) terrace dwellings does not
permit vehicles to enter and leave in a forward direction, nor is there any
provision for the required visitor car parking space onsite, as required in Dubbo
Development Control Plan 2013. (Section 79C(1)(a)(iii) Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act, 1979);

The proposed four (4) terrace dwellings’ driveways to Fitzroy Street are located
such that they are deemed dangerous to the road network, the travelling public
and the future occupants of the terraces, and in contravention of Dubbo
Development Control Plan 2013 (Section 79C(1)(a)(iii) Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act, 1979);

The existing dwelling’s proposed driveway to Wingewarra Street is located such
that it is deemed dangerous to the road network, the travelling public and the
adjoining occupant at 199 Wingewarra Street, as required in Dubbo Development
Control Plan 2013 (Section 79C(1)(a)(iii) Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act, 1979);

The proposed development (Stages 2 and 3) is deemed unsuitable for the subject
site based on the areas of non-compliance with the Development Control Plan
identified as it constitutes an over-development of the site. (Section 79C(1)(c)
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979); and

The proposed development is not deemed to be in the public interest, given the
numerous non-compliances of the proposal together with the potential
detrimental impacts on the road network and the property to the south (184
Fitzroy Street). (Section 79C(1)(e) Environmental Planning and Assessment Act,
1979).

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor J Diffey

AMENDMENT

That the matter be deferred to allow the applicant to provide further information.

The amendment on being put to the meeting was carried. CARRIED

The amendment then became the motion and on being put to the meeting was carried.

CARRIED
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In accordance with s375A(2) of the Local Government Act 1993, a division was duly called, the
following votes on the motion were recorded:

FOR AGAINST
Councillor Diffey

Councillor Etheridge

Councillor Gumley

Councillor Jones

Councillor Lawrence

Councillor Mohr

Councillor Parker

Councillor Ryan

Councillor Shields

Total (9) Total (0)

Councillor D Grant declared a pecuniary, significant interest in the matter now before the
Council and left the room and was out of sight during the Council’s consideration of this
matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor D Grant’s employer has business
dealings with the applicant and owner.

CCL17/192 DRAFT POLICY RELATING TO WATER CONNECTION, BACKFLOW PREVENTION
AND PRICING POLICY - PUBLIC EXHIBITION (ID17/2216)

The Council had before it the report dated 12 December 2017 from the Director

Infrastructure and Operations regarding Draft Policy Relating to Water Connection, Backflow

Prevention and Pricing Policy - Public Exhibition.

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor D Grant
MOTION

1. That the information contained within the report of the Director Infrastructure and
Operations dated 12 December 2017 be noted.

2. That the Water Connection, Backflow Prevention and Pricing Policy attached to the
report of the Director Infrastructure and Operations dated 12 December 2017, as
Appendix 1, be adopted.

3. That the people who made submissions be advised of the outcome of Council’s
considerations and thanked for their submission.

CARRIED
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CCL17/193 APPOINTMENT OF DUBBO STATE EMERGENCY SERVICE UNIT LOCAL
CONTROLLER (1D17/2219)

The Council had before it the report dated 12 December 2017 from the Director

Infrastructure and Operations regarding Appointment of Dubbo State Emergency Service Unit

Local Controller.

Moved by Councillor D Grant and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION

That pursuant to Section 17 of the State Emergency Service Act 1989, Council endorse the
appointment of Ms Fiona Douglas to the position of Local Controller, Dubbo SES Unit for
the ensuing two (2) years.

CARRIED

CCL17/194 OPPORTUNITIES TO IMPROVE THE STREET TREE CANOPY - UPDATE
(ID17/2193)

The Council had before it the report dated 9 December 2017 from the Director Community

and Recreation regarding Opportunities to Improve the Street Tree Canopy - Update.

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION

1. That Council form a Committee to review proposed removal and/or replacement of
trees required to complete infrastructure projects comprising the Mayor, interested
Councillors, the General Manager, the Director Community and Recreation or his
nominee, the Director Infrastructure and Operations or his nominee, the Director
Planning and Environment or her nominee, and four (4) community representatives.

2.  That after a publicly advertised process the community representative membership of
the Dubbo Regional Council Street Tree Committee be considered at the February
2018 Ordinary Meeting of Council.

3. That a draft Terms of Reference for the Dubbo Regional Council Street Tree
Committee be put to the February 2018 Infrastructure, Community and Recreation
Committee meeting for consideration.

4. That the Committee undertake a review of Council's strategic master plan for the
City's tree scape for the consideration of Council following a community consultation
process.

5.  That the Director Community and Recreation be requested to develop a draft Council
Policy for Urban Street Tree Removal for the review of the Committee and
consideration of Council following a community consultation process.

6. That all activities relevant to the Urban Street Tree Removal Policy be reported to the
Committee and Council on a quarterly basis.

7. That the proposed removal of and/or replacement of trees required as part of
Council's infrastructure projects, apart from any projects which are well advanced and
subject to contractual obligations, (being the Boundary Road Extension project, the
Bultje Street - Dubbo CBD Heat Island Amelioration project and the Cobra/Fitzroy
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Street Signalisation Project and Erskine Street, west of Darling Street) be postponed
until a community committee has been established to review such proposed tree
removal and/or replacement with recommendations to Council's Infrastructure,
Community and Recreation Committee.

CARRIED

CCL17/195 BODANGORA WIND FARM COMMUNITY BENEFIT FUND ROUND 1
(ID17/2170)

The Council had before it the report dated 5 December 2017 from the Director Community

and Recreation regarding Bodangora Wind Farm Community Benefit Fund Round 1.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge

MOTION

1. That the information contained within the report of the Director Community and
Recreation dated 5 December 2017 be noted.

2. That the following projects be allocated funding from the Bodangora Wind Farm
Community Benefit Fund:

) Wellington Touch Association $2,621.72
. Wellington Information and Neighbourhood Services Inc $10,000

° St John Ambulance - Wellington Division $9,200

) Wellington Senior Citizens Club Inc $4,165.89
. Wellington Historical Society Inc $3,000

. Mt Arthur Reserve Trust $8,539

. Wellington Connect Inc T/a Wellington Men's Shed $6,773.39
) Wellington District Cricket Association $5,700

3. That all applicants be advised of the outcomes of their funding application and
unsuccessful applicants be advised as to other opportunities to obtain funding.

4. That Round 2 of the Bodangora Community Benefit Fund call for submissions in July
2018 with the available pool being $25,000 and the upper limit of grant applications
being $5,000.

CARRIED

Councillor D Grant declared a non-pecuniary, significant interest in the matter now before the
Council and left the room and was out of sight during the Council’s consideration of this
matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor D Grant is the current treasurer of the
Mt Arthur Trust Committee who are proposed to receive part of the monies being dispersed.
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CCL17/196 CONTAINER DEPOSIT SCHEME (CDS): REVERSE VENDING MACHINE LOCATION
ON COUNCIL LAND. (ID17/2194)

The Council had before it the report dated 9 December 2017 from the Director Community

and Recreation regarding Container Deposit Scheme (CDS): Reverse Vending Machine

Location on Council land.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor J Diffey
MOTION

1. That the information contained within the report of the Director Community and
Recreation dated 9 December 2017 be noted.

2.  That the location of the first reverse vending machine in Dubbo adjacent to the skate
park/Men’s Shed area within Victoria Park be noted.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor K Parker
AMENDMENT

1. That the information contained within the report of the Director Community and
Recreation dated 9 December 2017 be noted.

2.  That the location of the first reverse vending machine in Dubbo adjacent to the skate
park/Men’s Shed area within Victoria Park be noted.

3.  That Council obtain a report from the State Government on the review of the success
of the location of the container within six months of its installation.

The amendment on being put to the meeting was carried. CARRIED

The amendment then became the motion and on being put to the meeting was carried.
CARRIED
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CCL17/197 DUBBO REGIONAL SPORTS COUNCIL CONSULTATION ON THE VICTORIA PARK

REDEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL (1D17/2215)

The Council had before it the report dated 12 December 2017 from the Director Community
and Recreation regarding Dubbo Regional Sports Council consultation on the Victoria Park
Redevelopment Proposal.

Moved by Councillor V Etheridge and seconded by Councillor G Mohr

MOTION

That the report submitted by the Dubbo Regional Sports Council titled “Victoria Park
No.1 Redevelopment and Cycle Track relocation to CSU Regional Sports Hub site”, as
attached as Appendix 1 to this report be noted.

That Council consider the recommendation of the Dubbo Regional Sports Council in
regards to determining the way forward for the Victoria Park Redevelopment grant
funded project at the December 2017 Ordinary Meeting of Council.

Moved by Councillor V Etheridge and seconded by Councillor G Mohr

AMENDMENT
1. That the history of all sporting stakeholders at the Victoria Park Ovals precinct is
acknowledged.
2.  That Council proceed with the Stronger Communities grant funded project that is the
Victoria Park redevelopment.
3.  That a Cycling Facility Working Party be established that consists of the following
membership
o Mayor.
° Interested Councillors.
° Director Community and Recreation.
° Manager Recreation and Open Space.
° President Dubbo Cycle Club.
° Vice President Dubbo Cycle Club.
° Four members of the Dubbo Cycle Club Redevelopment Sub-committee.
° Representative from Cycling NSW.
4. That the Cycling Facility Working Party provide advice and assistance to Council on
the following matters:
a. Anoverall Master Plan for a new cycling facility to be developed in the short
term
b.  The priorities for expenditure on infrastructure at the new facility funded by the
$3.9 million Stronger Communities Grant in order that Council can meet the
grant expenditure timelines.
c. Next phases of development and associated infrastructure at the cycling facility
as defined by the Master Plan that should be targeted for funding.
d. How the new facility can recognise the long and successful history of cycling in
Dubbo.
5. That the Victoria Park Redevelopment Advisory Committee membership be altered to

recognise the formation of the Cycling Facility Working Party. The membership shall
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consist of:

. Mayor.

° Two (2) Councillors.

° General Manager.

° Director Community and Recreation.

° Manager Open Space and Recreation.

. Sporting Assets Coordinator.

. Recreation Coordinator.

° President of the Dubbo Regional Sports Council.

° Representative of Dubbo District Cricket Association.
. Representative of Dubbo Rugby Union.

. Representative of Dubbo Junior Rugby Union.

° Representative of Cricket NSW.

° Representative of Westside Rugby League Football Club.
. Representative of Dubbo Cycle Club.

The amendment on being put to the meeting was carried. CARRIED

The amendment then became the motion and on being put to the meeting was carried.
CARRIED

CCL17/198 COMMENTS AND MATTERS OF URGENCY (ID17/2210)

There were no matters recorded under this clause.

At this junction it was moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Councillor S Lawrence
that the Council resolves into the Committee of the Whole Council, the time being 7.08pm.
The meeting resumed at 7.33pm.

CCL17/199 COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (ID17/2211)

The Director Corporate Services read to the meeting of the Report of Committee of the
Whole held on 18 December 2017.

Moved by Councillor V Etheridge and seconded by Councillor G Mohr

MOTION

That the report of the meeting of the Committee of the Whole held on 18 December 2017
be adopted, be adopted.

CARRIED

The meeting closed at 7.38pm.

CHAIRMAN
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n REPORT
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE COUNCIL
18 DECEMBER 2017

DUBBO REGIONAL
COUNCIL

PRESENT: Councillors J Diffey, V Etheridge, D Grant, D Gumley, A Jones, S Lawrence, G Mohr,
K Parker, J Ryan and B Shields.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

The General Manager, the Director Corporate Services (M Crisante), the Manager
Governance and Risk (S Wade), the Administrative Officer Governance, the Director Economic
Development and Business, the Communications Coordinator, the Director Infrastructure and
Operations, the Manager Infrastructure Delivery, the Manager Transport and Emergency, the
Manager Water Supply and Sewerage, the Manager Fleet Services, the Director Planning and
Environment, the Manager Building and Development Services, the Statutory Planning
Services Team Leader, the Manager Strategic Planning Services, the Strategic Planning
Supervisor and the Director Community and Recreation.

Councillor B Shields assumed chairmanship of the meeting.
The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 7.09pm.

CW17/25 TENDER FOR THE SUPPLY AND HIRE OF LIGHT VEHICLES, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (ID17/2076)

The Committee had before it the report dated 1 December 2017 from the Manager Fleet

Services regarding Tender for the Supply and Hire of Light Vehicles, Plant and Equipment.

Moved by Councillor D Grant and seconded by Councillor G Mohr
MOTION

The Committee recommends that members of the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of this item, the reason being that the matter concerned
information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who
supplied it (Section 10A(2)(d)(i)).

CARRIED
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Moved by Councillor K Parker and seconded by Councillor G Mohr
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the tenders received for the Hire of Light Vehicles, Plant and Equipment to
Council for the period of January 2018 to June 2019 as listed below be accepted for
the purpose of the engagement of contractors to supplement the light vehicle, plant
and equipment requirements of Council.

2.  That any necessary documents be executed under the Common Seal of the Council.

3. That the documents and considerations in regard to this matter remain confidential
to Council.

CARRIED

CW17/26 CONSTRUCTION OF THE OPERABLE WALL AND ASSOCIATED BUILDING WORK

AT THE DUBBO REGIONAL THEATRE AND CONVENTION CENTRE (1D17/2217)
The Committee had before it the report dated 12 December 2017 from the Director
Community and Recreation regarding Construction of the Operable Wall and Associated
Building Work at the Dubbo Regional Theatre and Convention Centre.

Moved by Councillor D Grant and seconded by Councillor G Mohr
MOTION

The Committee recommends that members of the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of this item, the reason being that the matter concerned
information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who
supplied it (Section 10A(2)(d)(i)).

CARRIED
Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor J Diffey

MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That Council accept the tender of Yoff Pty Ltd T/as Dubbo Terrazzo and Concrete
Industries in the amount of $300,420.00 ex GST for the construction of the operable
wall and associated building work at the Dubbo Regional Theatre and Convention
Centre.

2. That any necessary documents be executed under the Common Seal of the Council.

3. That the documents and considerations in regard to this matter remain confidential
to Council.

CARRIED
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Cw17/27 TENDER FOR THE DOCUMENTATION AND CONSTRUCTION OF A WORKSHOP
AT THE DUBBO REGIONAL LIVESTOCK MARKETS (1D17/2201)

The Committee had before it the report dated 11 December 2017 from the Manager Saleyard

and Showgrounds regarding Tender for the Documentation and Construction of a Workshop

at the Dubbo Regional Livestock Markets.

Moved by Councillor D Grant and seconded by Councillor G Mohr
MOTION

The Committee recommends that members of the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of this item, the reason being that the matter concerned
information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who
supplied it (Section 10A(2)(d)(i)).

CARRIED
Moved by Councillor D Grant and seconded by Councillor G Mohr

MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That Council accept the tender of Brownrite Building Group Pty Ltd in the amount of
$272,350.00 ex GST for the documentation and construction of a workshop at the
Dubbo Regional Livestock Markets.

2.  That any necessary documents be executed under the Common Seal of the Council.

3. That the documents and considerations in regard to this matter remain confidential
to Council.

CARRIED

Cw17/28 REVIEW OF SERVICE DELIVERY MODEL FOR 'THREE BIN' WASTE SERVICES
CONTRACT (ID17/2158)

The Committee had before it the report dated 11 December 2017 from the Manager

Transport and Emergency regarding Review of Service Delivery Model for 'Three Bin' Waste

Services Contract.

Moved by Councillor D Grant and seconded by Councillor G Mohr

MOTION

The Committee recommends that members of the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of this item, the reason being that the matter concerned
information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who

supplied it (Section 10A(2)(d)(i)).
CARRIED
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Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor D Gumley
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the provision of a ‘weekly’ Mixed Waste collection, utilising a 140 litre bin as the
standard level of service, be adopted as a variation under clause 10.1 of the existing
Regional Waste Services Contract (including Waste Collection Services, Recycling
processing Services and Organics Processing Services) on the basis of this service
being provided to all residences in the Three Bin service areas.

2. The Domestic Waste Management Charge for this level of service, as proposed in the
draft 2018/2019 Revenue Policy, remain at $378 whereby the default level of service

becomes:

Food and Garden Waste 240 litre bin Collected Weekly
Recycling 240 litre bin Collected Fortnightly
Mixed Waste 140 litre bin Collected Weekly

3. That subject to the adoption of the ‘weekly’ Mixed Waste service delivery model, all
properties in the Three Bin service areas be supplied with a new red lid, 140 litre bin
from 1 July 2018 to be delivered in conjunction with the roll out of new green lid
FOGO bins and kitchen caddies (and yellow lid recycling bins to properties in
Wellington and Geurie receiving recycling for the first time).

4. That the Mixed Waste service include an option to provide a weekly 240 litre bin
service, with this enhanced service to be approved by the Manager Solid Waste in
accordance with guidelines to be developed to manage the provision of this service

5. That proposed variations of the contract be formalised by the Manager Solid Waste
under the relevant clauses in the existing contract.

CARRIED

AWP17/8 DUBBO CITY REGIONAL AIRPORT CAFE LICENCE RECOMMENDATION
(ID17/2187)

The Committee had before it the report dated 7 December 2017 from the Manager Airport

Operations regarding Dubbo City Regional Airport Cafe Licence Recommendation.

Moved by Councillor D Grant and seconded by Councillor G Mohr

MOTION

The Committee recommends that members of the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of this item, the reason being that the matter concerned
information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who

supplied it (Section 10A(2)(d)(i)).
CARRIED
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Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor D Gumley
MOTION

1. That Emirates Retail Group, Hudson’s Coffee be notified of their successful
application.

2. That it be noted that Michel’s Patisserie and Real Food are the second and third
prefer options and be offered to enter into the licence agreement should Emirates
retail group not proceed with taking up the lease.

3. That successful tenderer be invited to operate the Café based on a three (3) year
licence plus a three (3) year option.

4. That any necessary documents be executed under the Common Seal of the Council.

5. That the documents and considerations in regard to this matter remain confidential
to Council.

Moved by Councillor S Lawrence and seconded by Councillor A Jones
AMENDMENT

1.  That Real Food be notified of their successful application.

2.  That it be noted that Michel’s Patisserie and Emirates Retail Group, Hudson’s Coffee
are the second and third prefer options and be offered to enter into the licence
agreement should Real Food not proceed with taking up the lease.

3.  That successful tenderer be invited to operate the Café based on a three (3) year
licence plus a three (3) year option.

4.  That the documents and considerations in regard to this matter remain confidential

to Council.
The amendment on being put to the meeting was lost. LOST
The motion on being put to the meeting was carried. CARRIED

As one or more Councillors voted against the motion, in accordance with Clause (b)(iv)(2) of
Council’s Code of Meeting Practice, the following votes were recorded:

FOR AGAINST

Councillor Jones Councillor Diffey
Councillor Lawrence Councillor Etheridge
Councillor Parker Councillor Grant
Councillor Ryan Councillor Gumley

Councillor Mohr
Councillor Shields
Total (4) Total (6)
The meeting closed at 7.32pm.

CHAIRMAN
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’ REPORT
EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
19 JANUARY 2018

DUBEO REGIONAL
COUNCIL

PRESENT: Councillors J Diffey, V Etheridge, D Gumley, S Lawrence, G Mohr, K Parker, J Ryan
and B Shields.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

The General Manager, the Director Corporate Services, the Team Leader Governance, the
Administrative Officer Governance, the Communications Coordinator, the Director
Infrastructure and Operations, the Director Planning and Environment (K Williams), the
Manager Strategic Planning Services and the Director Community and Recreation.

Councillor B Shields assumed chairmanship of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 12 noon with a prayer for Divine Guidance to
the Council in its deliberations and activities. The acknowledgement of country was also read
by Councillor B Shields.

cCcL18/1 LEAVE OF ABSENCE (1D18/137)
A request for leave of absence was received from Councillor A Jones and D Grant who was
absent from the meeting due to the personal reasons.

Moved by Councillor S Lawrence and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION

That such request for leave of absence be accepted and Councillor A Jones and D Grant be
granted leave of absence from this meeting.

CARRIED

ccL18/2 PUBLIC FORUM (ID18/138)
The Council reports having met with the following person during Public Forum:

. Mr Wes Maas regarding item CCL18/3 - Planning Proposal (R16-5) - Southlakes Estate,
Dubbo.

. Mr Steve Gooley regarding item CCL18/3 - Planning Proposal (R16-5) - Southlakes
Estate, Dubbo.

EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING Page 1
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EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 19 JANUARY 2018
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REPORTS FROM STAFF:

CCL18/3

PLANNING PROPOSAL (R16-5) - SOUTHLAKES ESTATE, DUBBO (1D18/141)

The Council had before it the report dated 16 January 2018 from the Manager Strategic
Planning Services regarding Planning Proposal (R16-5) - Southlakes Estate, Dubbo.

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge

MOTION

1.  That the Planning Proposal, as exhibited, to undertake the following amendments to
the Dubbo Local Environmental Plan 2011 be adopted by Council:

That part of the subject land be rezoned from R2 Low Density Residential to R1
General Residential, B1 Neighbour Centre and the existing RE1 Public Recreation
zone be reconfigured;

That minimum lot sizes be changed from existing 600 m? and 4000 m? to a range
of no minimum lot sizes, 450 m?, 600 m?, 800 m? and 2000 m?3;

That land situated to the south of the indicative location of the Southern
Distributor be zoned RU2 Rural Landscape;

That the area of land proposed to be zoned B1 Neighbourhood Centre be
subject to a suitable provision in the Dubbo Local Environmental Plan 2011 that
limits the total retail floor space of any centre to 5,000 m?; and

That the additional use of Recreational Facility (Indoor) be permitted on the
subject area of the land proposed to be zoned B1 Neighbourhood Centre under
the provisions of the Dubbo Local Environmental Plan 2011.

2.  That Council request the Department of Planning and Environment to prepare the
draft amendment to the Dubbo Local Environmental Plan 2011 and provide Council
with an Opinion that the Plan be made.

3.  That following receipt of an Opinion from the Department that the Plan be made, that
the General Manager request gazettal of the Plan.

4. That those who made a submission be thanked and advised of Council’s
determination in this matter.

CARRIED
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In accordance with s375A(2) of the Local Government Act 1993, a division was duly called, the
following votes on the motion were recorded:

FOR

Councillor Diffey
Councillor Etheridge
Councillor Gumley
Councillor Lawrence
Councillor Mohr
Councillor Parker
Councillor Ryan
Councillor Shields
Total (8)

The meeting closed at 12.32pm.

AGAINST

Total (0)

CHAIRMAN

EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
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' REPORT
EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
31 JANUARY 2018

DUBEO REGIONAL
COUNCIL

PRESENT: Councillors J Diffey, V Etheridge, D Grant, A Jones, S Lawrence, K Parker, J Ryan and
B Shields.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

The General Manager, the Director Corporate Services (J Bassingthwaighte), the Manager
Governance and Risk, the Team Leader Governance, the Director Economic Development and
Business, the Communications Coordinator, the Director Infrastructure and Operations and
the Director Community and Recreation.

Councillor B Shields assumed chairmanship of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 12 noon with a prayer for Divine Guidance to
the Council in its deliberations and activities. The acknowledgement of country was also read
by Councillor J Ryan.

ccL1s/4 LEAVE OF ABSENCE (ID18/153)
Requests for leave of absence were received from Councillors D Gumley and G Mohr who
were absent from the meeting due to the personal reasons.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Councillor J Diffey
MOTION

That such requests for leave of absence be accepted and Councillors D Gumley and G Mohr
be granted leave of absence from this meeting.

CARRIED

ccL18/5 PUBLIC FORUM (ID18/154)
There were no speakers during Public Forum.

At this junction it was moved by Councillor V Etheridge and seconded by Councillor S
Lawrence that the Council resolves into the Committee of the Whole Council, the time being
12.02pm.

The meeting resumed at 12.04pm.
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ccL18/e COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (ID18/155)

The Director Corporate Services read to the meeting of the Report of Committee of the
Whole held on 31 January 2018.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge

MOTION

That the report of the meeting of the Committee of the Whole held on 31 January 2018 be

adopted.
CARRIED
The meeting closed at 12.05pm.
CHAIRMAN
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REPORT
¥ CONFIDENTIAL COMMITTEE OF THE
WHOLE MEETING
councie " 31 JANUARY 2018

PRESENT: Councillors J Diffey, V Etheridge, D Grant, A Jones, S Lawrence, K Parker, J Ryan and
B Shields.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

The General Manager, the Director Corporate Services (J Bassingthwaighte), the Manager
Governance and Risk, the Team Leader Governance, the Director Economic Development and
Business, the Communications Coordinator, the Director Infrastructure and Operations and
the Director Community and Recreation.

Councillor B Shields assumed chairmanship of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 12.02pm.

cwisg/1 DEMOLITION OF BUILDINGS AT THE DUBBO CITY REGIONAL AIRPORT FOR
THE NSW RURAL FIRE SERVICE TRAINING FACILITY (T17-047) (1D18/147)

The Committee had before it the report dated 23 January 2018 from the Manager Property

Assets regarding Demolition of buildings at the Dubbo City Regional Airport for the NSW Rural

Fire Service Training Facility (T17-047).

Moved by Councillor V Etheridge and seconded by Councillor S Lawrence

MOTION

The Committee recommends that members of the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of this item, the reason being that the matter concerned
information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who
supplied it (Section 10A(2)(d)(i)).

CARRIED
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Moved by Councillor | Diffey and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the tender from Newbold Bulk Haulage Pty Ltd be accepted in the amount of
$182,000 exclusive GST.

2.  That any necessary documents be executed under the Common Seal of the Council.

3.  That the documents and considerations in regard to this matter remain confidential

to Council.
CARRIED

cwWig/2 LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Requests for leave of absence were received from Councillors D Gumley and G Mohr who
were absent from the meeting due to the personal reasons.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Councillor J Diffey

MOTION

That such requests for leave of absence be accepted and Councillors D Gumley and G Mohr
be granted leave of absence from this meeting.

CARRIED
The meeting closed at 12.04pm.
CHAIRMAN
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’ REPORT
EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
14 FEBRUARY 2018

DUBEO REGIONAL
COUNCIL

PRESENT: Councillors J Diffey, V Etheridge, D Grant, A lones, S Lawrence, G Mohr, K Parker, J
Ryan and B Shields.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

The General Manager, the Director Corporate Services, the Manager Governance and Risk,
the Team Lleader Governance, the Director Economic Development and Business, the
Manager Communications and Stakeholder Engagement, the Director Infrastructure and
Operations, the Manager Transport and Emergency, the Senior Traffic Engineer and the
Director Planning and Environment.

Councillor B Shields assumed chairmanship of the meeting.
The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 2.00 pm with a prayer for Divine Guidance to

the Council in its deliberations and activities. The acknowledgement of country was also read
by Councillor J Diffey.

ccL18/7 LEAVE OF ABSENCE (1D18/233)
A request for leave of absence was received from Councillor D Gumley who was absent from
the meeting due to personal reasons.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor A Jones

MOTION

That such request for leave of absence be accepted and Councillor D Gumley be granted
leave of absence from this meeting.

CARRIED
cCL18/8 PUBLIC FORUM (ID18/234)
There were no speakers during Public Forum.
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REPORTS FROM STAFF:

ccLig/9 PARKING RESTRICTIONS - POZIERES STREET AND YPRES LANE, DUBBO
(1D18/235)

The Council had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from the Senior Traffic Engineer

regarding Parking Restrictions - Pozieres Street and Ypres Lane, Dubbo.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION

That Council implement ‘No Stopping’ and ‘No Parking’ restrictions, and associated line
marking in Pozieres Street and Ypres Lane, Dubbo in accordance with Council’s Plan TM
7176 attached to this report as Appendix 1.

CARRIED

ccL18/10 REQUEST FOR ROAD CLOSURE AT MOLONG STREET, STUART TOWN - MAN
FROM IRONBARK FESTIVAL 2018 (ID18/236)

The Council had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from the Senior Traffic Engineer

regarding Request for Road Closure at Molong Street, Stuart Town - Man from Ironbark

Festival 2018.

Moved by Councillor V Etheridge and seconded by Councillor G Mohr
MOTION

That approval be granted for a temporary road closure of Molong Street, between
Alexander Street and Bell Street, on 31 March 2018 for the Man from Ironbark Festival
between 6.00am to 7.00pm, subject to the following:

1. Concurrence is required from the RMS for the event to utilise part of the Burrendong
Way between Molong and Bell Streets as a detour with advice provided to Council. In
the event that concurrence is not granted, the Applicant is to advise Council if the
event will proceed with a re-design that excludes the use of Burrendong Way.

2. The submission of an Event and Traffic Management Plan and Traffic Control Plans to
Council for approval in accordance with Australian Standard 1742.3, and the RMS
guide to Traffic Control at Worksites prepared by an accredited person.

3. Traffic controllers and trained course marshals are to be provided at all road closure
points and other locations as identified in the Event and Traffic Management Plan
with restricted access only to emergency and authorised vehicles. All traffic
controllers are to be specially authorised for the event with current RMS certification.

4, Council’s Administration Officer must sight a copy the current Public Liability
Insurance Policy for a minimum amount of $20 million on which Dubbo Regional
Council, Roads and Maritime Service and NSW Police is specifically noted to be
indemnified against any action resulting from the event.
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10.

11.

The Applicant is responsible for the provision of all traffic control required for the
event in accordance with the Traffic Control Plan.

The Applicant is responsible for all costs associated with the placement of a public
notification, a minimum of two weeks prior to the event, and advice to the residents
within the closed roads advising of the Man from lronbark Festival and the road
closure of Molong Street, Stuart Town.

All traffic advisory signs shall be placed in accordance with the approved Traffic
Control Plan and the Event and Traffic Management Plan.

The NSW Police’s consent and conditions for the running of the event as considered
necessary.

The Applicant is to provide Council with a signed and dated copy of the Event and
Traffic Management Plan.

The Applicant is to submit to Council all the appropriate documentation required,
accepting the above terms and conditions before final approval will be granted.

All costs associated with implementing these event conditions are to be met by the
event organiser.

CARRIED

CCL18/11 REQUEST FOR TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE - ROTARY VINTAGE FAIR STREET

PARADE WELLINGTON (ID18/237)

The Council had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from the Senior Traffic Engineer
regarding Request for Temporary Road Closure - Rotary Vintage Fair Street Parade
Wellington.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor D Grant

MOTION

That Council approval be granted to the Rotary Vintage Fair Wellington Committee to
undertake the annual Street Parade on Saturday 3 March 2018 and implement
temporary road closures of the Mitchell Highway, between Maughan Street and
Soldiers Lane and the local streets of Percy Street between Maxwell Street and
Maughan Street, Soldiers Lane between the Mitchell Highway and Market Square,
Market Square between Gisborne Street and Soldiers Lane, Gisborne Street between
Market Square and Mitchell Highway, from 9.00am to 1.00pm on Saturday 3 March
2018 with the implementation of detours via the Wellington Heavy Vehicle and Light
Vehicle Routes subject to Roads and Maritime Service approval and conditions of
Dubbo Regional Council and the NSW Police as considered necessary:

a) The Street Parade will commence at 10.00am and move from the Maughan Street
roundabout along Percy Street and Nanima Crescent through the Wellington CBD
adjacent to Cameron Park and continue north to Soldiers Lane then Market Square,
Gisborne Street and return along the Mitchell Highway. The event is to be
undertaken under Police escort in accordance with the requirements of the NSW
Police Force and approval documentation forwarded to Council for notation.

b) Soldiers Lane and Market Square is to be secured and manned to ensure that
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c)

public access is restricted.

An additional road closure will be required of the Mitchell Highway and Maughan
Street intersection for a detour of Showground Road via Ferguson Lane and
Maxwell Street.

d) A Traffic Control Plan (Appendix 1) and Traffic Management Plan and Event

—

f)

g)

Application (Appendix 2) have been submitted to Council. All traffic control
measures contained in the Plans are to be in accordance with the Australian
Standard AS 1742.3, and the Roads and Maritime Service Guide to Traffic Control
at Worksites and approved by an accredited person. Council’s Traffic Control Plan
0026196652 (Appendix 1) dated 12 February 2018 is to be implemented for the
detours and road closures.

The organiser is to provide Council’s relevant appointed officer with a copy of the
Public Liability Insurance Policy for the amount of at least $20 million. Such policy
is to note that Council, Roads and Maritime Service and NSW Police are
indemnified against any possible action as a result of the Street Parade.

Traffic Controllers and Marshalls are to be provided at the nominated road closure
points along the route and shall be specifically authorised for the event with
controllers having current Roads and Maritime Service certification.

The Applicant is responsible for all traffic control required for the event in
accordance with the approved Traffic Control Plan (Appendix 1).

h) The Applicant is to provide Council with a formal letter of acceptance of the

i)
)

k

-

conditions prior to final approval.

The Applicant is to ensure that the roadway is clear of any residue that may be
deposited by the participants along the parade route.

The Applicant is to gain approval from the Roads and Maritime Service for the
closure and detour of the Mitchell Highway and submit an application to the
Transport Management Centre for a Road Occupancy Licence with evidence
provided to Council of such approval and conditions as warranted.

All costs associated with implementing the event conditions are to be met by the
Event Organiser.

The Organiser is responsible for the costs associated with the placement of public
notification, a minimum of seven (7) days prior to the event in the local paper,
detailing the proposed road closure and detour required to facilitate the
Wellington Vintage Fair Street Parade.

CARRIED
The meeting closed at 2.13pm.
CHAIRMAN
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n MAYORAL MINUTE: Support for 'Protect
| _ the Protectors' Campaign

DUBBO REGIONAL AUTHOR: Mayor
COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 22 January 2018

TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/144

To the Council Office of the Mayor
Ladies and Gentlemen Civic Administration Building
Church Street, Dubbo

The Volunteer Fire Fighters Association and the New South Wales Rural Fire Service
Association are both currently campaigning and lobbying Government to introduce
improvements to the safety of emergency services personnel while actively involved in
emergency situations. Australia relies heavily on its volunteers to help those experiencing
emergency events including bushfire, motor vehicle accidents and many other situations.
These volunteers regularly put themselves in danger assisting those in need without
hesitation and restrictions should be put in place to help reduce risks to these volunteers.

It is common place for volunteers to be providing assistance to motor vehicle accidents or
bushfires in an active traffic area where vehicles may be travelling at high speed. The ‘Protect
the Protectors’ campaign is lobbying Government for the introduction of 40kph speed zones
around active emergencies on roadways. This is an easy solution to help reduce the risk to
these volunteers while engaged in assisting others by eliminating high speed vehicles
travelling in close proximity to the emergency scene.

It is recommended that Council offers its support for the ‘Protect the Protectors’ campaign
and support the campaign through a letter of support. Council also has the ability to move a
motion at the 2018 Local Government NSW conference so that all councils in NSW can speak
as one voice and offer their support of this campaign collectively. It is also recommended
that Council make representations to the Minister for Roads, Maritime and Freight, Melinda
Pavey, and the Minister for Emergency Services, Troy Grant indicating its support for the
‘Protect the Protectors’ campaign and requesting that consideration be given to the
introduction of 40kph speed zones at emergency events.
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RECOMMENDATION

1. That Council provide its support for the ‘Protect the Protectors’ campaign and
provide a letter of support to the campaign accordingly.

2. That Council moves a motion in support of the ‘Protect the Protectors’ campaign with
supporting arguments at the 2018 Local Government NSW conference.

3. That Council makes representations to the Minister for Roads, Maritime and Freight,
Melinda Pavey, and the Minister for Emergency Services, Troy Grant indicating its
support for the ‘Protect the Protectors’ campaign and requesting that consideration
be given to the introduction of 40kph speed zones at emergency events.

Councillor Ben Shields
Mayor
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n MAYORAL MINUTE: Playmates Cottage
| _ Update

DUBBO REGIONAL AUTHOR: Mayor
COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 2 February 2018

TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/203

To the Council Office of the Mayor
Ladies and Gentlemen Civic Administration Building
Church Street, Dubbo

As an update this Mayoral Minute is to inform Councillors of the history and progress made
on the Playmates Cottage Childcare Centre issue.

The Playmates Cottage Child Care Centre has previously been located on the grounds of
Dubbo Hospital and managed by a community based not for profit incorporated body
(Playmates Childcare Centre Dubbo Inc.). The Centre was originally established by the former
Dubbo City Council by invitation of the Dubbo Hospital. The idea was the simple yet novel
idea to provide affordable childcare services to hospital workers. The Council of the day
funded and facilitated a community fundraising campaign to get the centre up and running.

The Centre had been at this location for many years and unfortunately is needed to be
demolished by the property owner to accommodate the planned stages 3 and 4 upgrades to
Dubbo Hospital. The former Dubbo City Council had been vocal in its opposition to the
demolishing the building without adequate plans for the fair relocation of the Centre.

With the former Council’s formal support, the parents and community were successful in its
lobbying efforts which saw a petition of over 10,000 signatures reach the floor of the State
Parliament.

Because of the efforts by the parents and community, Dubbo Regional Council, in
partnership with NSW Health Infrastructure, have constructed a new Playmates Cottage
Child Care Centre on Council owned land on the corner of River Street and Moran Drive,
North Dubbo to replace the Centre to be demolished. In this partnership, Council has
provided the land and project management and NSW Health Infrastructure the funds to
construct the Centre. This centre is a purpose built child care facility specifically designed to
meet the needs of the staff and children of Playmates Cottage.

After several years planning and construction, the construction of this new centre has
recently been completed. | took great satisfaction in recently signing a lease for 25 years on
behalf of Council between Council and Playmates Cottage to see these plans come to
fruition.
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Playmates Cottage expects to start operating fully as a child care centre in the near future
once the required approvals have been provided by the NSW Department of Education. This
is a significant win for our community, Playmates Cottage and Dubbo Regional Council.
Council, being a community orientated organisation, can now give Playmates Cottage a level
of confidence and certainty in its future.

RECOMMENDATION

That the information contained within the Mayoral Minute be noted.

Councillor Ben Shields
Mayor
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n MAYORAL MINUTE: Improving Mobile
| _ Phone Coverage Throughout the Local

BUBBOREBIONAL Government Area

COUNCIL

AUTHOR: Mayor

REPORT DATE: 5 February 2018

TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/213
To the Council Office of the Mayor
Ladies and Gentlemen Civic Administration Building

Church Street, Dubbo

The Australian Government’s $220 million Mobile Black Spot Program will deliver improved
mobile coverage to regional and remote Australia. Round 1 of the program will deliver
almost 500 new or upgraded mobile base station around Australia — 429 Telstra and 70
Vodafone base stations. The first base stations under Round 1 of the program began rolling
out in 2015 and will continue for a three year period. The rollout sequence will be
determined by various factors including obtaining local government planning approvals.
Information about the rollout schedule is available on each of the carriers’ websites.

The mobile phone coverage for towns and villages in the Dubbo Regional Council Local
Government area is variable at best and isolating at worst.

After an intensive lobbying effort by Calare MP Andrew Gee, it is pleasing that it has recently
been announced by the Telstra General Manager that Mumbil will soon be the recipient of a
new mobile phone tower to service the Mumbil area. This project has been funded by the
Federal Government’s Mobile Black Spot Program. It is expected that this new tower will be
operational before July 2018.

The announcement of this new mobile phone tower that will provide Telstra 3G and 4GX
coverage is great news for this region of the Local Government Area however other areas of
the Local Government Area lack reliable, effective mobile phone coverage. Eumungerie has
basic mobile services, even though it is located half way between Dubbo and Gilgandra on
the Newell Highway.

| have recently met with Parkes MP, Mark Coulton and raised blackspot issues effecting
Dubbo Regional areas in his electorate. Considering the vast extent of the Parkes electorate,
| am extremely pleased by the progress Mr Coulton has made in efforts to obtain funding for
further coverage. It is my view that council now must add its weight behind our local MPs
and their efforts to obtain equitable telecommunications coverage for regional NSW.

| therefore recommend that Council make representations to the Minister for

Communications, the Hon. Mitch Fifield MP, the Federal Member for Parkes, Mark Coulton
MP and the State Member for Dubbo, the Hon. Troy Grant MP regarding the lack of mobile
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services in the Eumungerie area of the Dubbo Regional Council Local Government area. It is
also recommended that further representations be made requesting a review of these
services and possible funding of further mobile phone towers in this area.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That Council make representations to the Minister for Communications, the Hon
Mitch Fifield MP, the Federal Member for Parkes, Mark Coulton MP and the State
Member for Dubbo, the Hon Troy Grant MP, regarding the lack of mobile services in
the Eumungerie area of the Dubbo Regional Council Local Government area.

2. That Council make further representations to the Minister for Communications, the
Hon Mitch Fifield MP, the Federal Member for Parkes, Mark Coulton MP and the
State Member for Dubbo, the Hon Troy Grant MP, requesting a review of mobile
phone services in the Eumungerie area and possible funding of further mobile phone
towers to expand services in this area.

Councillor Ben Shields
Mayor
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Report of the Planning, Development and

Environment Committee - meeting 19
February 2018

ggﬁﬁg{EGIONAL AUTHOR: Administration Officer - Governance

REPORT DATE: 4 January 2018

The Committee had before it the report of the Planning, Development and Environment
Committee meeting held 19 February 2018.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report of the Planning, Development and Environment Committee meeting held
on 19 February 2018, be adopted.
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REPORT

a PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND
ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE

coonci. " 19 FEBRUARY 2018

PRESENT: Councillors J Diffey, V Etheridge, D Grant, D Gumley, A Jones, S Lawrence, G Mohr,
K Parker, J Ryan and B Shields.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

The General Manager, the Director Corporate Services, the Manager Governance and Risk (S
Wade), the Administrative Officer Governance, the Director Economic Development and
Business, the Communications Coordinator, the Director Infrastructure and Operations, the
Manager Transport and Emergency, the Manager Water Supply and Sewerage, the Manager
Infrastructure Strategy, the Manager Business Support — Infrastructure, the Director Planning
and Environment, the Manager Building and Development Services, the Statutory Planning
Services Team Leader, the Manager Strategic Planning Services, the Strategic Planning
Supervisor, the Senior Planner, the Director Community and Recreation the Manager Social
Services.

Councillor S Lawrence assumed chairmanship of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 5.38pm.

PDEC18/1 REPORT OF THE PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE
- MEETING 11 DECEMBER 2017 (ID18/6)

The Committee had before it the report of the Planning, Development and Environment

Committee meeting held 11 December 2017.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor A Jones

MOTION

That the report of the Planning, Development and Environment Committee meeting held

on 11 December 2017, be adopted.
CARRIED
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PDEC18/2 BUILDING SUMMARY - DECEMBER 2017 AND JANUARY 2018 (ID18/226)
The Committee had before it the report dated 9 February 2018 from the Director Planning
and Environment regarding Building Summary - December 2017 and January 2018.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor J Diffey
MOTION

The Committee recommends that the information contained in this report of the Director
Planning and Environment dated 9 February 2018 be noted.
CARRIED

PDEC18/3 NOMINATIONS FOR THE WESTERN JOINT REGIONAL PLANNING PANEL (JRPP)
(ID17/2218)

The Committee had before it the report dated 12 December 2017 from the Manager Building

and Development Services regarding Nominations for the Western Joint Regional Planning

Panel (JRPP).

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That Council determine its two nominations to represent Council on the Western Joint
Regional Planning Panel, for a period not to exceed three (3) years.

2.  That Mr Dunstan and Mr Mathieson be acknowledged and thanked for their service in
the capacity of Dubbo Regional Council’s representatives to the Western Joint
Regional Planning Panel.

3. That in line with the Planning Panels Operational Procedures, completed assessment
reports for consideration by the Western Joint Regional Planning Panel are to be
referred immediately to the panel secretariat without reference to formal Council
meetings for notation.

CARRIED
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PDEC18/4 LEGISLATIVE UPDATES TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING AND
ASSESSMENT ACT 1979 (1D18/179)

The Committee had before it the report dated 9 February 2018 from the Manager Strategic

Planning Services regarding Legislative Updates to the Environmental Planning and

Assessment Act 1979.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Councillor J Diffey
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the information contained in this report of the Manager Strategic Planning
Services dated 9 February 2018 be noted.

2. That an overview in respect of the various components of the amended
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 be provided to the members of
the Developers Forum at the next available meeting.

3. That information regarding amendments be provided to the development industry
via an information circular.

CARRIED

PDEC18/5 DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS AND ASSOCIATED ISSUES - SOUTHLAKES
ESTATE, SOUTH-EAST DUBBO - UPDATE REPORT (ID18/221)

The Committee had before it the report dated 9 February 2018 from the Manager Strategic

Planning Services regarding Developer Contributions and Associated Issues - Southlakes

Estate, South-East Dubbo - Update Report. The Committee met with Mr S Guy regarding this

matter.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the information included in this report of the Manager Strategic Planning
Services dated 9 February be noted.

2.  That following receipt of the consultancy assessment from Cardno Pty Ltd in respect
of trunk stormwater drainage requirements in Catchment 3.1 under the provisions of
the Section 94 Contributions Plan Urban Stormwater Drainage Headworks, a further
report be provided to Council for consideration at the next available Council meeting.
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Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor D Gumley
AMENDMENT

The Committee recommends:

1. That the information included in this report of the Manager Strategic Planning
Services dated 9 February be noted.

2. That following receipt of the consultancy assessment from Cardno Pty Ltd in respect
of trunk stormwater drainage requirements in Catchment 3.1 under the provisions of
the Section 94 Contributions Plan Urban Stormwater Drainage Headworks, a further
report be provided to Council for consideration at the next available Council meeting.

3. That a updated report be provided to Council at the March 2018 meeting.

The amendment on being put to the meeting was carried. CARRIED

The amendment then became the motion and on being put to the meeting was carried.
CARRIED

Councillor B Shields assumed chairmanship of the meeting for consideration of this matter.

PDEC18/6 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION D2017-611 - THREE (3) LOT SUBDIVISION

(COMMUNITY TITLE)

PROPERTY: 7 RAWSON STREET, DUBBO

APPLICANT/OWNER: MR N & MRS J DENNIS

DATE LODGED: 24 NOVEMBER 2017 (ID18/170)
The Committee had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from the Planner regarding
Development Application D2017-611 - Three (3) Lot Subdivision (Community Title)
Property: 7 Rawson Street, Dubbo. The Committee met with Mr M Andrews regarding this
matter.

Moved by Councillor K Parker and seconded by Councillor D Grant
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That Development Application D2017-611 for a three (3) lot subdivision (Community
Title) of Lot 1 DP 11095, 7 Rawson Street, Dubbo, be granted ‘deferred
commencement’ consent subject to the conditions included as attached to the report
of the Planner dated 12 February 2018 as Appendix 3.

2. That those who made submissions be advised of Council’s determination in this
matter.

CARRIED
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Councillor S Lawrence declared a pecuniary, significant interest in the matter now before the
Committee and left the room and was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration of
this matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor S Lawrence owns a neighbouring
property.

Councillor G Mohr declared a non-pecuniary, significant interest in the matter now before the
Committee and left the room and was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration of
this matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor G Mohr has previously been a
colleague of the complainant.

Councillor D Gumley declared a non-pecuniary, significant interest in the matter now before
the Committee and left the room and was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration
of this matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor D Gumley knows, through his
employment, a party who holds an objection to this item.

Councillor S Lawrence resumed chairmanship of the meeting.

PDEC18/7 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION D2017-620 - THREE (3) LOT SUBDIVISION
(STRATA TITLE)
PROPERTY: 1 POZIERES STREET, DUBBO
APPLICANT/OWNER: FAODAIL PTY LTD
DATE LODGED: 29 NOVEMBER 2017 (ID18/201)
The Committee had before it the report dated 7 February 2018 from the Planner regarding
Development Application D2017-620 - Three (3) Lot Subdivision (Strata Title)
Property: 1 Pozieres Street, Dubbo.

Moved by Councillor J Diffey and seconded by Councillor B Shields

MOTION

The Committee recommends that Development Application D2017-620 for a three (3) lot
subdivision (Strata Title) of Lot 10 DP 1236532, 1 Pozieres Street, Dubbo be approved

subject to the conditions included as Appendix 2.
CARRIED
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PDEC18/8 MODIFIED DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION D2016-482 PART 2 - EXTRACTIVE
INDUSTRY (QUARRY)
PROPERTY: LOT 211 DP 1220433, 20L SHERATON ROAD, DUBBO
OWNER/APPLICANT: REGIONAL HARDROCK PTY LTD
LODGED: 26 SEPTEMBER 2017 (ID18/216)
The Committee had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from the Senior Planner
regarding Modified Development Application D2016-482 Part 2 - Extractive Industry (Quarry).

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor J Ryan
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the Modified Development Application D2016-482 Part 2 for an extractive
industry (quarry) at Lot 211 DP 1220433, 20L Sheraton Road, Dubbo, be granted
consent subject to the conditions included as Appendix 1 of the report of the Senior
Planner dated 12 February 2018 which includes the following amendments:

. Modification to conditions 1, 4, 7, 11, 15, 22, 30, 40 and 48;
° Deletion of conditions 8 and 42;

° Additional condition 50; and

° Notations 2, 6, 7 and 8 being amended.

2. That those who made submissions be advised of Council’s determination in this
matter.

CARRIED

The meeting closed at 5.55pm.

CHAIRMAN
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26 FEBRUARY 2018

Report of the Infrastructure, Community
and Recreation Committee - meeting 19
February 2018

ggﬁﬁg{EGIONAL AUTHOR: Administration Officer - Governance

REPORT DATE: 4 January 2018

The Committee had before it the report of the Infrastructure, Community and Recreation
Committee meeting held 19 February 2018.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report of the Infrastructure, Community and Recreation Committee meeting held
on 19 February 2018, be adopted.
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REPORT
a INFRASTRUCTURE, COMMUNITY AND
RECREATION COMMITTEE
coonci. " 19 FEBRUARY 2018

PRESENT: Councillors J Diffey, V Etheridge, D Grant, D Gumley, A Jones, S Lawrence, G Mohr,
K Parker, J Ryan and B Shields.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

The General Manager, the Director Corporate Services, the Manager Governance and Risk (S
Wade), the Administrative Officer Governance, the Director Economic Development and
Business, the Communications Coordinator, the Director Infrastructure and Operations, the
Manager Transport and Emergency, the Manager Water Supply and Sewerage, the Manager
Infrastructure Strategy, the Manager Business Support — Infrastructure, the Director Planning
and Environment, the Manager Building and Development Services, the Statutory Planning
Services Team Leader, the Manager Strategic Planning Services, the Strategic Planning
Supervisor, the Senior Planner, the Director Community and Recreation the Manager Social
Services.

Councillor S Lawrence assumed chairmanship of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 5.30pm.

Clause ICRC18/11 was brought forward for consideration and was dealt with at this juncture.

ICRC18/11 DUBBO NEIGHBOURHOOD CENTRE BIANNUAL ACTIVITIES REPORT (1D18/128)
The Committee had before it the report dated 11 January 2018 from the Manager Social
Services regarding Dubbo Neighbourhood Centre Biannual Activities Report. The Committee
reports having met with Ms Michelle Redden, Dubbo Neighbourhood Centre regarding this
matter.

Moved by Councillor D Grant and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION
The Committee recommends that the information contained within the report of the

Manager Social Services, dated 11 January 2018 be noted.
CARRIED

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 59



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
26 FEBRUARY 2018 CCL18/19

At this juncture the meeting adjourned, the time being 5.38 pm.

The meeting recommenced at 5.55pm.

ICRC18/1 REPORT OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE, COMMUNITY AND RECREATION
COMMITTEE - MEETING 11 DECEMBER 2017 (1D18/7)

The Committee had before it the report of the Infrastructure, Community and Recreation

Committee meeting held 11 December 2017.

Moved by Councillor V Etheridge and seconded by Councillor B Shields
MOTION

The Committee recommends that the report of the Infrastructure, Community and
Recreation Committee meeting held on 11 December 2017, be adopted.
CARRIED

ICRC18/2 WELLINGTON WATER STANDPIPE SALES - REVENUE POLICY 2017/2018
(ID18/131)

The Committee had before it the report dated 16 February 2018 from the Manager Water

Supply and Sewerage regarding Wellington Water Standpipe Sales - Revenue Policy

2017/2018.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Councillor D Grant
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the minimum charge provision for water standpipe sales in the Wellington,
Mumbil and Geurie local area be removed to provide equity across the Dubbo
Regional Council local government area.

2.  That the removal of the Water Standpipe minimum charge take effect from 1 March
2018.

CARRIED
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ICRC18/3 PROPOSED COUNCIL ROAD CLOSURE ADIJOINING LOT 44 DP 756916 -
LOCATED BETWEEN BURRENDONG WAY AND KERRS CREEK (ID18/239)

The Committee had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from the Manager Transport

and Emergency regarding Proposed Council Road Closure adjoining Lot 44 DP 756916 -

located between Burrendong Way and Kerrs Creek.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor A Jones
MOTION

The Committee recommends:
1. That Council consent to the closure by the NSW Department of Industry-Lands of the
public road located adjoining LOT 44 in DP 756916.
2. That it be noted that the road, pursuant to section 38(2) of the Roads Act, becomes
vested in the Crown upon gazettal of the road closure.
CARRIED

ICRC18/4 PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE OF PART FITZROY STREET ADJACENT TO
COUNCIL'S LOT 10 DP 258615 (ID18/241)

The Committee had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from the Manager Transport

and Emergency regarding Proposed Road Closure of Part Fitzroy Street adjacent to Council's

Lot 10 DP 258615.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor K Parker
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That Council consent to an application being made to the Department of Industry —
Crown Lands to close the subject area of public road in Fitzroy Street to the east of
LOT 10 in DP 258615, for the purpose of disposal to adjacent land owners (S and P
Maroulis) and J and D Temesvary, respectively.

2.  That Council prepare for sale LOT 10 in DP 258615 to the adjoining owners of LOT 8
DP 258615 and LOT 13 DP 816293 in conjunction with the closure and disposal of the
redundant Fitzroy Street Road Reserve.

3.  That the price of the land to be disposed of be subject to an independent valuation of
all parcels being prepared and include full recovery from the purchasers of
development approval and other costs to be incurred by Council in presenting the
land for sale.

4. That any necessary documents be executed under the Common Seal of the Council.

CARRIED

Councillor D Grant declared a pecuniary, significant interest in the matter now before the
Committee and left the room and was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration of
this matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor D Grant has business dealings with
S and P Maroulis through his work with Elders Insurance.
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ICRC18/5 PROPOSED DEDICATION OF PUBLIC ROAD AT THE GILLINGHALL ROAD AND
GOOLMA ROAD INTERSECTION (1D18/242)

The Committee had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from the Manager Transport

and Emergency regarding Proposed Dedication of Public Road at the Gillinghall Road and

Goolma Road Intersection.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Councillor D Gumley
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That Council consent to the proposed road widening at the intersection of Gillinghall
Road and Goolma Road resulting in an additional area of land (160m?) being
dedicated as Public Road.

2.  That any necessary documents be executed under the Common Seal of the Council.

CARRIED

ICRC18/6 PROPOSAL WALKWAY CLOSURE BETWEEN 36 AND 38 TWICKENHAM DRIVE,
DUBBO (1D18/243)

The Committee had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from the Manager Transport

and Emergency regarding Proposal Walkway Closure between 36 and 38 Twickenham Drive,

Dubbo.

Moved by Councillor J Ryan and seconded by Councillor K Parker
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. The Council consent to a road closure application process being initiated in respect of
the public walkway located between 36 and 38 Twickenham Drive, Dubbo.

2. That it be noted that the road closure application requires a public notice to be
advertised and comments invited within a 28 day period prior to any application
being lodged.

3. That a further report be submitted to Council in respect of the result of such public
consultation.

4. That any necessary documents be executed under the Common Seal of the Council.

CARRIED
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ICRC18/7 REQUEST FOR REVIEW OF WATER CHARGES - ASSESSMENT 1162677
(1D18/204)

The Committee had before it the report dated 2 February 2018 from the Director

Infrastructure and Operations regarding Request for Review of Water Charges - Assessment
1162677.

Moved by Councillor K Parker and seconded by Councillor D Gumley
MOTION

The Committee recommends that Council confirm the current adjustment in outstanding
Water Access Charges for 50 mm and 100 mm fire services for Assessment 1162677, as
outlined in the report to Council of 19 February 2018 on this matter, of $6,059.85.

CARRIED

Councillor J Diffey declared a non-pecuniary, less than significant interest in the matter now
before the Committee and remained in the room and was out of sight during the Committee’s
consideration of this matter. The reason for such interest is that Mr and Mrs Day’s property is
located in community plan that Councillor J Diffey previously managed as a strata manager
for Dubbo Strata Management.

ICRC18/8 REPORT OF THE SOCIAL JUSTICE AND CRIME PREVENTION WORKING PARTY -
MEETING 31 JANUARY 2018 (ID18/208)

The Committee had before it the report of the Social Justice and Crime Prevention Working

Party meeting held 31 January 2018.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION
The Committee recommends that the report of the Social Justice and Crime Prevention
Working Party meeting held on 31 January 2018, be adopted.

CARRIED
ICRC18/9 2017-2020 DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL DISABILITY INCLUSION ACTION PLAN

UPDATE (ID18/130)

The Committee had before it the report dated 23 January 2018 from the Manager Social
Services regarding 2017-2020 Dubbo Regional Council Disability Inclusion Action Plan Update.
Moved by Councillor J Diffey and seconded by Councillor D Gumley
MOTION
The Committee recommends that the information contained within the report of the

Manager Social Services dated 22 January 2018 be noted.
CARRIED
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ICRC18/10 DUBBO FAMILY DAY CARE SCHEME-PROPOSED INCREASE IN FEES AND THE
PROPOSED INTRODUCTION OF A BUILDING LEASE (ID18/129)

The Committee had before it the report dated 22 January 2018 from the Manager Social

Services regarding Dubbo Family Day Care Scheme-Proposed Increase in Fees and the

Proposed Introduction of a Building Lease.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor D Gumley
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the information contained within the report of the Manager Social Services
dated 22 January 2018 be noted.

2. That the Dubbo Family Day Care Scheme increase the Parent Administration Levy
from the current figure of $1.00/hour to $1.75/hour by 1 July 2019. Such increase will
be undertaken in .25 cents/hour blocks from 1 March 2018 to 1 July 2019 as attached
to the report of the Manager Social Services dated 22 January 2018 as Appendix 1.

3. That the Dubbo Family Day Care Scheme lease the learning environment facilities
located within the Coordination Unit on an as needs basis at a cost of $20 per session
from 1 March 2018. Educational resources located within the facility to be leased at
$10 per session from 1 March 2018 as attached to the report of the Manager Social
Services dated 22 January 2018 as Appendix 1.

4. That the increase in fees and the introduction of new fees are monitored so that the
Dubbo Family Day Care Scheme remains a viable cost effective option for child care in
the community.

CARRIED

Councillor J Diffey declared a pecuniary, significant interest in the matter now before the
Committee and left the room and was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration of
this matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor J Diffey’s daughter is cared for by
Dubbo Family Day care.

ICRC18/12 VICTORIA PARK REDEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
(1D18/200)

The Committee had before it the report dated 1 February 2018 from the Governance Team

Leader regarding Victoria Park Redevelopment Advisory Committee membership.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor K Parker
MOTION
The Committee recommends that Council determine two Councillor Representatives on the

Victoria Park Redevelopment Advisory Committee.
CARRIED
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ICRC18/13 STREET TREE ADVISORY COMMITTEE (ID18/225)
The Committee had before it the report dated 8 February 2018 from the Manager
Governance and Risk regarding Street Tree Advisory Committee.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor G Mohr
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the Councillor representatives on the Street Tree Advisory Committee be
determined by Council.

2. That the four (4) Community representatives on the Street Tree Advisory Committee
be determined by Council.

3. That the draft Terms of Reference as attached to the report of the Manager
Governance and Risk dated 8 February 2018 as Appendix 2 be adopted.

4, That the draft Delegation of Authority to the Street Tree Advisory Committee as
attached to the report of the Manager Governance and Risk dated 8 February 2018 as
Appendix 3 be adopted.

CARRIED

ICRC18/14  REPORT OF THE CYCLING FACILITY WORKING PARTY - MEETING 29 JANUARY
2018 (1D18/207)

The Committee had before it the report of the Cycling Facility Working Party meeting held 29

January 2018.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor A Jones

MOTION

The Committee recommends that the report of the Cycling Facility Working Party meeting

held on 29 January 2018, be adopted.
CARRIED
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ICRC18/15 WET WEATHER POLICY (1D18/199)
The Committee had before it the report dated 1 February 2018 from the Recreation
Coordinator regarding Wet Weather Policy.

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the information contained within the report of the Recreation Coordinator dated
1 February 2018 be noted.

2. That the draft Wet Weather Policy as attached to the report of the Recreation
Coordinator dated 1 February 2018 as Appendix 1 be adopted.

3. That the policy be communicated through the Dubbo Regional Sports Council Dubbo
and Wellington General meetings to be held in March 2018.

CARRIED

ICRC18/16 GROUND ALLOCATION POLICY (1D18/198)
The Committee had before it the report dated 1 February 2018 from the Recreation
Coordinator regarding Ground Allocation Policy.

Moved by Councillor D Grant and seconded by Councillor D Gumley
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the information contained within the report of the Recreation Coordinator dated
1 February 2018 be noted.

2. That the draft Ground Allocation Policy as attached to the report of the Recreation
Coordinator dated 1 February 2018 as Appendix 1 be adopted.

3. The policy be communicated through the Dubbo Regional Sports Council Dubbo and
Wellington General meetings to be held in March 2018.

CARRIED

ICRC18/17 SPORTING ORGANISATION FEES AND CHARGES 2018/2019 (ID18/185)

The Committee had before it the report dated 31 January 2018 from the Recreation
Coordinator regarding Sporting Organisation Fees and Charges 2018/2019.

Moved by Councillor J Diffey and seconded by Councillor D Grant

MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1.  That the information contained within the report of the Recreation Coordinator dated

31 January 2018 be noted.
2. That a thirty percent (30%) blanket subsidy be applied to all sporting organisation
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sporting ground preparation fees and charges excluding litter control and included in
the 2018/2019 Draft Dubbo Regional Council Revenue Policy.

That no subsidy be applied to litter control for any sporting organisation.

That the Recreation Coordinator communicate the subsidy to be applied to all sporting
organisation fees and charges excluding litter control through the Dubbo Regional
Sports Council following adoption by Council.

That twenty five percent (25%) of the total revenue from sporting organisation fees and
charges be contributed to the Dubbo Regional Sports Council Playing Field
Improvement Fund and be made available, upon application and assessment to all
sporting organisations who are members of the Council and contribute fees.

That the Recreation Coordinator review the sporting ground preparation agreed briefs
and associated fees and charges annually.

Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor A Jones

AMENDMENT

The Committee recommends:

1.

5

That the information contained within the report of the Recreation Coordinator dated
31 January 2018 be noted.

That a thirty percent (30%) blanket subsidy be applied to all sporting organisation
sporting ground preparation fees and charges excluding litter control and included in
the 2018/2019 Draft Dubbo Regional Council Revenue Policy. With a further report to
be brought to Council outlining results of further consultation with effected sporting
organisations.

That no subsidy be applied to litter control for any sporting organisation.

That the Recreation Coordinator communicate the subsidy to be applied to all
sporting organisation fees and charges excluding litter control through the Dubbo
Regional Sports Council following adoption by Council.

That twenty five percent (25%) of the total revenue from sporting organisation fees
and charges be contributed to the Dubbo Regional Sports Council Playing Field
Improvement Fund and be made available, upon application and assessment to all
sporting organisations who are members of the Council and contribute fees.

That the Recreation Coordinator review the sporting ground preparation agreed

briefs and associated fees and charges annually.

The amendment on being put to the meeting was carried. CARRIED

The amendment then became the motion and on being put to the meeting was carried.

CARRIED
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ICRC18/18 REPORT OF THE SISTER CITIES ADVISORY COMMITTEE - MEETING 7 FEBRUARY
2018 (ID18/251)

The Committee had before it the report of the Sister Cities Advisory Committee meeting held

7 February 2018.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor A Jones
MOTION

That the report of the Sister Cities Advisory Committee meeting held on 7 February 2018,
be adopted.
CARRIED

At this juncture the meeting adjourned, the time being 6.20pm.

The meeting recommenced at 6.37pm.

ICRC18/19 REPLACEMENT OF PENSTOCK AND REFLUX VALVES AT TROY GULLY SEWAGE
PUMP STATION (Q17-043) (1D18/222)

The Committee had before it the report dated 7 February 2018 from the Manager Water

Supply and Sewerage regarding Replacement of Penstock and Reflux Valves at Troy Gully

Sewage Pump Station (Q17-043).

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor A Jones
MOTION

The Committee recommends that members of the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of this item, the reason being that the matter concerned
information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who
supplied it (Section 10A(2)(d)(i)).

CARRIED

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor G Mohr
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That Council accept the quotation from Ted Wilson and Sons for the Replacement of
Penstock and Reflux Valves at the Troy Gully Sewage Pump Station in the amount of
$280,000 (ex GST).

2.  That the necessary documents be executed under the Common Seal of Council.

3. That the documents and consideration in regards to this matter remain confidential
to Council.

CARRIED
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ICRC18/20 WHYLANDRA STREET WATER AND SEWER MAIN REPLACEMENT (T17-013)
(1D18/218)

The Committee had before it the report dated 7 February 2018 from the Manager Water

Supply and Sewerage regarding Whylandra Street Water and Sewer Main Replacement (T17-

013).

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor A Jones
MOTION

The Committee recommends that members of the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of this item, the reason being that the matter concerned
information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who
supplied it (Section 10A(2)(d)(i)).

CARRIED

Moved by Councillor V Etheridge and seconded by Councillor G Mohr
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the Tender of Killard Excavation Pty Ltd in the amount of $997,241.87 (inc GST)
for the construction of new water and sewer mains in Whylandra Street Dubbo be
accepted.

2.  That the necessary documents be executed under the Common Seal of Council.

3. That the documents and consideration in regards to this matter remain confidential
to Council.

CARRIED

ICRC18/21 CONSTRUCTION OF NEW MACQUARIE RIVER WATER SUPPLY UNDERBORE
(T17-039) (1D18/219)

The Committee had before it the report dated 7 February 2018 from the Manager Water

Supply and Sewerage regarding Construction of New Macquarie River Water Supply

Underbore (T17-039).

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor A Jones

MOTION

The Committee recommends that members of the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of this item, the reason being that the matter concerned
information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who

supplied it (Section 10A(2)(d)(i)).
CARRIED
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Moved by Councillor G Mohr and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION

1. That the Tender of Dunstans Construction Group Pty Ltd in the amount of
$640,454.55 (ex GST) for the Construction of New Macquarie River Water supply
Underbore be accepted.

2.  That the necessary documents be executed under the Common Seal of Council.

3. That the documents and consideration in regards to this matter remain confidential
to Council.

CARRIED

ICRC18/22 TENDER - SUPPLY AND INSTALLATION OF PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT AT
DUBBO REGIONAL BOTANIC GARDEN (T17-045) (1D18/232)

The Committee had before it the report dated 11 February 2018 from the Manager

Recreation and Open Space regarding Tender - Supply and Installation of Playground

Equipment at Dubbo Regional Botanic Garden (T17-045).

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor A Jones
MOTION

The Committee recommends that members of the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of this item, the reason being that the matter concerned
information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who
supplied it (Section 10A(2)(d)(i)).

CARRIED

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the information contained within the report of the Manager Recreation and
Open Space dated 11 February 2018 be noted.

2. That GardenScape Design (Dubbo) Pty Ltd be awarded the contract for the Supply and

Installation of Playground Equipment at Dubbo Regional Botanic Garden at a cost of

$660,094 ex GST.

That any necessary documents be executed under the Common Seal of the Council.

4. That the documents and considerations in regard to this matter remain confidential
to Council.

w

CARRIED

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 70



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
26 FEBRUARY 2018 CCL18/19

ICRC18/23 TENDER FOR THE DESIGN, SUPPLY AND INSTALLATION OF A WATER PLAY
AREA AT THE DUBBO AQUATIC LEISURE CENTRE - T17-033 (ID18/195)

The Committee had before it the report dated 30 January 2018 from the Sporting Asset

Coordinator regarding Tender for the Design, Supply and Installation of a Water Play Area at

the Dubbo Aquatic Leisure Centre - T17-033.

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor A Jones
MOTION

The Committee recommends that members of the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of this item, the reason being that the matter concerned
information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who
supplied it (Section 10A(2)(d)(i)).

CARRIED

Moved by Councillor D Grant and seconded by Councillor D Gumley
MOTION

The Committee recommends that:

1. That the information contained within the report of the Sporting Asset Coordinator
dated 30 January 2018 be noted.

2. That the tender of Stanaway Pty Ltd trading as: David Payne Construction (option 2)

be selected for the Design, Supply and Installation of Water Play Area at the Dubbo

Aquatic Leisure Centre of a cost of $888,207 (ex GST).

That any necessary documents be executed under the Common Seal of Council.

4. That the documents and considerations in regards to this matter remain confidential
to Council.

w

CARRIED

The meeting closed at 6.39pm.

CHAIRMAN

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 71



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
26 FEBRUARY 2018 CCL18/20
Report of the Economic Development,

Business and Corporate Committee -
meeting 19 February 2018

ggﬁﬁg{EGIONAL AUTHOR: Administration Officer - Governance

REPORT DATE: 4 January 2018

The Committee had before it the report of the Economic Development, Business and
Corporate Committee meeting held 19 February 2018.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report of the Economic Development, Business and Corporate Committee meeting
held on 19 February 2018, be adopted.
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REPORT
PR Economic DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND
CORPORATE COMMITTEE
coonci. " 19 FEBRUARY 2018

PRESENT: Councillors J Diffey, V Etheridge, D Grant, D Gumley, A Jones, S Lawrence, G Mohr,
K Parker, J Ryan and B Shields.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

The General Manager, the Director Corporate Services, the Manager Governance and Risk (S
Wade), the Administrative Officer Governance, the Director Economic Development and
Business, the Communications Coordinator, the Director Infrastructure and Operations, the
Manager Transport and Emergency, the Manager Water Supply and Sewerage, the Manager
Infrastructure Strategy, the Manager Business Support — Infrastructure, the Director Planning
and Environment, the Manager Building and Development Services, the Statutory Planning
Services Team Leader, the Manager Strategic Planning Services, the Strategic Planning
Supervisor, the Senior Planner, the Director Community and Recreation the Manager Social
Services.

Councillor G Mohr assumed chairmanship of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 6.21pm.

EDBC18/1 REPORT OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE - MEETING 11 DECEMBER 2017 (ID18/8)

The Committee had before it the report of the Economic Development, Business and

Corporate Committee meeting held 11 December 2017.

Moved by Councillor D Grant and seconded by Councillor K Parker

MOTION

The Committee recommends that the report of the Economic Development, Business and

Corporate Committee meeting held on 11 December 2017, be adopted.
CARRIED
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EDBC18/2 2017/2018 OPERATIONAL PLAN - DECEMBER 2017 QUARTERLY REVIEW
(1D18/217)

The Committee had before it the report dated 7 February 2018 from the General Manager

regarding 2017/2018 Operational Plan - December 2017 Quarterly Review.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Councillor J Ryan
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the Quarterly Operational Plan Review Statements as at 31 December 2017, as
attached to the report of the General Manager dated 7 February 2017, be adopted
and such sums voted for such purpose.

2. That the Statement of the Responsible Accounting Officer that Council is in a
satisfactory financial position having regard to the changes herewith to the original
budget, be noted.

3.  That the contracts, consultants, legal expenses and cash and investments information
be noted.

CARRIED

EDBC18/3 PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND PROVISION OF FACILITIES FOR THE MAYOR AND
COUNCILLORS (1D18/224)

The Committee had before it the report dated 7 February 2018 from the General Manager

regarding Payment of Expenses and Provision of Facilities for the Mayor and Councillors.

Moved by Councillor V Etheridge and seconded by Councillor D Gumley

MOTION

The Committee recommends that the policy "Payment of Expenses and Provision of
Facilities for the Mayor and Councillors" as attached as Appendix 1 to the report of the
General Manager dated 7 February 2018, be placed on Public Exhibition for a period of

twenty eight (28) days inviting the public to make submissions.
CARRIED
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EDBC18/4 ESTABLISHMENT OF JOINT ORGANISATIONS (1D18/230)
The Committee had before it the report dated 9 February 2018 from the General Manager
regarding Establishment of Joint Organisations.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor S Lawrence
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That Council receive and note the information contained within the report of the
General Manager dated 9 February 2018.

2. That Council hold a workshop in March 2018 to review the benefits of a Joint
Organisation after the Regulations are released.

3. That a further report regarding Council potentially joining a joint organisation be
prepared by the General Manager for Council’s consideration in March 2018.

CARRIED

EDBC18/5 MANAGING UNREASONABLE COMPLAINANT CONDUCT (UCC) POLICY
(1ID18/238)

The Committee had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from the Internal

Ombudsman regarding Managing Unreasonable Complainant Conduct (UCC) Policy.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor D Gumley
MOTION

The Committee recommends that the draft Unreasonable Complainant Conduct (UCC)
Policy as attached to the report of the Internal Ombudsman dated 12 February 2018 as
Appendix 1 be adopted.

CARRIED

EDBC18/6 INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 625 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT -
JANUARY 2018 (ID18/212)

The Committee had before it the report dated 5 February 2018 from the Director Corporate

Services regarding Investments Under Section 625 of the Local Government Act - January

2018.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor J Diffey
MOTION
The Committee recommends that the information provided within the report of the

Director Corporate Services, dated 5 February 2018 be noted.
CARRIED
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Councillor K Parker declared a non-pecuniary, less than significant interest in the matter now
before the Committee and left the room and was out of sight during the Committee’s
consideration of this matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor K Parker is the
Manager of the Dubbo Branch of the Bank of Queensland, a bank that Council has funds
invested with.

EDBC18/7 INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 625 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT -
DECEMBER 2017 (ID18/211)

The Committee had before it the report dated 5 February 2018 from the Director Corporate

Services regarding Investments Under Section 625 of the Local Government Act - December

2017.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor D Gumley
MOTION

The Committee recommends that the information provided within the report of the
Director Corporate Services, dated 5 February 2018 be noted.
CARRIED

Councillor K Parker declared a non-pecuniary, less than significant interest in the matter now
before the Committee and left the room and was out of sight during the Committee’s
consideration of this matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor K Parker is the
Manager of the Dubbo Branch of the Bank of Queensland, a bank that Council has funds
invested with.

EDBC18/8 CODE OF MEETING PRACTICE (1D18/210)
The Committee had before it the report dated 5 February 2018 from the Manager
Governance and Risk regarding Code of Meeting Practice.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Councillor B Shields

MOTION

The Committee recommends that the draft Code of Meeting Practice and Meeting
Procedures as appended to the report of the Manager Governance and Risk dated 5

February 2018 be adopted.
CARRIED
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EDBC18/9 COMMUNITY SUPPORT BASED PROCUREMENT POLICY (ID18/245)
The Committee had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from the Manager Financial
Operations regarding Community Support Based Procurement Policy.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor D Gumley
MOTION

The Committee recommends that the draft Community Support Based Procurement Policy
as attached to the report of the Manager Financial Operations dated 12 February 2018 be
adopted.

CARRIED

EDBC18/10 REQUEST FOR REVIEW OF WATER CONSUMPTION AND NON-RESIDENTIAL

SEWER CHARGES ISSUED FOR 135-141 BRISBANE STREET DUBBO (ID18/202)
The Committee had before it the report dated 1 February 2018 from the Revenue Accountant
regarding Request for review of Water Consumption and Non-Residential Sewer Charges
issued for 135-141 Brisbane Street Dubbo.

Moved by Councillor S Lawrence and seconded by Councillor D Grant
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the Non-Residential Sewer Charges issued for the period 1 December 2016 to 2
June 2017, being billing periods 3 and 4 of the 2016/2017 financial year, be adjusted
with the accounts to be based on average water consumption for the corresponding
billing periods for the last three financial years.

2. That as a result of recommendation 1 above an amount of $20,698.70 be written off.

CARRIED

Councillor D Gumley declared a non-pecuniary, less than significant interest in the matter now
before the Committee and remained in the room during the Committee’s consideration of this
matter. The reason for such interest is that Dubbo Court House is a location where Councillor
D Gumley performs a significant part of his employment and that such interest would not
impair his decision making on the matter.

Councillor G Mohr declared a non-pecuniary, less than significant interest in the matter now
before the Committee and remained in the room during the Committee’s consideration of this
matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor G Mohr is employed by the Department
of Justice, Dubbo Court House is one of his work locations and that such interest would not
impair his decision making on the matter.
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EDBC18/11 REQUEST FOR ADJUSTMENT TO NON-RESIDENTIAL SEWER AND TRADE
WASTE ACCOUNTS FOR 161 BRISBANE STREET DUBBO (1D18/193)

The Committee had before it the report dated 1 February 2018 from the Revenue Accountant

regarding Request for Adjustment to Non-Residential Sewer and Trade Waste Accounts for

161 Brisbane Street Dubbo.

Moved by Councillor K Parker and seconded by Councillor D Grant
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the Non-Residential Sewer Charges and Trade Waste Treatment Charges for the
period 2 June 2017 to 1 December 2017, being billing period 1 and 2 of the 2017/2018
financial year, be adjusted with the accounts to be based on the average water
consumption for the corresponding billing periods for the last three financial years.

2. That as a result of recommendation 1 above an amount of $21,190.32 be written off.

CARRIED

At this juncture the meeting adjourned, the time being 6.34pm.

The meeting recommenced at 6.36pm.

EDBC18/12 THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROPOSED AEROMEDICAL FACILITY AT THE
DUBBO CITY REGIONAL AIRPORT (T17-050) (ID18/244)

The Committee had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from the Director Economic

Development and Business regarding The Construction of the Proposed Aeromedical Facility

at the Dubbo City Regional Airport (T17-050).

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor A Jones

MOTION

The Committee recommends that members of the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of this item, the reason being that the matter concerned
information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who

supplied it (Section 10A(2)(d)(i)).
CARRIED
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Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge

MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the tender from MAAS Civil Pty Ltd be accepted in the amount of $2,095,347.24
(ex GST).

2. That any necessary documentation in relation to this matter be executed under the
common seal of the Council.

3. That the documents and considerations in regard to this matter remain confidential
to Council.

CARRIED

EDBC18/13 QUOTATION FOR THE RELOCATION OF BUILDINGS AT THE RURAL FIRE
SERVICE TRAINING FACILITY (Q17-042) (1D18/231)

The Committee had before it the report dated 9 February 2018 from the Manager Property

Assets regarding Quotation for the Relocation of Buildings at the Rural Fire Service Training

Facility (Q17-042).

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor A Jones
MOTION

The Committee recommends that members of the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of this item, the reason being that the matter concerned
information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who
supplied it (Section 10A(2)(d)(i)).

CARRIED

Moved by Councillor V Etheridge and seconded by Councillor D Grant
MOTION

The Committee recommends:

1. That negotiations are carried out with the three building owners and an alternative
arrangement be approved by the General Manager and the Project Working Group
with regard to their relocation/demolition.

2. That the documents and considerations in regard to this matter remain confidential
to Council.

CARRIED

The meeting closed at 6.37pm.

CHAIRMAN
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Report of the Audit and Risk Management

dﬁ Committee - meeting 19 February 2018

DUBBO REGIONAL AUTHOR: Administration Officer - Governance
COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 15 February 2018

The Committee had before it the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
meeting held 19 February 2018.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee meeting held on 19
February 2018, be adopted.

Appendices:
10  Reports - Audit and Risk Management Committee - 19 February 2018
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REPORT
PR¥ AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE
coonci. " 19 FEBRUARY 2018

PRESENT:
Core Members (Voting):

Councillor B Shields, Mr A Fletcher (Independent Member) and Mr J Walkom (Independent
Member).

Attendees (Non-Voting):

Councillor A Jones, Mr M Monarco and Ms R Meimaroglou (Audit Office) via teleconference,
the General Manager, the Internal Auditor, the Director Corporate Services, the Manager
Financial Operations, Mr J Shanks (Luka Group) and the Audit/Statutory Accountant.

Mr J Walkom assumed chairmanship of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 11.02am.

AUD18/1 PRESENTATION OF COUNCIL'S 2016/2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(1D18/240)

The Committee had before it the report dated 12 February 2018 from the Manager Financial

Operations regarding Presentation of Council's 2016/2017 Financial Statements.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the information provided in the report by the Manager Financial Operations on
Dubbo Regional Council 2017 Financial Statements and External Auditor’s Report /
Update be noted.

2.  The Audit and Risk Management Committee is not aware of any issues that would
preclude the Dubbo Regional Council from adopting the financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2017 as presented. The Audit and Risk Management Committee
has reviewed and discussed the audit process and received confirmation from the
External Auditor that:

. They have been provided access to all necessary records.
° Auditor staff are suitably qualified to conduct the audit.
° Had sufficient time to completed.

. Items identified have been resolved to their satisfaction.
. Representations made in the External Auditors Client Services Report have been
noted.
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The meeting closed at 11.36am.

CHAIRMAN
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
19 FEBRUARY 2018

AUD18/1

' REPORT: Presentation of Council's
\ 2016/2017 Financial Statements

DUBBO REGIONAL

COUNCIL

AUTHOR: Manager Financial Operations
REPORT DATE: 12 February 2018
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/240

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Local Government Act 1993 requires that Council prepare financial statements annually
and must meet specific requirements in preparing and presenting the annual finandial
statements.

Section 413 of the Local Government Act 1993, provides as follows:

413 (1)

()

3)

A Council must prepare financial reports for each year, and must refer them for
audit as soon as practicable (having regard to the requirements of section 416(1))
after the end of that year.

A council's financial reports must include:

(a)  ageneral purpose financial report: and

(b) any other matter prescribed by the requlations, and

(c) a statement in the approved form by the Council as to its opinion on the
general purpose financial report.

The general purpose financial report must be prepared in accordance with this Act

[Local Government Act 1993] and the regulations, and requirements of:

(a)  the publications issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board, as in
force for the time being, subject to the requlations, and

(b)  such other standards as may be prescribed by the requlations.

Clause 214 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 imposes additional
requirements for preparation of a Council's financial reports.

(1)

2)

For the purpose of Section 413(2)(b) of the Act, any matters required by the Code
[Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting] or the
Manual [Local Government Asset Accounting Manual] to be included in Council's
financial reports are prescribed matters.

For the purpose of section 413(3)(b) of the Act, the Code and the Manual are
prescribed standards.

Section 416(1) of the Local Government Act 1993 requires that: "A Council's financial reports
for a year must be prepared and audited within the period of 4 months after the end of that
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year”. Due to the amalgamation between the former Dubbo City and Wellington Council’s an
extension to lodge Councils 2016/2017 financial statements was granted by the Office of
Local Government until the 28 February 2018.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: The audited Financial Statements are presented to the community to
provide them a better understanding of Council’s financial position and to ensure they are
true and fair with no material misstatement. Notes in the Financial Statements are designed
to provide users with additional information on items appearing in the Income Statement
and Balance Sheet.

Integrity: Section 413 of the Local Government Act 1993, provides as that the general
purpose financial report must be prepared in accordance with this Act and the regulations,
and requirements of the publications issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board,
as in force for the time being, subject to the regulations, and such other standards as may be
prescribed by the regulations.

One Team: Preparation of the Annual Financial Statements requires coordination and input
from across all of Council’s operations.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial statements show Council to be in a sound financial position as at 30 June 2017.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 be accepted by the
Council.

2.  That the Audit Reports for the General Purpose Financial Statements and the Audit
Reports for the Special Purpose Financial Statements be tabled at the Ordinary
Meeting of Council to be held on 26 February 2018.

Jane Bassingthwaighte
Manager Financial Operations

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 3

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Page 84




APPENDIX NO: 1 - REPORTS - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE -
19 FEBRUARY 2018

ITEM NO: CCL18/21

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
19 FEBRUARY 2018 AU D18/1

REPORT

The General Purpose Financial Statements of Council for the year ended 30 June 2017 have
been completed in accordance with the above requirements. The Statements required by
Section 413(2)(c) are attached.

In regard to preparation, the financial reports were prepared outside the time frame
prescribed by Section 416(1) as an extension was granted under Section 416(2) of the Act
where Council applies for an extension, and 416(3) of the Act where the auditor requests an
extension, which was granted until 28 February 2018. The extensions were granted due to
the complication of the financial year being the 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017 and the
2016/2017 Financial Statements being the first consolidated set of financial statements for
the new entity Dubbo Regional Council.

As required by the Australian Accounting Standard AASB 101, the General Purpose Financial
Statements are prepared on a consolidated basis and includes all entities of the Council as
well as Council's interest in the Macquarie Regional Library Joint Venture. The following
entities are included in the general purpose financial reports:

General Purpose Operations

Water Supply

Sewerage

Macquarie Regional Library Joint Venture

The General Purpose Financial Statements consists of an Income Statement which provides
information on the changes in net assets resulting from operations, a Statement of
Comprehensive Income which includes transfers to and from Revaluation Reserves,
Statement of Financial Position, which shows the assets and liabilities of the Council at the
end of the year, Statement of Changes in Equity which shows the movement in equity for the
year and Statement of Cash Flows which provides information on inflows and outflows of
cash for the year, Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements which provide more
detail on items appearing in the statements. The statements also consist of Special Schedules
which are required by the Code of Accounting Practice and provide further detail on cost of
services and other statistical information required by special purpose users such as the Office
of Local Government and the Office of Environment and Heritage, and Special Purpose
Financial Statements designed to meet National Competition Policy reporting requirements
for Category 1 and 2 businesses.

In regard to the financial results for the year, the Income Statement shows the change in net
assets resulting from operations for the year to be a $61.271m surplus. Significant items
relating to the Income statement are as follows.

1. Included in revenues is an amount of $10.58m, which is the value of infrastructure

assets that have been contributed by developers as a result of subdivision
developments during 2016/2017.
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2. Capital Grants and Contributions amounted to $28.563m, which includes the $9m
provided from the State Government for the amalgamation of the former Dubbo City
Council and Wellington Council.

3. The first instalment of the Financial Assistance Grants (FAG) of $5.466m for 2017/2018
has been paid in advance. This will have a significant positive effect on the 2016/2017
Operating Ratio and Operating Result from continuing operations, but will adversely
impact the 2017/2018 Financial Year result if the 2018/2019 Financial Assistance Grant
is also not also paid in advance.

4. New Council implementation Fund of $5m provided from the State Government for the
amalgamation of the former Dubbo City Council and Wellington Council.

5. Community Grant Funding of $1m provided from the State Government for the
amalgamation of the former Dubbo City Council and Wellington Council.

It must be noted that the net operating result for the period before grants and contributions
provided for capital purposes is $25.116m surplus.

Expenditure on the acquisition of infrastructure assets such as roads, footpaths, cycleways,
stormwater drainage, water and sewer infrastructure, parks, gardens, plant and equipment
are funded from cash flows from operating activities and amounted to $52.872m, excluding
the value of assets contributed by developers.

The Statement of Financial Position indicates that Council is in a sound financial position with
Net Current Assets of $63.27m.

Cash and Investments total $188.125m, which is significant, however, it should be noted that
there are restrictions on the future use of these funds as follows. As per the details on Note 6,
the following restrictions have been imposed by legislation or other externally imposed
requirements:

$'000
Developer Contributions
-Section 94 (EP & A Act) &
Section 64 (Local Government Act) 11,609

Unexpended Grants 21,776
Water & Sewer Services

(The assets of these Funds can only be used

for the purposes of the fund) 72,465
Domestic Waste Management Services

(The assets can only be used

for Domestic Waste purposes) 3,248

Stormwater Drainage
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(The assets can only be used
for Stormwater purposes) 3,204

Total External Restrictions $112,302

As also detailed on Note 6, Council has previously resolved to set aside funds in the form of
specific cash or investments for future long term purposes with these internally restricted
assets totalling $71.997m.

In terms of available funds, the balance at 30 June 2017 was $3.826m disclosed as the
unrestricted cash after internal and external restrictions have been deducted from total cash
held.

In the 2016/2017 financial year, Council was required by the Code of Accounting Practice to
revalue its Water and Sewerage assets. As a result of this revaluation and reassessment of
remaining useful lives, the value of these classes of assets increased by $122.836m.

Section 413(1) requires Council to prepare Financial Reports for each year and refer them for
audit as soon as practicable (having regard to the requirements of Section 416(1). Section
415(1) provides that the Council's auditor must audit the Council's Financial Reports as soon
as practicable (having regard to the requirements of Section 416(1)) after they are referred
for audit. Section 417 details the requirements of the Auditor's Reports. A Council's auditor
must prepare two (2) reports:

. a report on the General Purpose Financial Statements
. a report on the conduct of the audit.

These reports must include statements by the Auditor as to his opinion on various matters
including the keeping of accounting records, preparation of the Financial Statements and any
information relevant to the conduct of the audit. The audit certificates and report on conduct
of audit will be tabled by Council’s auditor on the day of the February 2018 meeting of the
Audit and Risk Management Committee.

Section 418 provides that as soon as practicable after the Council receives a copy of the
Auditor's report:

(a) it must fix a date for the meeting at which it proposes to present its audited Financial
Statements, together with the Auditors reports to the public; and
(b) it must give public notice of the date so fixed.

The date fixed for the meeting must be at least seven (7) days after the date on which the
notice is given but not more than five (5) weeks after the Auditor's reports are given to the
Council. Section 419 requires that Council must present its audited financial reports, together
with the Auditor's reports at a meeting of the Council held on the date fixed for the meeting
and Council's Auditor may, and if so required in writing by the Council, must attend the
meeting at which the Financial Reports are presented. The required Public Notice will be
given by advertisement in the Daily Liberal on Monday 19 February 2018. The Public Notice
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advises that the Council will present its audited financial statements, together with the
Auditor's reports, to the public at its Ordinary meeting to be held on Monday 26 February
2018.

It should also be noted that Section 420 provides that any person may make submissions to
the Council with respect to the Council's audited Annual financial statements or with respect
to the Auditors reports. A submission must be in writing and must be lodged with the Council
within seven (7) days after the date on which those reports are presented to the public. The
Council must ensure that copies of all submissions received by it are referred to the Auditor.
The Council may take such action as it considers appropriate with respect to any such
submission, including the giving of notice to the Director-General of any matter that appears
to require amendment of the Council's financial reports.

Appendices:
1]  General Purpose Financial Statements 2016/2017
21 Special Purpose Financial Statements 2016/2017
31  Special Schedules 2016/2017
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Dubbo Regional Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Contents Page

1. Statement by Councillors and Management 2

2. Primary Financial Statements:

— Income Statement

— Statement of Comprehensive Income
— Statement of Financial Paositian

— Statement of Changes in Equity

— Statement of Cash Flows

[

Mot R

. Notes to the Financial Statements 8

4. Independent Auditor’s Reports:

— On the Financial Statement (Sect 417 [2]) 79
= On the Conduct of the Audi (Sect 417 [3]) 82

Overview

m)

)

menls are General Purpose Financial Slalements and cover Lhe operalions for
Counal

These fin
Nubbo Regic

Dubbo Regional Councl is a body polilic of NSW, Auslmabs — being consliluled as a local govenmen| ares
by proclamatien and is duly empawersd by the Local Covemment Act 1993 (LGA).

Council's quiding principles are detailad in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:

principles applying io the exercise of funclions generally by council

prnciples 1o be apphad when making dacisions,

principles of community particpation,
principles of sound financial managemant, and

principles for shalegic planning relaling Lo Lhe development of an mlegraled planning and reporling lamework
A dascription of the nature of Council's operations and its principal activities are provided in Note 2(b)
All figures presented in these financial statements are presented in Australian curency

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Ceuncil on de/mm/yy.
Council has the powsr to amend and reissue these financial statements.

Fage 1
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Dubbo Regional Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant o Secticn 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1983 (NSWW) (as amended)

The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
= the Local Government Act 1933 (NSW) (as amended) and the regulations made thersunder,
* the Australian Accounting Standards anc professicnal pronouncements. and

* the Local Government Cede of Accounting Practice and Financial Reparting

Ta the best of our knowledge and belief, these financial statem ents:

*  pressnt fairly the Council's eperating result and financial pesiticn for the pariod 13 May 2016
to 30 June 2017, and

* accord with Council's accounting and other records

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in anmy way.

Slaned In accordance with a reselution of Council made on 26 February 2018,

Gon Shields Annemarie Jones OAM
Mayor Councillor
Michael Mohahon Jane: Hassang|hwag hle
General Manager Responsible accounting officer
page 2
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Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

5 '000

Income from conlinuing operations

Revenue:

Rates and annual charges

User charges and fees

Interest and investment revenue

Other revenues

Grants and contributiens provided for operating purpeses
Grants and centributiens provided for capitel purposes
Other income:

Net gains from the disposal of assets

Net share of interests in joint ventures and

assoclates using the equity method

Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benafits end on-costs

Berrewing costs

Materials anc contracts

Depredation and amortisation

Other expenses

Total expenses from continuing operations
Operating resuft from continuing operations
Net operating result for the period

Gain on local government amalgamation

Assets and liabilities transferred from former councils

Net result for the period

Net cperating result atiributable to Council

Net operating result for the period before grants and
cankributions provided for capital purposes

I'his siatement shoud be read in conpunction with the acoe mpaming netes.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Actual
13516
to 30/6M17

59,787
55.912
6,291
1,778
37,884
36,155

3,69

183
201,796
43,183
5,215
38,940

35131
18,056

140,525

61,271

61,271

2,266,670
2,327,941

2 397 841

2116
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Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

§°'000

Net result for the year (as per Income Statement)

Other comprehensive income:

Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result
Gain (loss} on revaluation of |PP&LC

Total irems which will not be reclassified subsequently

1o the operating result

Amounts which will be reclassified subsequently to the operating result

when specific condtions are met
NIl

Total other comprehensive income far the period

Total comprehensive income for the penod

Total comprehensive income attributable to Council

I'his siatement shoud be read in conpunction with the acoe mpaming netes.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Actual
13516
to 30/6M17

2,327,941

122,836

122 836

122,836

2,450,777

2,450,777
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Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2017

§°'000

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Receivables

Inventeries

Other

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Investments

Receivables

Inventories

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Investments accounted for using the equity method
Other

Total non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIAEILITIES

Current liabilities
Payatbles

Income received in advance
Borrowings

Provisions

Taotal current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Payables

Borrowings

Provisions

Total non-current liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net asseis

EQUITY
Retalned earnings
Revaluation reserves

Total equity

I'his siatement shoud be read in conpunction with the acoe mpanying netes.
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Actual

2017

25,752
45138
18,198
1,876
483
91,427

117.235
758

1,893
2,335,646
1,333

435
2,457,457

2 548 884

7,688
770
4,652
15,047
28,157

1
67,356
2,593
69,950
98,107

2450777

2,327,941
122,836

2,450 777
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Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

13/5/16 to 30/6/117

S ‘000

Opening balance

a. Comection of prior period crrors

b. Changes in accounting policies (prioryea effects)
Revised opening balance

c. Net result for the year

d. Other comprehensive incomc
— Revaluations: IPMP&E asset revaluation resene
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income (c&a)

€. Distibuiions to/icontrbutio 7S from) non-cortroling interests
1. Transfars between equty

Equity — balance at end of the reporting period

This stalement should be read in corjunction w th the accompanying notes

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Asset
revaluation Other
Retained reserve resenves

earnings

2,327,911 - -
- 122,636 -
- 122,836 -
2,327 941 122,836 —
2,327 911 122,836 -

Council
interest

2,327,941

122,836
122,836

2,450,777

2460,777

Financial Statements 2017

Non-
controlling
interest

Total
equity

2,327,941
122,836

122,836

2,450,777

2,480,777

g
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Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Cash Flows
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Actual
135116
§°000 to 30/6M17
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts:
Rates and annual charges 66,266
User charges and fees 57,616
Investment and interest revenue recelved 6,183
Grants and contributions 66,592
Eonds, deposliis and retention amounts recelved 305
Other £.082
Payments:
Employee benelfits and cn-costs (42,612)
Materials and contracts (47,744
Borrowing costs (5.707)
Other (19,475)
Net cash provided (or used in) operaling activities 89 466
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipis:
Sale of Investment securities 38,594
Sale of real eslate assets 48862
Sale of infrastructurs, proparty, plant and equipment 2,562
Deferred daebtors receipts 80
Payments:
Purchese of nvestment sacurities (122,268)
Purchase of nfrastructure, property. plant and equipment (52,872)
Purchase of real estate assets (860)
Deferred dabtors and advances made (472)
Net cash provided (or used In) Investing activities (80,274)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts:
Nil
Paymenis
Repayment of borrewings and advancas (5.434)
Net cash flow provided {used in) financing aclivities (5,434)
Net increasef(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,758
Pus. cash transferred on amalgamation of councils 21,994
Cash and cash equivalents — end of the year 25,752
Additional Infermation
rls' Investments on hand — end of year 162,373
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 188,125
Please refer to Note 11 for infermation on the following:
Mon-cash linancing and invesling sclivlios
—Hinancing arangements
—Net cash flow disclosures relating 1o any discontinued operations
I is s@Etement shoud be read in conpnchion with the acoo mpamang notes. page
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Contents of the notes accompanying the financial statements

Note

21
22
23

25
26
27
28
29

30

Details

Summary of significant accounting policies

Council funclions/aclivities — inancial information

Council functions/activities — component descriptions

Income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations

Gains or losses from the disposal of assels

Cash and cash equivalent assets

Investments

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details
Receivables

Inventaries and other assets

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Externally restricted infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Infrastruciure, property, plant and equipment — cument year impairments
Payables, bormowings and provisions

Description of (and mavements in} pravisions

Statement of cash flows — additional infarmation

Commitments for expenditure

Statement of performance measures

13a Local government industry indicators (consohdsled)
13b Local government industry indicators (b Mnd)y
Investment properties

Financial risk management

Material budget variations

Statement of developer contributions

Contingencies and other liabilties/assets not recognised
Interests in other entites

Retainad sarnings. revaluation reserves, changes in accounting
palicies, changes in accounting estimates and erors

Financial result and financial pasition by fund

'Held for sale’ non-current assets and disposal groups
Events occurnng afler the reporting date
Discontinued operations

Intangible assets

Reinstaterment, rehabilitation and restoration liabilities
Fair value measurement

Related party disclosures

Local Government amalgamation

A

es

Council infarmation and contact details

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Fimancial Statements 2017

el
&
]

]

WM
oo

B6
B8
68
B8
68
69

78
76

78
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Financial Statements 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounling policies adoplod n The
preparation  of these consolidated  financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistent'y applied to all the years presented,
unless ctherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The local government (Council Amalgamatons)
Prociamation 2016 [the Proclamation’) under the
Local Government Act 1883 (NSW) transferred the
assets and labilities of two former councils

* Dubba City Council
= Waellingten Council

to Dubba Regional Council as at 12 May 2016,

Pursuant fo the Froclamatan, financial statements
have been preparcd lor The penod ocom ingg on
the date of establishment of Dubbe Regional
Council, being 13 May 2076 and ending on 20 June
2017,

Fulure reporling poriods will be from 1 July 1o 30
June af the relevant years.

Assels and liabilities of Dubbo City Council and
Wallington Council have been recognised by the
Dubbo Hegonal Gounal &l e camying amaounl
recorded by Lhe former council

Dubbo  Regional Council believes  lhe  canying
amounts are not materielly different from their fair
walues as atthe date of transfer 12 May 2018

The fair value of the net assets has been shown as a
gain on local govemment amalgamation in the
ncome statement and further mformation s provided
in Male 26

These ceneral purpose financial statements have
been prepared in accerdance with

+ Australian  Accounting  Standards  and
Australian Accounting Interpretations issued
by the Ausirelian Accounling Stancards
Board

« the Local Gavernment Act 1693 (MNSW) and
Regqulations, and

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

« the Local Covemment Code of Accounting
Practice and Iinancial Repaorting

doemed ta be a not tor profit entity tor tho
[ propanng lhe Mnancial slalomonls

purpo:

(i) New and amended standards adopted by
Council

Thoro have boen no new aceounling slandar
adopted in this year's financial statements which
have had any material impact on reparted finencial
positicn, performance or cash flows.

(i) Early adeption of standards

Council  has not elected 1o apply any
pronouncements befors their operative date in the
reparting pencd beginning 12 May 2016,

[iii) Histerical cost convention

These financial statemenis have been prepared
under the historical cast convention except for:

s certain financial assets and liabilities at fair
wvalue through profit or loss and availa ble-for-
sale financial assats, which are all valued at
fair value,

= the write down of any asset an the basis of
impairment {if warranted), and

» certain classes of non-current assets (eq
infrastructure, praperty. plant and equipmant
and invastment propery) that are accountad
tor atfair valuatan

The accrual basis of accounting has alsc been
applied in their preparation
and

(iv) Significant estimates

judgements

accounting

The prepamlion of Ninancial salemenls requires The
use of certain critical accounting estimates {in
canfermity with AASDs)

Accordingly this requires management (o exercise ts
Judgement in the process of applying lhe Gouncil's
acoounting policies

Cstmates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on histoncal expenence and othar
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Tor lhe period 13 May 2016 1o 30 Junc 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounling policies (contnucd)

lacdors neluding expeclalions of Tulure ovenls hal
may have & financial impact on the Council and that

are believec 1o be reasonable under the
circumstances

Critical ting esti and :
Council  mekes estimates and  essumptions

concerning the future

I he resulling accounbng cshmales will by dol
seldom cgual the relaled acluasl resulls.

The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material agjustment to
the camyirg amounts ef assets and liabilities within
the next linancial year include:

(i) Estimated fair values of Infrastructure, Property,
Flant and Equipment,

(1) Estimated remediation previsions

Significant judgements in applying the Council's
accounting policles

(i) Impairment of Receivables

Gouneil has made & significant juigemenl sboal The
impairment of a number of its receivables in Mote 7

(b) Revenue recagnition

Rates and Federal Assistance Grants (FAG)
revenue fo 30 June 018 were recognised in the
lomer  Gouncils  (nancial  slalomonls as per
Australian Accounting Standards and directive from
the Office of Local Government.

Ihese statements recognise rates and FAGS
rewenue from 1 July 2046, bul a2l olhor revenue and
expenditure from 13 May 2016.

Courncil recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, It 1= probable thal
Tulure: coonomic benehls will low o he Council and
spachic crntena have been met tor each of tha
Council’s activities as described below

Council bases Its estimates on histoncal results,
tatung inta corsiderabon the type of customer, the
Iype of I aclion and  lhe spocifies of each
arangomenl

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Rovenue s mossumd al lhe (g valoe ol lhe
cansiceration received or receivable. Revenue |5
measured on major income categories as follows:

(i) Rates, annual charges, grants and
cantributions
Rates. ennual charges, grants and contributions

(including ceveloper contributions) are recognisec as
revenue when the Council obtains control over the
assels comprsing Ihose receipls

Caontrol aver assets acquired from rates and annual
charges is obtained at the commencement of the
rating year as it is an enforceable dsbt linked to the
rateable preperty or, where earlier, upon receipt of
the rates.

A provision for imparment on rales recelvebles has
not been established es unpaid rates represent a
charge against the rateable property that wil be
recovered when the property 1s next sold.

Canbrol over granted  ssscls/conbibulod assols s
nemally obtained upon their receipt (or acquital) or
upon earlier notfication that a grant has heen
sacured, and = valued at their fair value at the cate
of transfar

Revenue from contributions is recognised when the
Council either cbtains contral of the contribution or
the right to receive It, and (i) it is probable that the
economic benefits comprising the contrbubion will
flow lo lbe Cowncil and () lbe amounl of lhe
contribution can be measured reliably

Where grants or contributions recognised as
revenues during the financial year wera obtained an
cardilon  [hal lhey be oxpended noa par e
manner or used over a parlicular penod and lhose
conditions were un-discherged at reporiing date, the
unused grant or confribution is disclosed in [Note
3g)

Maole 3g) also discloses The amount of onosed granl
or contibution fram prior years that was expended
on Council's operations during the cumrent year.

Ihe Council has obligations to provide tacilties from
canlribulion revenues levied on developers onder he
provesion ol 584 ol lhe FPA Ac! 1878

Whilst Council generally incorparates these amounts
as part of a Development Consents Order, such
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounling policies (contnucd)

dovelopor conlribu are only recognised  as
income upon their physical receipt by Council. due ta
the possibility that individual development consents
may not be acted upon by the applicant and
accondingly would not be payable to Council

Developer contributions may only be expended for
the purposes for which the contributions were
required. but the Council may apply contributions
according fo the pnontes establshed n wark
schodules

A detailed note relating to developer contributions
can be found at Mote 17.

(i) User charges, fees and other income

Usor charg and [oos are roeognised as mwvenuo
when the sarvice has been provided or when the
penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs
Parking fines are only recognised on receipl of the
tines trom the Otfice of State Kevenue, as it only at
Ihis e hal Counel bas conlrol over lhe y11s]

A pravision far the impairment of these recevables
is recognised when collection in full is na langer
probable

A liabilily 15 recogmised in respecl of mevenoe hal s
reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite
service has not been provided as at balance cate.

{iii) Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined
when confrol of the asset has irrevocably passed to
the buysr.

{iv}) Interest

Interest income from cash and investments Is
accountad for using the effective interest rate at the
date that interest s eamed

(v) Rent

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the lease term

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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(wi) Other income

Other income is recorded when the payment is due,
the value of the payment is notified, or the payment
15 recaived, whichever occurs first

(c) Principles of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the
financial positicn and performance of controllied
entities from the date on which control is obtained
untl the date that controlis lost

In the process of reporting on Council’s activities as a
single wnit, &/l inter-entity year end belances and
reparting pericd transactions have been eliminated in
full between Caouncil and its controlled entites

(i) The consclidated fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409{1)
of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), all money
and property received by Council is held in the
Counal's consoldated fund unless it s required to be
held in lhe Council's rosk Tumd

The consolidated fund end other entties through
which the Council controls resources to carry on its
funchions have been ncluded n the financial
slaloments lormmg parl al s reporl

The following eniities have been included as pari of
the consolidated fund:

= (General purpose operalions
= Walor senim
= Sewerage service

(ii) The trust fund

s ol Seclion 411 of

In accon 1 wilh Tho pro
the Local Govemment Act 1923 (NSW) (as
amended), a separete and distingt trust fund is

maintained 1o account for all money and property
recerved by the Council in frust which must be
apphicd only [ar lhe porposes ol of N gccordanee
with the trusts relahing ta those monias

Trust menies and property subject to Council's
control have been induded in these reports
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounling policies (contnucd)

Trusl monies and propedy held by Council bul nol
subject ta the control of Council have been excluded
from these reports

A separale statement of monies held in the trust
Tund 15 available for mspeclion sl lhe Council office
by any person frea of charga.

{iii) County councils

ol & nol & mombor ol any counly caouncils

{iv} Interests in other entities

Subsidiaries

Council has no mierestin any subsidEnes.

Jaint ventures

Joint veniures represenl operational arrangsmenis

where the joint control parlies have nghts to the net
5 i 0l lhe amrangemenl

Any interests in joint venturas are accounted for
using the equity method and are carried at cast

Under tha equty method, Council's share of tha
aparalion's profl o oss s meogniscd o The
income statement and its share of movements in
retained eamings and reserves are recognised in the
statement of financial position.

Delailed  informabon rolaling  lo Council's  joinl
ventures can be found at Note 19 (b).

(d) Leases

All leases enlered inlo by Counal are reviewed and
classified on inception date as either a finance lsase
ar an operaling lease. Council has no finance
leases

QOperating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the nisks anc
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are

classiiad as oparaling leases

Payments made under aperating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
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[hiee yne slalemenl on a slraighl line basis over
the penod of the lease.

Leasa income from cperating leases whare Council
15 a lassor |s recognised as mcome on a straght-ine
basis over The lease lenm

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

[or statement of cash flow presentation purposes,
cash and cash aquivalents includes:

« cashon hand;

at  call with  financial

= other short-tarm, highly liquid investments
wilh o M s ol 1 » monlbe or
loss lhal am readily convorlible o known
amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value; and

=)

*  bank overdralls.

Bank overdrafts are shown within bormowings in
current liabiltiss on the statement of financal
postion but are incorporated info cash and cash
cguivalenls for presenlalion al lhe slalemenl of cash
flaws.

(f) Investments and other financial assets
Classification

Councl {in accordance with AASH 138) classifes
cach of ils imveslmenls inlo one af he Tollowing

categories far measurement purposes

o financial assels &l faie value Theaugh pofil o
loss;

»  Ioans and receivablos
s held-to-maturity investments; and
o auailable-lor-ssle Mnancisl assels
Cach classification depends on the purpose or

intention for which the investments were acquired
and al The lime | was aogued
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounling policies (contnucd)

delormines wach investmenl
classification at the time of initial recognition and re-
evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

(i) Financial assets al fair value through profit or
loss

Finencial assets at fair velue throuch prefit or loss
are financial assets that are "hele for rrading”

A hinancial assel
calegory 1 gegured pnn
=elling in the short-term.

xin the Cheld Tar lrading
pally for lhe purpose of

Assels In this category are primarly cassified as
current asseis as they are primarily held for trading
and/or expectad to be realised wihin 12 months of
Ihe reparling dale

(I Loans and recelvables
Loans and recervables are non-dervative financial

wilh lixedd or diel ikl paym 5 Ihal
quoled insn aclve makoel

n

They arise when the Council provides money. goods
or services diredly to the debtor with no intention [or
n soma casas ahbility] of seling the resuling
roeceveblo

They are includad in current assels. except far those
with maturities greater than 12 menths after the
reporting date which that are classified as non-
cunnenl assels

{Ill} Held-to-maturity investments

are non-derivative
ablo

Held-to-maturnty  investments
lnanaal & Ilh Txed ar de
and fixed malunlios [hal

the positive ntention and a

cnl has
ity to hold to maturity

In contrast to the ‘loans ard recsivables'
classiicalion thesa nvasimanis are ganarally
qualed in an aclive markeol

I leld-to-maturity financial assets are included in non-
current assets, except for those with maturities less
than 12 months from the reporing date, which are
chassilicd urenl assels

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this categery er not
classified in any of the other categories.

Investments must be designaied as available-for-sele
if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable payments and management interds fo
hold them for the medium to long term.

Accordingly, s classicabion principally compnses
marketable equity securities, but can include all types
of financial assets that could otherwise be classified
in one of the other investment categanes

Ihey are generally included in non-current assefs
unloss manmagemoenl  inlends o dispose ol Tho
investment within 12 months of the reparting date ar
the temn to maturity from the reporting dete is less
than 12 months.

Recopgnition and de-recagnition
Reqular purchases and sales of financial assets are

recognised on trade-date: the date on which Council
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Imvesimenls are milially recognised (and measured )
at far value, plus in the case of investments not at
fair value through profit or loss', directly atiribulakble
transaction costs

Finaneal assols o al lair value lhrough profil ar
loss are initally recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the income
statement

Finaneal assels an doroeognsed when Iha nghls o
receive cash flows from lhe financial assels have
expired or have been trensferred and Council has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownarship.

Whon soowilies clessilicd as availablo for salke are

sold, the accumulated fair wvalue adjustments
recognised in eguity are included in the income
statement as gains and losses from investment
sacurtes

vage 13
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Subsequent measurement

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assels at fair value through profit and loss are
subsequantly camed at fair value

Loans end receivables and  held-to-meturity
invesiments are carried at emonised cost using the
effective interest method

Realscd and unrealsod gams and losses a8
from changes in the Ffar value of he Mnancil asscls
classified a3 ‘fair wvalue through profit or loss'
categary are included in the income statement in the
peariod inwhich they arse.

Urnrealised gamns and losses ansing from changes m
Iha Tair val 1l non monoelary socurilics lied
as ‘avallable-for-sale’ are recognised n equity in the
available-forsale investments revaluation reserve

Impairment

Cou assossos al cach balance dale whelher
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
aroup of financial assets is impaired

A tinancial asset or a group of tinancial assats 1
mpszred and mpammaent los an: meumed anly if
there is ohjective evidence of impaiment as a result
of ong or more evenis that occurred after the initial
recognitian of the asset (a loss event') and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estmated
lulure cash Mows of lhe fina assel or group of
finandal assats that can be reliably estimated

Investment Policy

Gol an  appraved  nvesimenl  pohbcy
complying wilh Seclion 625 of lhe Local Governmenl
Act 1902 (NSW) and Clause 212 of the Local
Government (General) Regulation 2005 (NSW).

Invastmants am placad and managad in accordanca
wilh lhal policy and having parlicalar rogard o
autharised  investments prescribed  under the
Winisterial Local Govemnment Invesiment Order

Council maintains an invastment policy that complies
wilh lhe Acl and o lhal  delegaled  slall
> lhe cane, o d skl Thal a prodenl
woulkd oxerase nnvesling Councl Tunds.

X
porso
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Counal amended ils policy Tollowing rovisions Lo Lhe
Ministerial Local Gaovernment Investment Order (the

COrder) arising from the Caole Inguiry

recommandations

(g) Fair value estimation - financial
instruments

Ihe far value of hnancial assets and financial
liabililes musl bo eslmaled  Tor recognilion and
measurement or for disclosure puposes.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets 1s based on guoted market pnces at the

The: far value of Inancisl nslremenls hal s nol
traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniquss

Councll uses & wvarnety of methods and makes
assumplions Thal ae based on markel condilions
existing at each reporting date.

Cuoted markel prices or cealer quotes for similar
instruments are used for long-term dekt instruments
hezld

If the market for a financial asset is nol active (and
far unlisteg securities]. the Council establishes fair
valua by using valuation techniques

cronen o Lhe far values of mooenl

length  transactions, invalving the same
instruments  or  other instruments that are
substantially the same, disccunted cash flow

analysis, and optan prnicing models refined to reflact
[her issuer's spealic arcumslances

The nominel value less esimated credit adjusiments
of trade receivables and payables are assumed fo
approximata ther far values.

The fair value of Mmancal kabiliics for disclosure
purposes is estimaled by discounting the fuiure
cantractual cash flows at the cument market interest
rate that is avalable to the Council for similar
financial instruments,
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(h) Receivables

Receivables are inibally reccanised at far value and
subsequently measured at amortised costs, less any
pravision tor impaimant

Receivables (excluding rates and annual charges)
are generally cue for seitlement no more than 30
days from the date of recognition

The colleclabilly of recoivables is roviewed onan
angong  basis. Debls  lhal sre known o be
uncolectible are writlen off in accordance with
Council's palicy.

A provisan for imparment (1e an allowanco
account) ralating fo n vahlas & establishad when
objeclive evidence shows hal Gouncil will nol be
able io collect all amounis due according to the
anginal tzrms of €ach recevable

Ihe amount of ihe provision 1= the diference
holweon  lhe assol's canying amounl and  ho
presenl value of lhe eslimaled fulure cash llows,
discountad et the effective interest rate

Impairment losses are recognised i the Income
Statement within other cxpenses

When a receivable for which an  impairment
alowance had been recognised becomes
uncclecible in a subsequant period, it is writlen off
against the allowanca account

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are creditec against other expenses in the
Incame Statement

(i} Inventories

(i) Raw materials and stores, work in progress
and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and
finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and
nod realissble value

Gosl comprses direel malenaks, dircel labour and
an approprate proportion of wvarisble and fixed
overhead expendire, the |atter being allocated on
the basis of normal operating capacity

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Casls ane ned Lo indiidual ilemes ol invenlory an
basis of weighted average costs

Met realisable valus is the estimatee seling prica in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated

casls ol mmplelion and  he  oslimaled  cosls
necassary io make the sale
Inventories held in  respect of non-business

underiakings have been valued al cosf, adusted
whaore appheablo [or any loss ol servce polenbial

(i} Land held faor
borrowing costs

resale/capitalisation  of

Land held for resale is statec at the lower of cost and
net realisable valus

Cost 15 assigned by specific identfication and
includes the cost of acquisition, and development
and borrowing cosis during development.

When dovelopmenl s
ar

pleled  bormwing o
olhor holding chargoes s oxpensed as incurod.

Borrewing costs included in the cost of land held for
resale are those costs that would have been avoided
it the expandiure on  the acqusdion  and
development of lhe kznd had nol beon meade

Gorrowing cosis incurred while aclive development is
interrupted for extended periods are recognised as
9Xpansas.

(j) Infrastructure, property, and

equipment [I,PP&E)

plant

Council's non currenl assols are conlinually revalued
{over & 5 year period) in accodance wilh Lhe (an
waluation policy as mandated by the Office of Local
Government

At balance  datc,  the  following  classes  of
infrasluclure, proparly, planl and eguipmoenl were
stated at their fair value

=  Plant and equipment
i@s approsimaled by deprecialsd nislorical cosl)

«  Operatanal land feslemal valalion)

= Community land (ntemal vauaton)
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+  land improvemonls
ias appmowmated oy depreciated histosical cost)

= Duildings - specialised/non-specialised
(exlermalinlenal wlualion)

+  Olhor slruclures (externalintemal vauation dene in
CCNURENION WIN VAIUALSA &1 DUKINGS)

= Roads assets including roads. bridges and
footpaths finlermal valuabon)

+  Bulk parlhworks gnieman vauanan)
= Stormwater drainage jntemal valuaton]
«  Water and sewerage networks [nlzmal vaualion)

s Swimming pools (s aporowmaled by depreciaed
histancal costiexdernal valuaban)

« Oiheropen spacedrecreational assets
iexlermal i haalion)

s Oihernfrastructure — arport runways and
laaxiways (as apprasmated ny depreciatod istoriea) cest)

+ OMher assets (as approximated by deprecatad nistoncal
cost)

Initial recognition
On initial recognition, as asset's costs s measured

at its fair value, plus all expendiure that 15 directly
attributable to the acquisition

Whoro s ml of any parl of an assels cash
consideralion 15 delerred. lhe amounls payable n
the future are discounted ta their present value as ai
the date of recognition (i.e. date of exchange) of the
assatto amve at far value

The discounl rale used is Ihe Council's incremenial
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar
borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Where infrastruciom, properly, planl @nd cquipmenl
assets are acquired for no cost or for an amount
other than costs, the assels are recognised in the
financial statements at their fair value at acquisition
date — being the amount that the asset could have
been exchanged betwesn knowledgeable willing
arhies in an arm’s longth transachan
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Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are induded in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropnate, only when It 1s probable that future
ceonomic benofils associaled wilh lhe ilem can be
measured reliably.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
income statement dunng the hinancial period in which
[hery oocumod

Asset revaluations (including inde xation)

In accountng for asset revaluations relatng o
infrastructure, property, plant ané equipment:

= Increases in the combined carrying amaunts
of asset classes ansing on revaluabon are
credited to the asset revaluation reserve,

= Tothe extent that 2 net asset class increase
reverses a decrease previously recognised
via the profd or loss, then increase s frst
recognised moproll ar loss,

= Met decreases thal reverse pravious
nereases of the same asscl class are hrst
charged agains! rovalualion mservess dircclly
in equity to the extent of the remaining
reserve afttributable to the asset, with all
other decreases charged to the Income
Statement.

Waler and seworage nolwork assels are indexod
annually belween full revalualions in sccordance wilh
the latest indices provided n the NEW Office of
Water - Rates Reference Manual

For all othor assct classas, Council ass os at cach
reparhing dale whelber Lhere 1s any i on lhal &
revalued asset's camying amount may differ
materially from that which would be determinad if the
assel ware revaluad at the reporting dats

Il any such indicalion oxiss, Gol clormines The
asset's fair value and revalue the asset ta that
amount

Full revaluabtons are undartaken tor all assets on a
[ive: yoar cycle

As & conseauence of the amalgamation of the former
Wellington Council and Dubbo City Council only
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EE oA il s werne lakon up by b now
Council.  This effectively eliminated any asset
revaluation reserves held by the former councils

Capitalisation fhresheolds
liems of infrastructure, property, plant  and

equipment are not capitelised unless their cost of
acquisitiocn exceeds the following

Land
- Council land 100% Captalised
- DOpen space 100% Captalised

- land under roads (qurchases ate et 100% Captalsed

Flant and equipment

Office furniture = 55,000
Office equipment = S6,000
Oaher plant and cqupment > Bh 000
Buildings and land improvements

Fark furniture and equipment = 55,000
Buikding

- Construction/extensions = 55,000
- Renavatans = 56,000
Other struciures = 55,000
Water and sewer assets

Reficulation extensions > 55,000
Ofhar = Bh 00
Stormwater assets

Drains and culverts = 85,000
(Hher > 5h 000
Transport assels

Road constructicn and reconstruction = 55,000
Rasealre-sheet and major repairs = §5.000
Dridge construction and reconstruction =55 000
Otherinfrastructure assets

Swimming pools = §5.000
Ofhar opan space/racreational assals > 5h 000

Depreciation

Depreciation on Council's infrastructure. property,
plant and equipment assets is calculated using the
straight-line method in orcer to allocale an asset's
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casl (el ol mesdusl valoes) over is

life

Land is not depreciated

ralod usedul

Falimaled uselul lves Tor Gouncil's infrasirodure,
property, plant and equipment include:

Plant and equipment
Office squipment

- Office furniture

- Compuler eouipmenl
Vohicles

- Heavy plant/road making equip.

- Other plant and eoquipment

110 8 years
110 10 years
1 1o B years
b to 8 years
510 8 vears
5 1o 15 yoars

Other equipment
- Playground equipment
- Henches, seats

S5to 15 years
10 to M1 yoars

Stormwater Drainage
- Drains
- Cubverls

Transportation assets
Sealed wads. surface
- Sealed roads: structure

- Unsealed roads
- Dridge: concrete

- Bridge: other

- Road pevemenls
- Kerb

- Guller and palhs

‘Water and sewer assets
Reservoirs
- Gores

Reticulation pipes: PVC
- Refticulation pipes: other
- Pumps and lelemelry

Other Infrastructure Assets
Hulk Earthworks

- Swimming pools
Othar cpan space/ racraahonal

50 [0 180 years
20 to 100 years

B0 to 200 years
50 [0 120 years

21 to 2 years
15 to 90 years
10 1034 yoars
100 years

B0 years

A0 1o 8 yoars
A0 to 200 years
A0 Lo 200 years

100 years

30 years

iU yoars

2510 70 years
15 10 50 years

Infinite

5 1o 50 years
14 to Bl yaars

o
]
©
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounling policies (contnucd)

ivirs A
at each

Al a rosidus| values and  uselul
reviewed and adjusted (If appropriate)
reporting date.

An  assets camying amount IS wntten down
mmedialely [oils recoverable amounl il The assel's
carrying amount i greater than s estimated
recoverable ameount — refer Mote 1(r) on asset
impairment

Disposal and derecognition

An item of property. plant and equipment is
dereccgnised upon cisposal or when no further
future economic benefils are expectad Tom IS use
ar disposal

Any gain o loss arsing on de gnilion aof lho
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the camrying amcunt of the
asset) is included in Council's income statement in
the year the asset 1s derecognised

(K) Land

Land [other than land under raads) is in sccordance
with Mart 2 of Chapter € of the Local Government
Act [1993) cdassified as either operational of
community.

This dassificalion of land s declosed in Hole 8(a)

{1} Land under roads

Land under roads is land under roadways and road
reserves ncluding land under footpaths, nature
slips and moedian strips

Council has elected not to recognise land under
roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance
with AASH 1001 Land Under Hoads

Land under rosds scquired afller 1 July 2D0R s
recognised in aceorgance with AASB 116 Property,
Plant and Cquipment

(m) Intangible assets

Council has nat classified any assets as intangible.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

(n) Crown reserves

Crown Reserves under Couneil's care and conlrol
are recogmsed as assels af lhe Couneil.

While cwnership of the reserves remains with the
Crown, Council retains cperational control of the
rescrves and 15 responsible for ther mantenanco
and use inoac fance wilh The speciic puposes o
which the reserves are dedicated

Improvements on Crown Reserves are also recorded
as assels, while mamntenance costs ncumad by
Counal and s relaling lo lho rescrees ane
recognised within Council's income statement

Representaticns are curently being scught across
state and local government to develop a consistent
accounling realment for Crown reserves across balh
tiers of government

(o) Rural fire service assels

Under section 112 of the Rural Fire Services Act
1997 (NSW). “all fire fighting equipmeni purchased or
canstructed wholly or from monsy to the credit of the
Fund s to be vested i the councd of the ama for or
o Al of which the fue fghling cqoipmoent has
been purchased or constructed”.

Until such time as discussions on this matter have
cancluded and tha lagslahan changed, Cauncil will
canlinue o acmunl far lhe s sl has boen
doing in previous years, which is to incorporate the
assels, their values and depreciation charges within
these financial statements

(p) Provisions for close down, restoration
and for environmental clean-up costs —
including tips and quarries

Close cown, restoration and remeciation costs
include the dismaniling and demcliion of
infrastructure, the removal of residual matenals and
Lher reemadialion ol dislurbed arcas

Estimatec close down and restoration costs are
provided for in the accounting period when the
obligation arising from the related disturbance
occurs, whether this occurs durmg the development
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounling policies (contnucd)

ar dunng lhe operalion phaso, bas on lhe nel

present value of estimated future costs

Provisions for close down and restcration costs do
not include any addiional cbligations that are
expecled (o arise from lulore dislurbance

Costs are estimated on the basis of a closure plan.
The cost estimates are calculated annually during
the Ife of ihe operaton to reflect known
doveipmoenls, g opdalod cosl eshmales and
revisions o lhe eslimalod bves of operalions, and
are subject fo formal review at regular intervals.

Close down, restoration and remadiation cosls are a
normal consequence ef tip and cuarry eperations,
and the majonty of close down and restoration
oxpendilurn is incurmed al the end of the like of Tho
aperations.

Although the ultimale cost to be incurred is
unceran, Council estmates the respectve cosis
based on | ibilily and engneonng slidies usng
currenl rosloration slends Lechniguios.

The amortisation er ‘unwinding of the discount
applied in establishing the nel present value of
pravisions s chargad to tha Income Statement n
cach aceounling poriod

This amartisation of the ¢iscount is disclosed as a
borrawing cost in Note 4(b).

Olher mavemenls in the pro s lor elose down,
restoration end remediation costs incluging those
resulting from new disiurbance, updatee cost
eslimales, changes fc the estimated lives of
operations and rewvisions 1o discount rates are
caplahscd wilhn propoerly, planl and cgupmenl

These costs are then depreciated over the lives of
the assets to which they relate

Whara rahabitabon = conducted sysiemabically
avin the life of he opem@tion, rathor than al tho lime
of closure. pravision B made for the estimated
outstanding continuous rehabilitation work at sach
reporting cate and the cost is charged to the income
slate ment

Froveion s made lor The eshmaled present val
lhe oosls of environmoenlal clean up oblic
autstanding at the reporting date

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Thiesn cos ed o The incoma slalement

Movements in the environmental clean-up provisions
are presented as an operating cost except for the
unwinding of the discount, which 1s shown as a
borowing casl

Remediation procedures generally commence soan
after the time the damage, remediation process and
estmated remediation cosis become known, but may
canhmue lor many yoars de ding on lhe nalure ol
Lhe dislurbance and Lhe remediabion lechnigues.

As noted above. the ultimate cost of environmental
remediation = uncertain and cost estimates can vary
in respanse to many factors, including changes ta the
relevani legal reguremenis, the emsergence of new
resloralion  lochnigques  ar oxporic al  olhar
locations

The expected timing of expenditure can alsc change,
far example, N response to changes N quarry
o s or produchon rales

As a result there could be significant adjustments 1o
the provision for close down and restoration and
environmenital clean-up, which would affect future
financial results

Specific  information about Counci's  provisions
relating to close down, restoration and remediatian
costs can be found at lNote 26

(g) Non-current assets (or disposal groups)
‘held for sale’ and discontinued
aperations

Man-current assets ([or disposal groups) are
classified as held for sale and stated at the lower of
aithar (1) thar carrying amount and (1) fair valua lass
casls 1o scll, i Lh carryng  amounl will b
recavered principally through a sale transactian
rather than through continuing use

Ihe excepton to this 1s plant and motor vehiclas,
which ae lumaed over onoa regular basis Planl and
molor vehicles are relained in non-currenl essels
undar lhe classilication ol nifrastrociore, propedy,
plant and equiprment

For any assets or disposal groups classified as non-
current assels held for sale’ an imparmant loss s
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounling policies (contnucd)

recognised al any lime whoen lhe L CHITYING
value is greater than its fair value less costs o sell.

Men-current  assets  held for sale” are naot
depreciated or amortsed while they are dassitied as
‘held Tor sale!

Hen-current assels clessified as ‘held for sale’ are
presented separately frem the ether assets in the
slate ment of hnancal positon.

A disconlinued operalion 1s & companenl of Council
that has been disposed of or is classified as "held for
sale’ and that represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, is part
af a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a
hre of business or area of operstions, or 1= a
subsidi puiresd oxclusivaly wilh & view lo rosale

The results of discontinued operations are presented
separately on the face of the Income Statement

(r) Impairment of assets

Al Cour
equipment
impe rment

nfrashuclure, properdy  planl &
is subject ta an annual assessment of

Assels thal are subject to amertisation are reviewed
Tor g wheneest evenls of Ghanges n
ccums ~ale lhal lhe carrying amounl may
not be recoverable.

An mparment loss s recagmised for the amount by
which the asscl's carning amount cxceods s
recoverablo amounl

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair valus less costs to sell anc value in use.

Whoere an assol s nol held principally lor cash
generating purposes [for example Infrastructure
Assels) and would be replaced if the Couneil was
deprived af it, then depreciated replacement cost is
used as value in use, olherwise valug In use Is
ashmaled by using a discounled cash Dow model

Mon-financial assets [other than ogoodwill) that
suffered & prior pericd impairmant are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairmeant at each reporting
dabe:

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Goodwill and olbher inlangible ol hal have an
indefinite  useful lfe and are not subject to
amortisation are tested annually forimpaiment

(s) Payables

lhese amaounts represeol labbibes for goods and
senices provided lo lhe Counel prar lo the end of
financial vear that are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition

(t) Borrowings

Horrowings ara inihally recognisad at far value net
of liansaclion cosls ncuned

Bofrewings are subsequently measured at amortisad
cast

Any  dilfonee belweon lho procesds (el of
lransaclion cosls) and lhe redemplion amounl s
recognisad in the income stalement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Horrowings are removed  from fhe  slalement of
financial pasilion whon he obligalion spe in lhe
contract is discharged, eancelled or expired.

Gorrowings are classified as current liabililies unless
Caunal has an uncanditional nght to defar setlemant
ol lhe habilly Tor @l keasl 12 monlhs aller The
reparting date.

(u) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed.

(v) Provisions

Provmsans for legal cla . service warranlics and
ofiher like abiities are recognised when:

* Courncil has a presant legal or constructive
aobligahion as a rasull of past evanis

= it is more likely then not that an outflow of

resources will be requrred to settle the ebligation,
and
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounling policies (contnucd)

= lhe amounl bas been reliably o nalod
Frovisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where [here are a number of similar obligalions | lhe
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the dass of
abligaticns as awhale

A provision s recognecd ovon il ho hkelihood of &n
aulllow wilh respecl o any one ilem neluded n the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
managements best estimate of the expenciture
required to selfle the present obligation at the
roponing dale

The discount rate vsed to determine the present
value reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the rsks spectic fo the
hatnhly

The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expense

(w) Employee benefits
{i) Short-term obligations

Shorl term employee benefit obligations include
liabilities for wages and salaries (including non-
monstary benehts) annual lsave and veshng sick
Icave expecied to be wholly seffled wihin the 12
monlhs aflor the reporling penod

Leave liabilites are recognised in the provision for
employes benefits in respact of employess’ sarvices
up to ihe reporting date with other shart term
employen  benelil obligalions  disdlosed  under
payables.

These provisions are measurec at the amounts
expected to be paid when ihe labilities are seltled.

All othar shart-tarm employea banatit obigatons ara
presented as payables.

Liabilties for non-vesting sick leave are recognised
at the: hime: when the leave s taken and measored at
Iho mlos pakd o ingly no
1 iahilily has boon roc

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Wagos and sakanes, annosl loave and v
leave are all classified as current liabilities.

g sick

(i) Other long-term obligations

The lizbilily lar all long serviee and annual leave in
respeci of services provided by employees up to the
reparting date (which is not expected 10 be wholly
setfled within the 12 months after the reporting
penod) are recognised in the provision for employas
benehls

These liabilities are measured at the present velue of
the expected future payments to be made using the
projected unit credit method.

Consideration = given o expected fulure wage and
salary lovels, oxporicnco of omployon doparh
and periads of service

Cxpecied future payments are then discounted using
market yilds at the reporting date based on national
governmenl  barnds wilh lorms oo malunly and
currency  lhal maleh gs closely ss possible ho
estimated future cash autflows

Oue to the nature of when and how long service
leava can ba taken, all lang service lsava for
cmployoees wilh 4 or mom years of service has been
classified as cument, as it has been deemed that
Cauncil does not have the uncenditional right to defer
settiement beyond 12 months — even though itis not
antcipated that all employees with more than 4 years
sorvice (as al reporling dele) will apply Tor and ake
their leave entitlements in the next 12 months.

(iii) Retirement benefit obligations

All employees al lhe Gouncl are enblled Lo benehls
on relrement, disabilily or dealk

Council contributes to various defined benefit plans
and defined contribution plans on behalf of its
amployaas

Defined Benefit Plans

A liabilty or asset in respect of defined benefit
superannuation plans would ordnanly ba recognised
in lhe slalement ol inancial posilic d measund
as lhoe p 1 value of lhe delined b Nl abhigahion
al the reporling dale plus unrecognised  acluarial
gains (less unrecognised actuariel losses) less the
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounling policies (contnucd)

lair valun of lhe suporannualion lund's assels @l lhal

date and any unrecognised past service cost.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
based on expected future paymenis that anse fram
memborship of e fund lo The reporling dale,
calculated ennually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit methed. Consideration is
aiven fo expected future wage and salary levels,
expenence of employes deparfures, and perods of
sOMVICD

However, when this information is not reliably
available, Council acccunts for its cbligaticns 1o
defined benefit plans on he same basis as iis
abligaticns ta cefined contributien plans, ie as an
expensa when i becomes payable.

Council is party 1o an industry defined berefit plan
under the Local Govemment Superannuation
Scheme named the ‘Local Government
Superannuation Scheme — Foal H'.

The schoeme has boen decomed o be oa ‘mulli
employer fund’ for the purpases of AASE 119,

Sufficient information is not avalable to account for
the Schema as a detinad banalt plan (In accordanca
wilh AASRE 110) bocauss lhe assels o lhe schomoe
are pooled together for all Councils

The position is menitered annually.

The amounl of cmployer conlibulions o lhe defined
benefit  section of the Local Govemment
Superannuation Scheme B recognised as an
expense and disclosed as part of superannuation
expenses at Mote 1(a).

Cou has however, disclosed a conlingenl hizbilily
in Mote 18 ta reflect the possible obligation that may
anse shoulkd the scheme require iImmedciate payment
to comect the deficiancy

Defined Contribution Plans

Contributicns 1o defined coniribution  plans  are
recognised as an expense as they become payable.
Prapaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
Ihe exlenl lhal a cash reflund or a reduclion in lhe
Tulure paymonls s avalzbke

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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(iv) Employee benefit on-cosis

Cauncil has recognised at perod end the aggregate
on-cost liabities arising from employee banafits, and
in particular those on-cost llabities that will anse
whaen paymenl of curtenl employee benefils s made
in future periods.

These amounts include superannuation and workers
compensalion expenses which will be payable upan
[hex Tulure paymenl ol cor aver hatbillios accruoed
as al 30 June 2017

[x) Self-Insurance

Council does not self-insure.

(y) Allocation between current and
non-current assets and liabilities

In the determination ef whether an asset or liability is
Classified as current or non-cument, consideration is
gen to the tma whan each asset or lability 15
expecied o be sollled

The asset or liability is classified as current if it is
expected 1o be settied within the next 12 months,
being the Council's operational cyde

Exceptions

In the case of liabilities where Council ¢oes not have
the unconditional rght to defer settlement beyond 12
monlhs 1 ) he
liabilily & classificd as conenl owven i = nol
expactad 1o ba settied within the next 12 manths.

In the case of inventcries that are ‘held for trading’,
thase ara alko clas d as current aven 1f not
cxpecied o beros in Ihez nesl 12 monlhs

(z) Taxes

The Gouncil 5 cxempl ffom balh Commonweallh
Income Tax and Capital Cains Tax.

Council goes, hewever, have t comply with both

[ringe Denefits Tax aneé Goods and Services Tax
1GS1)
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounling policies (contnucd)

Goods and services tax (GST)

Income, expenses and assets are all recognised net
of the amount of GST, except whare the amount of
GS 1 incurred |s not recoverable from the Australian
Tax Olfice (ATC)

In these circumstances the ST is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of tha revenue | axpense

Recoivables and payables willin he slalement of
financial position are stated inclusive of any
applicable GST.

The net ameunt of GST recoverable from or payable
to the A1O 15 included as a current asset or current
lizhilily in [he slalemoenl ol G pasilion

Operating cash flows within the statement of cash
flows are on a gross basis, |.e. they are inclusive of
GS1 where applicatle.

Invesling and linancing cash Mows @ Gealed on g
net hasis (where racoverable from the ATO), ie.
they are exclusive of GST Instead, the GST
component of investing and financing activity cash
flows that are recoverahle from or payable to tha
ATO are classilied as oporaling cash Nows

Commiiments and confingencies are disclosed nei
of the amount of GST recoverable from [or payable
to) the ATD

(aa)New  accounting standards and
interpretations issued not yet effective

new (o & lod) secounling slandards and
mlerprelal have been published thal are nol
mandatary for the current reporting period

Council has not adopted any of these standards
arky

(ab) Rounding of amounts

Unless olberwise ndicaled, amounls in he linancial
slatements have been rounded off ta the nearest
thousand dcllars.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Note 2(a). Council functons/activities — financial information

$ "000 Income, expenses and assets have baen directy
arrributed 1o the MDWII’IP unctionsiactivities
Details of these fundtions/activities are p(wi;eﬂ il: Mote 2(b].
Expenses | Operali rants Total assets
Income from r:m re:':n fr: included in | 1y teurrent
continuing P A Income fram
operations continuing | continuing continuing and non-
Functions/activities operations operations P cument)
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
130616 131516 13616 131516 1¥516
to 306/17 o 30/6M17 to 3WE1T fo 30/61T to 3FE1 T
Governance 200 4 065 {1 360 - -
Administration 21,085 T84 | 1390 21,018 | 591,058
FPublic order and safety 1,485 4143 (2 858) 1,131 11,856
Heallh 169 BRV [§l:sl] |
Emvirenment 13,240 11,850 | 1,300 122 | 194,295
Communily serices and educalion 5014 5602 | 12 2,138 | 882
Housing and community amen tes 1.6i1 4,366 | (2 694) 221 | 6,068
Waler supplies 28,4388 19697 | 6591 143 | 291,050
22625 16213 | 6413 206 | 321,942
I Al o 6,003 22 064 (16 061) B13 40,376
Mining, manufacturing and construction 1,170 2155 | (B835) -1 1,997
Transport and communication 32692 32953 | (271} 9,658 | 1,047 473
Cconomic affairs | 14,502 919 5311 708 | 40,598
Total functions and activities 148,245 140,528 87H 36,169 2,647 561
Share of gains/(losses ) in associales
and joint ventures (us ng the equty method) 163 -1 1683 -1 1,333
General purpose income ! 52 360 — 52 369 16,401 —
Operating result from
continuing operations 201,797 140,525 61272 52,560 2,548,884

1. Includes: rates and anmua charges (incl ex-grata), urfied genera pupose grants and unreskicted inferest and invesiment income

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Note 2(b). Council functions/activities — component descriptions
Details relating to the Council's functions/activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:

GOVERNANCE

Includes costs relating to Council's rde as a component of democratic govemment, induding elections,
memgers’ fees and expenses. subschptions te Iccal autherity associations, mestings of Cauncil and pelicy-
meking commitiees. puklic disdosure fe.q. GIPA). and legisletive compliance.

ADMINISTRATION
Includes corporate support and other support services, engineering werks. and any Council policy

PUBLIC ORDER AND SAFETY

Includes Ceuncil’s fire and emergency services levy, fire protection, emergency services, beach contral,
enforcement of regulations and animal control

HEALTH
Includes immunisation, food contral, health centres atc.

ENVIRONMENT

Includes noxicus plants and insectvermin contral; other environmental protection; sclid waste
managament, including domastic wasts: othar wasts management: cther sanitation: and garbage, strest
cleanina. drainaae end stormwater manacement.

COMMUNITY SERVICES AND EDUCATION

Includes administration and education: social protection (welfare); migrant, Aboriginal and other community
services and administration {excluding accommedation — as it is covered under ‘housing and community
amenties’): youth services; agad and disabled persons services: children's services, including family day
care, child care, and other family and children services

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AMENITIES
Includes public cen : public convenlences: street ighting: town planning: sther community amenities,
including housing development and accommodation for families and children, aged persons, disabled
DErsons. miarants and Indigenous persons.

WATER SUPFLIES
SEWERAGE SERVICES

RECREATION AND CULTURE

Includes public libraries; museums, art galleries; community centres and halls, including public halls and
performing arts venues: sparting grounds and venues: swimming pocls; parks: gardens: lakes: and ether
sporting. recreational and cultural services.

MINING, MANUFACTURING AND CONSTRUCTION

Includes bulding contrel, guaries and pits, mineral resources, and abattoirs

TRANSPORT AND COMMUNICATION
Urban local, urban regional, includes sealed and unsealed rcads, bridges, footpaths, parking areas, and
asrodromes

ECONOMIC AFFAIRS

Includes camping ereas end caravan parks; tourlsm and &rea promotion; industral development premotion;
sale yards and markets: real estate development; commercial nurseries: and other business undertakings
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Mote 3. Income from continuing operations

Actual

1316
S 000 18 306N 7
(a) Rates and annual charges
Ordinary rates
Hes denbal 18 842
armland 5527
Mining 2
Business B171
Total ordinary rates 32,492
Special rate:
Sewe sEIICeS < apt
Cmergency sevices 140
Total special rates 1,601
Annual charges (cursuact 10 s 496, 5 4954 s 4966, 3501 & s 611)
Domestic waste management services 6425
Slormwaler managemenl semces 3t
Water supply senices 5,704
Sewerage senices 11,382
Dhainans: 1481
Waste management services (non-domestic) B30
Total annual charges 25,694
TOTAL RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGES 59 787

Council has used 2014 year valuabons orovded by the NSW Valuer General in cak uating its rates
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Mote 3. Income from continuing operations (conlmucd)

s 000
(&) User chargas and fees

Specific user charges |par 3 507 - spedfic ‘actusl use’ charges]
Domeslic wasle mansgemenl services

Water supply sanices

Sewelage senices

Waste management seraces (non domeshc)

Total user charges

Other user charges and fees

() Fees and charges - statutory and regulatory functions (per s 608)
Planning and building requlation

Private works — secion 67

Regulatory statutory fees

Regstration fees

Seclion 149 codiicalos (FPA Acl)

Section 603 cerificatas

Other

Tatal fees and charges — slatutoryfregulatory

{I) Faee ana eharges — othar (INCI. general USer Charges (per & 608))
Aerodrome

Caravan park

Cemetanes

I easeback taas — Council wahicles

Mullipurpes e cenle

Park rents

RMS (formerly RTA) charges (state roads not controlled by Council)
Swimming centres

iy lees
Aguatic leisure certre

Family day care

Fodder sales ‘greengrove’ effluent reuse property
Ol ubbo gy

Privale works

Pubic halls

Rainbow cottage long day care centre

Regional |vestock markets

Sewer plan dafiing fees

Showground

Sporting facilities

Other

Total fees and charges — other

TOTAL USER CHARGES AND FEES

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Actual
13516
10 20/BNT

101
17,470
4804
2,361
24,756
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Finzreal Statamens 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Nates to the Financial Statements
for the pedod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote 3. Income from cantinuing operations (conlmucd)

Actual

1316
S 000 18 30/6N 7
(c) Interest and investmeant revenua (including losses)
Interest
Inleresl on owverdue rales and annual charges (ind specal popose aes, 238
—Inferest earnad on investments (interest and coupen payment income} 5011
— Interest (other) 41
Fair value adjustments
—Farr valuation mowements in invesiments (al fair value or held for trading) (48]
Amortisation of premiums and discounts
Inleres| ec (and inlees! educed) loans provided 51
TOTAL INTEREST AND INVESTMENT REVENUE 6,291
Interest revenue is attributable to:
Unrestricted investmants/financial assels:
Overdue rates and annual charaas (deneral fund) 210
General Council cash and invesiments 3.264
Restricted investments/funds - external:
Development contributions
Sechon B4 228
Seclion 64 74
W ater fund operations 883
Sewserage fund operatons 1,630
Tatal interest and investment revenue recognised 6,291
(d) Other revenues
Rental income — other council properties 60D
Finos 234
Leqal fees recovery — rates and charges (extra charges) 132
Commissions and agency fees 12
Insurance claim recoveries 206
Sales — general a
Caves / caravan park kiosk — sales 133
OHAS training H]
Ciher revenues from local organisations 197
Fwchices mimbursement of cxpenses a7
Ofther 109
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 1,778

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

g 28

Page 36

Page 117




APPENDIX NO: 1 - REPORTS - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE -
19 FEBRUARY 2018

ITEM NO: CCL18/21

APPENDIX NO: 1 - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016/2017 | | ITEM NO: AUD18/1 |

Finzre al Statamens 2017

Dubbo Regianal Council

Metes to the Financial Statements
for the perod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote 3. Income from caontinuing operations (conlmucd)

138116 13/1&
to 30/6/17 1o 306N T
S 000 Operating capital
(&) Grants.
General purpose (untied}
Fimancal assislance  genera componenl 11381
Financial assistance — lecal roads componel 4681
Penswoners’ rates subsidies — general component 339 -
Total general purpose 16,401 -
Specific purpose
Pensioners’ ratas subsidies:
—Water 143 -
Sewcrago 1 -
— Domaslic waske mansgemenl 122
Sewerage senices 77
Dushfire and emergency senices 656 475
Economic development - 177
Fmployr ul [Ny programs 29 -
Flood msloration 245488 -
Heritage and cultural 1M
Library 29 -
Haoxicus weeds & -
Rer reahion and cultum - 441
Sl lighling ol
Transport (roads 1o recovery) 4374 -
Transport [other roads and bridges funding) 93 2270
Local infrast. renewal scheme interest subsidy - 5063
Tounsm 1 161
Hew Councl Implementation Fund 5000
Sbonger Communilies Mund 1.000 9,000
Livestock Markats - 2962
Community senices 432 1929
Family day care rar -
Paid p H#3
Rainbow collagoe long day cae cenlic 547
Oither 337 153
Total specific purpose 17,936 18,223
Total grants 34,337 18,223
Grant revenue |s attributable ta:
— Commonwealih funding 16 140
— State funding 15,197 18,223
34,337 18,223
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Finzre al Statamens 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Nates to the Financial Statements
for the perod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote 3. Income from cantinuing operations (conlmucd)

138118 13/1&
to 30/6/17 1o 30/BNT
S 000 Operating Capital
(f) Contributions
Developer contributions;
(593 & 594 — EPAA Act, 564 ofthe LGA):
S 94 — contributions towards amenities/senices 13
5 94 - open space - 1,040
584 dranage 343
S 94 - adworks - 1,902
58948 toed development consent loaes - ]
S84 wales supply conliibulions 1 07
5 64 - sewerage semce contributions - 1,864
Voluntary planning agreements - ir
Total developer contributions - 7,205
Other contributions:
RMS contributions iregional roads, block grant) 3368 A
Cnal sponsorship 47
Sporting facilities - 22
Infrastruciue contnbubons, (non cash)
— water TES
— sewerage - 304
i nage 1,649
— readworks 8,207
— land under roads - 1474
Fwocilics MTR spansorship 14
Other 228 80
Total other contributions 3,857 10,727
Tatal contributions 3.657 17.832
TOTAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 37.594 36,155
pacgz 0
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 38

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 119




APPENDIX NO: 1 - REPORTS - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE -
19 FEBRUARY 2018

ITEM NO: CCL18/21

APPENDIX NO: 1 - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016/2017 | | ITEM NO: AUD18/1 |

Finzreal Statamens 2017

Dubbo Regianal Council

Nates to the Financial Statements
for the pedod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote 3. Income from cantinuing operations (conlmucd)

Actual
1316
5000 1o 30BN T
(g} Unspent grants and contributions
Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on condition
that they be spent in a specified manner:
Unexpended at the close of the previous reperting period (former Councils) 17,279
Add; granis and contributicns recognisad in the current pericd but not vet spent 12,824
Lass: Orants and contributions recognised in a previous reporting period now spant (3,718)
Net increase [decrease) in resiricted assets during the period 16,106
Unexpended and held as restricted assels 33,335
Comprising:
— Spectic purpose unexpended grants 21,775
— Neveloper eontributions 11,609
— Other contributions -
33,385
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[ TEM NO: AuD18/1 |

Dubbo Regianal Council

Nates to the Financial Statements
for the pedod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote 4. Expenses fram continuing operations

s 000
(a) Employee benefits and on-caosts

Salanes and wages

Fmployoe lenmnalion cosks

Travel expenses

Employee leave entilements (ELE)
Suparannualion

Workers” compensation insurance
Fnnge bencht tax (FATY

Payoll Lax

Training costs (cther than salanes and wages)
Other

Tatal employee costs

Less: capilalised cosls

TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED

Humbzr of ful-time eguva ent’ employzss (FTE) at year end

(k) Borrowing costs
(i} Interest bearing liability costs

Inleresl on loans
Tetal interest bearing liabllity costs expensed

{ii) Other borrowing cosis

Discount adjustments relating to movemeants in provisions [other than CLLC)

Rexmdiation liabil lics
Tatal other barrowing costs
TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Actual
13516
1o 20/6NT

36,464
i4
419
4,208
4154
1455
259
367
370
262
47,797
(4,814)
43,183

432

5150
5,150

G

65
5,215

g I
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[ TEM NO: AUD18/1 |

Dubbo Regional Council

Nates to the Financial Statements
for the perod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continue:d)

s 000
(c) Materials and contracts

Haw materials and consumables
Conlracl and consullancy cosls

— Contractor and consultancy cests (intamal audit EDO alliance]

Audtors remuneration "
I cgal exponses
—Leqgal expenses. planning and develepment
I egal exponses debt recovery
| eq s olher
Operating leases:
—Operating leasa rentals minimum leasa payment'”
TOTAL MATERIALS AND CONTRACTS

1. Auditor remuneration

a. During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by

the Auditer-Genara
(i) Audit and other assurance services
- Auditand review of financial statements: Auditor General

Remuneration for audit and other assurance services

Total Auditor-General remuneration

E. During the year, the follewing feas wers incurred for senvices provided by

the cther Council's Auditers:
(i) Audit and other assurance services
Auditand revow of tinancial statements Councl’s Auditor
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services

Tatal Auditor remuneration

2. Operating lease payments are attnbutable to:
Compulers

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Finzreal Statamens 2017

Actual
13516
1o 20/BNT

205
38,940

101
104

104

73
75

178

205
296
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Finzreal Statamens 2017

Dubbo Regianal Council

Metes to the Financial Statements
for the perod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote 4. Expenses from continuing operations (ontinue:d)

Actual
1316

S 000 18 306N 7

(d} Dapraciation, amertisation and impairment

Depreciation and amertisation

Mlant and equipment 4,074

Office equipment 209

Fumilure and Nillings 278

Land improvements (depreciable) e

Infrastnucture-

Ruildings  non-specialised BEES
—Cuildings - spacialised 2218
— Other structures 3873
—Roads 17 D09
—Airport runways 460
— Stormwater drainage 1102
— Watter supply natwerk 4543
—Sewerage network 58952

Swimming pools 118
—Other open spaceirecreational &ssets 151

Other assets

Husilage colleclions
—Library books
—Other 35

Assel mirslalemen| cosls 101
Total gross depreciation and amortisation costs 36,008
Less: capitalised costs [967)
Total depreciation and amorfisation costs 35,131
Impairment
Hil
TOTAL DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT COSTS EXPENSED 35,121
pags 34
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Finzre al Statamens 2017

Dubbo Regianal Council

Nates to the Financial Statements
for the perod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continue:d)

Actual

136

S 000 18 30/6N 7
(e) Other expanses
Adverising 877
Had and doubliul debls 11
Bank charges 34
Contnbutions/levies o other levels of government

Other conlnbulions/levies 157
Committes fees 403
Committon cxpenses  other [escluding fees aboee ) 61
Nonalions, conlibulions and assistance (o olher organisalions [Seetion 3586) 3254
Llectricity and heating 3637
Insurance 2,161
Poslage 4
Printing and staticneny 480
Strest ighting 1,24
Telephone and communications 649
Valuation fees 114
Vehicle regisiraton 260
Water resolrce charge KAl
Contnbubions to emergency seraces 1,036
Crodil card murchan! oes 36
Family day care — fee relief 1,489
Property rental 105
Subsomphion shimes assocalion 1
Ciher 1,428
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 18,056

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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APPENDIX NO: 1 - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016/2017 | | ITEM NO: AUD18/1 |

Finzreal Statamens 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Nates to the Financial Statements
for the pedod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote 5. Gains or losses from the disposal of assets

Actual

13616
S 000 18 306N 7
Flant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal — plant and equipment 2567
Less: camying amount of plant and equipment asssts scldiwntten off (2,369)
Net gain/{loss) on disposal 173
Infrastructure
Proceeds from disposal — inrastructure -
Less camying amounl of inlras e assels soldiwrillen off (T05)
Met gaini(less) on disposal a5
Real sstate assets hald for sale
Proceeds om disposal sl eslale assels 4 087
Less: camying amount of real estate assets scldfwritlen off (T34)
Net gaini(loss) on disposal 4228
Financial assets
Proceeds frem disposaliredemptionsimaturities - financial assets £5,504
1 ess camying amounl of inancial assels soldfodeemed mal uned (88 ,081)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal -
NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DIEPOSAL OF ASSETS 3,698
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APPENDIX NO: 1 - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016/2017 | | ITEM NO: AUD18/1 |

Finzreal Statamens 2017

Dubbo Regianal Council

Nates to the Financial Statements
for the perod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote 6a. — Cash assels and Note 6b. — investments

2017

Actual Actual
S "00a Current  Non-current
Cash and cash equivalents (Note Ba)
Cash on hand and at bank 24
Cas hequivalent assets '

Deposils al call 40,728 -
Tatal cash and cash equivalenis 25,752 -
Investments (MNote 6b)

I ong lem doeposils 11,138 o0 983

—MNCD's, FRIN's [with matunties > 3 months) 4.000 17,252
Total Investments 45138 117,235
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH
EQUIVALENTS AMD INVESTMENTS 70880 117,235
" Ihose imvestments where Eme - mabunty (from date o curchase) s < J mihs,

Cash, cash equivalents and investmenis were

classified at year end In accordance with

AASE 139 as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

a. At tair value through the prof and loss’ 35,752 -
Invesiments

a. ‘Held lo malurily 45,138 117 235
Investments 45,138 17,235

Refer tn Mot= 77 Far wahe meas rement for ifformat on regarding the: fair vaue of vestments held

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Finzreal Statamens 2017
Dubbo Regional Council

Nates to the Financial Statements
for the perod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote 6¢. Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details

138116 13816
to 30/61T 1o 30BNT
Actual Actual
3 "000 Current  Non-current
Tatal cash, cash equivalents
and investments 70890 117,235
attributable to:
Fudeanal lions (refer belowy 31910 60,302
Intemal restrictions jreter beiow) 35154 36843
Unresincted 3826

70,890 117,235

135 o 3018117 Transferred Transfers Transters
from former 1o from Closing
$ 000 Councils _restrictions restrictions balance
Details of restrictions
External restrictions - Ineluded in liabllities
Hil
External restrictions - other
Developer contributions — general (] 8314 7 460 (4,581)
Developer conlibulions  waler und (1] 1/ 21 -
Developer contributions — sewer fund (A) 212 26 -
Specific purpose unexpended grants (0] 6596 13,180 -
Waler supplics [[9] 20632 3,894 -
Sewernage senices {C) 39 804 1135 -
Domestic waste management c) 5708 - (25400
Slormwaler management {C) 4 GBL - (1481) 3,204
External restriclions - other 4 1HH 24 116 (8,6l 112 307
Total external restrictions 95,188 25,716 (8,602) 112,302

A Development contributions which arc not yet expended far the provision of senices and amenitics in acoordan
with contibutions plans [refer MNote 17)

B Grants which are nct yet expended for the purposes for which the grants were cbtained. (refer Hole 1 (b))

© Waler sewerage domestic waste management (DWM) ane ather special rates/levies/charges are externally
res| ed assets and must be applied for the purposes for which they were raised

]
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Finzreal Statamens 2017

Dubbo Regianal Council

Nates to the Financial Statements
for the perod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote 6c. Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details (continued)
1355118 10 30/6117 Transferred Transfers Transfers

from former 1o from Closing
3 000 Councils _restrictions restrictions balance
Internal restrictions
Feel management services 11 b0k - (1) 10,811
Infrastructure replace ment sl [GEH]
Cmployees leave enlittement 1478 208732 - 4351
Financial accouniing seraces 1 — — 1
Human resource senices 1M 184 375
Informaticn management senvices 1430 332 - 1,762
Govern and nsk sen 5a7 - A3y 554
CMc adminisration building 1208 @ 1,301
Technical support senices 256 27 - 826
Rusi uppol sernces (lechnical) 14 - @) §
Depot services 741 260 - 1,001
Workers compensation 178 - 179) -
Wollinglon caves complox J ! - 13
Works semces 137 400 - 537
Govemance izl 340 - 429
Nisk maragement — state roads il (BEr)
Res dential developmeant 408 - (408) -
Local govemments elections a5 - @83y -
IT and office squipment 583 (563)
Federal financial assistance grant (advance recei - 5 466 - 5,465
Federal lecal moads funding 37 - (370) -
Ecenomic development R? (87
Sporting facilities 706 326 - 1312
Parks and landeae business supporl servees 2 32 - 104
Landcare services a4 299 - 343
Horticultural services 2 743 - TE5
Human endronmenl scivices i) B - 123
Wastern plains cultural centra 843 164 - 1,007
Cemetanes 282 342 - 624
Reqgonal thealre & convenlion cenlre GHE {44y Had
Cultural semces ] 63 - Al
Family day care 252 24 - 275
Rainbow cottage an 111y 200
Social senices 283 - 21y 252
Old [Jubbo gaol B2 164 - 245
I ibrany soraces 309 (145) 164
Recreation planning and programmes 2] 121 - 210
Gomelery improvmenls 218 - 218) -
Assel managemenl 5116 5,116y
Ranger serdices 15 - - 15
Gily slralegy 21 3¢ - 6ol

continued...
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Finzreal Stataments 2017

Dubbo Regianal Council

Nates to the Financial Statements
for the pedod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote 6c. Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details (continued)

1355118 10 30/6117 Transferred Transfers Transfers

from former 1o from Closing
3 000 Councils __restrictions restrictions balance
Guilding and development senices 601 - (3) 508
Emaronment and health seraces 0 - - a0
Showground a3 19 i
City markafing & communications 194 - [4}] 183
ubbe city holiday park g2 48 — 437
Property development 4478 (1,830) 2 B4R
City development 142 47 - 169
Dubbe cily rog ol arpaor 806 170 - 1,066
Livestock markats 4088 (006) 3,183
Fire sendces 493 - n 462
Ol MaAEgemen| senices 2218 1914 - 3,162
Road network - rural roads 2583 1.995 - 4578
Cmergency management 56 38 - a4
Road nelwork - urhan rmaids o 1,930 - 0431
Road network - state roads 152 1.160 - 1312
Strest lighting 346 115 - 461
Traffic management B I 126
lNootpath & cycleways ral 351 - 567
Administration charge 1394 - (1384) -
Emvironmental sustainability senices 15 15
Corporate development/sirateqic management a5 a0 - 135
Animal shelter 283 170 - 463
et reation semvices i (33 AR
Cmployee overheads 280 161 - 441
Slorm 2 - 14 - 14
Rales & genea| ewenue - 8555 - 8555
Corporate overheads - 2286 - 2,286
Dubbo agualic lesoe conbie - 3re - 3/8
Otner 355 - (355) -
Total Internal restrictions 50927 36 068 {13,998) 71,997
TOTAL RESTRICTIONS 146.115 60.784 (22.800)  184.299
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Finzreal Statamens 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Nates to the Financial Statements
for the perod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 7. Receivables

2017
$ '000 Current Non-current
Purpose
Rates and annual charges 1811
Intzrest and estra charges 407
Usercharges and fees 10,687 -
Privali: works 10 -
Accrued revenues

— Interest on imvestments 1,969 -
Dl 1 dobilors agr I6E)
Govemment grants and subsidies 99 =
Het GST receivable M -
Dwe from olher leveds of govemmenlt 148 —
Other deblors 937 -
Total 18,244 TE6
Less: provision for Impalrment
Usercharges and fees (46) -
Total provision for impairment - receivables (48) -
TOTAL NET RECGEIVABLES 18,193 755
Externally restricted recelvables
Watersupply

Rales and availabilily charges 1494 -

— Other 4 585 -

Sewerage services
Rales and availabilily chames AN -

— Other 1933 -
Total external restrictions 7.078 -
Unrestricted receivables 11,120 756
TOTAL NET RECEIVAELES 18188 758

Motes on debtors above
{1} Kales and annual charges cutstanding are secured aganst the property.

Doubtul rates debtors are prowded for where the value of the property 1s less than the debf culstanding
An allowance for olher doubllu) debls & made whan there is objec ve evidence thal & recevable is impaired

(I

i) Inleresl was charged on overdue rales and chaiges =0 8 50% (2016 8 50%)
Generally all other recevables are non-intere st bearing

) Mlease refer to Note 15 for issues concern ing credit risk and fair value disclosures
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Finzreal Statamens 2017

Dubbo Regianal Council

Metes to the Financial Statements
for the perod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote 8. Inventories and other assels

2017
$'000 Current HNon-current

(a) Inventories

(i) Inventories at cost

Real estate for resale (refer below) 718 1,993
Slores and maleriaks 1078 -
Trading stock 79 -
Total Inventories at cost 1876 1,993
TOTAL INVENTORIES 1876 1,983

(b} Other assats

Prepayments 463 —
Shares in unlisted companies — StateCover - 485
TOTAL OTHERASSETS 483 425

Externally restricted assets

Water

Stores and materials 273

Other - a4

Propaymonls Bl -

Total water 2328 44

Total externally restricted asseta 278 44

Tatal internally restricted assets

Total unrestricted asaets 211 2444

TOTAL INVENTORIES AND OTHER ASSETS 2339 2,488

pacgz 12
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Finzre al Statamens 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Nates to the Financial Statements
for the pedod 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Mote B. Inventories and other assets (conlinuesd)

2017
$ '000 Current Non-current

(i) Other disclosures

(2) Details for real estate development

Res dential LUt 1,261
Industrial'commercial 143 r?
Total real estate for resale 719 1,993

Represented by:

Acquisiion costs 119
Development cosls T1¢ 1,874
Total real estate for resale 719 1,993
Movements:
Real aslate assets at beginming of the year (former Councils) 622 1,971
Purchases and other costs 824 3
— Transfers in from {out to) Mote 9 7
— WUV of sales (axpense) 734 -
Traresler belween cunenlinon-cunenl ? (K]
Total real estate for resale 718 1,983

{b) Inventory write downs
These wee no amounls eeognised as an experse elaling lo the wnile down of imaenlory balanees
held during the year

Fefer to Motz 27. Far value meas_rament for i~format on recarding the fair vaue of oher ssssts held
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Notes to the | mancial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 9a_ Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Assct class IPPAL transierred from farmer € ouncils Assel movements during the resorting peried
I a5 2t 0207
= at 162016 -
Accurulated Camyng Remen | oty | Fevmrten Accurrulated
Gre= [ et rnewms | new asmens | = | Toce | vansters | argranaens | s | 7o o5 | TURIRE | Grans reciation et
amarying mmd i renewsls | newassets| o coC | eoerse | vensters | ardvensters T\:fm —_— H.)::’:‘l':\‘ carnprg e . carrying
4000 arcunt R amaunt . {Make 8) e amount - amaunt
impairment imp airmie nt
Capital work in progress 7, - T71E8 €768 14,211 - - 12,050, - - - - 28,917 - 26917
Mart and equipmen: 495013 24,402 24616 2,074 6,195 (2,38€) (4,074} - - - - - 50,287 23,962 26,425
Sliive =guipmenl 2240 1,570 €70 39 310 - (203} - - - - - 3,084 1774 1310
~urmiture and htings ERE) 7748 1088 Kyl el i3) (77) - 9) - - - 3 EHE ran 1,38
Land:
- Operatonal land 3 4M - 3434 438 385 - - - - - - - 32,258 -
- Communiy land 35 641 - IBE4 - - 8l - - - - - - 35840 -
— Land undes roads (pos 3 H) ALY - fi1s 14 - - - - - - f - 9,196 -
Land imzrovements non daprecable * B 1801 1,601
Land i vemerts — deprecable 8113 4,457 362 138 . 1) - {373y - - - - - BZ236 4075
rivastruciure
— Hildings - rar-zpecasen 47 FAR RN 1Y 1605 134 - - 574 - - - - - 17,188
- Buldings - apecialiazd 130 334 B51°8 65276 1,240 ‘450 (85) 2218 1 ] - - - 56,937
— Olbver biuclures 102 243 49274 53725 813 6,365 (1 81) (38731 - - — - - 108,723 52,874
— Rnans 1,764 217 ME05T7 1,003 645 6775 6537 (223) (12 0o 655 - - - - 17277514 72538
— Airport runways faviways 2123 16,244 15 7E5 &14 - - (48D} - - - - - 32743 16,804
- Dulk earhworks {non-depreciable HI 53 656 - (Sl - - - - - - 344138 -
= Slermwaler drainayc 21T B3 7Tz 383 - (1.,1521 33 - - - - 213427 30,538
— Water supply nehwork 181 117 ira 4 543) w7 - - - 136, K11 101 964
Sewerage network 207139 1,810 242 {5,852} 85 68 427 3Nz002 51,196
— Swiruming pools 6843 121 - - (11 - - - - - 5,964 4077
— T Open space’ ecrealional assets ams 428 - - (131 34 - - - - B174 3738
- Quarry asse's * a7 - - - - - - - - - 1,097 -
Other assets:
- lleriage wilecions »n 4 28 - - - i - - - - - 1 5 20
- Library books 13 2 1 - - - o - - - - - 13 13 -
Other 2333 1,102 1203 (531 245 1,157 1,238
Reinsiatement, renabilitation and restoration
a55ets jrefer Mo 2€)0
— lipesloranon assets 1173 B0S 518 - - - (133 - - nm - - 1044 B )
Quarry rasloration assets 521 | 143 | 261 | | | (131 | | 128 | 465 227 | 238
TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE,
2 852 R0 Rad RO FRLY R 25 473 k- RE [1084) (3R, N9R) - = (138 7 177 R16 GRR 134 7705 Ri
Henewals are detned a5 e repiacement of exsing assets (s opoosed 1 Me 2cquISBON of New asSels).
Pefer 1o Mot 27. Fair value measaremant hor infomn aion reganding the fair value of other ITiastruciune, progeny, plant and equipment
page 44
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Dubbo Regional Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 1o 30 June 2017

Mate Db. Externally restricted infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

$'000 Astual
2017
Class of asset Gross carrying Accumulated depn. Net carrying
amount and impairment amount
‘Water supply [
WIP 12 bbb 12,666
Plant and 2quipment 2173 955 1,218
Ofhee equioment 41 # -
Furniture and fttngs 20 17 3
Land
Opralional o 1674 - 1,614
— Gty land J9 - k]
Ruliangs B EMN 2,430 6,396
CHNET SUCIES 16 643
Intrastructure 347340 27,874
Roags 3447 2,919
Lk 837N works T4E 746
Clhen assels 425 424
Total water supply 357,980 254,330
Sewerage services
wir 6,209
Pl and coquipmen [iET] 1,023
Othce equisment 66 3
| UFnTUre ana nongs 7 6
Lana
Opuralional - 6,183
Cormrriily land - 149
Build ngs 3,514
Ciiher structures 19
Infrastructure 266,976
Roads 2,718
Lulk earthworks - 830 |
Total sewerage services 63,762 278 430
Domestic waste management
Plant and squipment 1,710 982 718
Land
_ Operatbnal l2ne 150 180
_ Community land 3 35
— Imprvements —depracishie HE ] 35
vuidngs 484 T: 410
iher structures 201 286 5
Roads 20 12
Bulk earlliworks 19 - 49
O lner assels 98 il 72
Total WM 2925 1,439 | 1,486 |
Stormwater drainage
WIP HRO E80
Plant and squipment kil » 6
Land
Operational land F20 - 720
Cormriyly land Nl - kL
Infrastructure 219,091 30,457 188,634
Rulk carthwarks 24105 - 2,405
Total cther restricoens 223,158 30,482 192,676
TOTAL RESTRICTED | PPAE 916,246 189,323 726,922

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

page 45

Page 53

Page 134




APPENDIX NO: 1 - REPORTS - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE -
19 FEBRUARY 2018

ITEM NO: CCL18/21

APPENDIX NO: 1 - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016/2017 | | ITEM NO: AUD18/1 ]

Firancial Statements 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note Sc. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — current year
impairments

Council has recegnised no impairment losses during the reporting peried nor reversed any prior pericd losses

Note 10a. Payables, borrowings and provisions

2017

§°000 Current  Nen-current
Payables
Goods and services — operating expendiiure 4 566 -
Accrued expenses:

— Borrowings 625 -

— Salaries and wages 1.032
Security bonds, depesits and retentions 1.465 —
Other - 1
Tatal payables 7,688 1
Income received in advance
Payments received in advance 770 -
Total income recelved in advance 770 -
Borrowings
Loans — secured ' 4.652 67.256
Taotal borrowings 4,652 67,356
Provisions

Employee benefits:
Annual leave 3,937 -
Sick leave 1.303 -
Long service leave 9.751 476
Other leave 56 -
Sub-total - aggregate employes henefirs 15,047 476
Assol remedaliondeskaralion (future works) - 2117
Total provisions 15,047 2,593
TOTAL PAYABLES, BORROWINGS
AND PROVISIONS 28,157 69 850
" Loans are secured over the general rating income of Council

Disclosures on liability interest rate risk exposures. fair value disclsures and security can be found in MNote 15
page 46
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 10a. Payables, borrowings and proviSions (continued)

$°000

(i) Liabilities relating to restricted assets

Externally restricted assets

WWater

Sewer

Drainage

Liebiities relating to externally restricted sssets

Internally restricted assets
Nil

Total liabilities relating to restricted assets
Tatal liabilities relating to unrestricted assets
TOTAL PAYABLES, BORROWINGS AND PROVISIONS

Financial Statements 2017

(i) Current liabilities not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve months

The fellowing liabilities, even though classifled as current, are not expected
te be seftled In the next 12 months

Frovisicns — employess benefits

Note 10b. Descnption of and movements in provisions

2016 135116 to 306AT
Opening Remeasurement
igi balance Addihonal Decreass dus to
Class of provision J— provisions payments Eﬂ;l:?ts :lu‘ew
Counils) scountng
Asset remediation 2,206 (154] - 68

2017

Current  Nen-current
2.782 25,957
2321 19,434
238 3,536
5.341 48,937
5341 48,837
22,816 21,013
28,157 69,950
Actual

2017

§.434

8,434
Unused Closing
amounts balance
reversed as at 208/17
- 2,117

a Asset remediation reinstatement and restoration provisicns represent the present value estimate of future costs
Council will incur in order to remove, restore and remediate assets andior activiies as a result of past operations

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Firancial Statements 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 11. Statement of cash flows — additional information

$'000
(a) Reconciliation of cash assets
Total cash and cash eguivalent assets

Less bank overdraft
as per the of Cash Flows

(b) Reconciliation of net operating result
to cash provided from operating activities

Net result from Income Statement

Adpst for non-cash Rems:

Deprediation and amortisation

Net losses/(gains) on disposal of assets

MNon-cash capital grants and contributions

Losses/(gains) recognised on fair value re-measurementis through the P&L
— Investments classified as 'at fair value' or "held for trading’

Amortisation of premiums, discounts and prior period fair valuations
— Interest on all fair value adjusted interest free advances made by Council

Unwinding of discount rates on reinstatement provisions

Share of net (profis) or losses of associatesijoint ventures

+i- Movement In operating assets and IiahiNties and other cash fems:
Decrease/(increase) in receivables

Increasefidecrease) in provision for doubtiul debts
Decreasef(increase) in inventaries

Decreasef{increase) in other assels

Increasef{decrease) in payables

Increase/{decrease) in accruad interest payable
Increase’{decrease) in other accrued expenses payable
Increasef{decrease) in ather liabilties
Increasef{decrease) in employee leave eniitiements

Net cash provided from/(used in)

operating activities from the Statement of Cash Flows

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Actual
2017

25,752

25,752

61,271

35131
(3.696)
(10,580)

48
(51)

(8%)
(183)

7,570
(187)
as1
(827)
[403)
476

318

89,466
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Fimancial Statements 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

MNote 11. Statement of cash flows — additional information jcontinued)

Actual
$°000 2017
(c) Non-cash investing and financing activities
Infrastructura contributions 10,580
Total non-cash investing and financing activities 10,580
(d) Financing arrangements
(i) Unrestricted access was avallable atbalance date to the

following lines of credit:
Bank overdrat facilties ! 200
Credit cargs/purchase cards 435
Tatal financing arrangements 635
Amounts utilised as at balance date:
= Credit cards/purchasea cards 38
Total financing arrangements utilised 38
1. The bank overdraft faciity may be drawn at any time and may be terminaied by the banx without nokce.
Interest rates on overdrafls arz irerest rates on 'wans ard other payables ar= dsclosad inMoke 45
(il) Secured loan liabilities
Loans are secured by a mortgage over fulure years rate revenue only
(e) Bank guarantees
Ne bank guerantees heve been provided by Ceuncll to external thrid parties.
page 43
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Financial Statements 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 12. Commitments for expenditure

$'000
(a) Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)

Capital expenc|ture cemmitted for at the reparting date but net
recognised In the financial stetements as liabllities:

Property, plant and equipment
Road Infrastructure

Other structures

‘Water infrastructure

Sewer Infrastructure

Total commitments

These expenditures are payable as follows:
‘Within the next year
Later than one year and not later than 5 years

Taotal payable

Sources for funding of capital commitments:
Unrestricted general funds

Externally restricted reserves

Total sources of funding

(£) Finance lease commitments

Nil

(c) Operating lease commitments (non-cancellable)

a. Cor ts under |lable operating leases atthe
reporting date, but notrecognised as liabllities are payable:

Within the next ysar
Later than one year and not later than 5 yeears

Total non-cancellable operating lease commitments

b. Non-cancellable operating leases include the following assets:
- Computer equipment

Conditions relating to operating leases:
— Al gperating lease agreemenis are secured only against the leased asset
— No lease agreements impose any finandal restrictions on Council regarding future debt etc

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Actual
017

5,187
3.667
413
2.797
12,064

9,532
2532
12,064

£,854
3,210
12,064

101
23
184
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Firancial Statements 2017

Note 13a. Statement of performance measurement — indicators (consolidated)

Ameunts Indicator Banchmark

$°000 20m7 2017
Local government industry indicators — consolidated
1. Operating performance ratio
Totel continuing operating revenue ' excluding capital
grants and contributions less aperating expenses 21,285 13.15%
Total continuing aperating revenue ©' excluding capital 161 810 e
grants and centributions
2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue "'
exzluding all grants and centributions 123 B16 62.54%,
Total continuing operating revenue ' 197 965 B
3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restnclins ! §2.211 1.63x
Cument iabilties less specific pupese liabilities ™ ¥ 14,382
4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result'" before eep tal excluding interest
and depraciationfim pairment/amortisaion 61,631 5.70%
Principal repayments {Statement of Cash Flows) 10,649 )
plus borrowing costs (Incoms Statsment)
5. Rates, annual charges, interest and

extra charges outstanding percentage
Rates_annual and exra charges outstanding 2,253 3,379,
Rates, annual and exira charges collectiole 68,960
b. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year's cash and cash equivalents
plus all term depasits w2 166,873 16.55
Fayments from cash fiow of operaling and 10,081 mths

financing activities

Nolca

' Cxzludes fair value adjustments and reversal of revaluation decrements,

netgainiioss) on sale of assels and the net share of interests in joint ventures and asscciates

12 Ry

Holes 68 inclusive

* Reder o Note 104a)

wludes anyredl eslale and land lor resale nol expecled o be sold in The nesl 12 months.

¥ Refar fo Note 10(a)iii) - excludes all payables and provisions not expected to be paid in the next 12 months (incl CLL)
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Financial Statements 2017
Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 13b. Statement of performance measurement — indicators (by fund)

General®  Water Sewer Benchmark
$000 2017 2017 2017

Local government industry indicators — by fund

1. Operating performance ratio

Totel continuing operating revenue ' excluding capital
_grants and contributions less operating expenses
Total continuing aperating revenue ©' excluding capital
grants and centributions

10.43% 22.04% 17.66%

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Totel continuing operating revenue '
axcluding all grants and contributions
Total continuing aperating revenue '

53.55% 89.37% 87.26%

3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions
Cument liabilitias less specific purpese liakilities ™)

£

3.63x 7.55% 6.58x

4. Debt service cover ratio

Dperaling result " before cap tal excluding interest
and depreciationfim pairmentfamortisation

Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows )
plus borrowing costs (Inceme Statement)

5.35x 6.14x 7.43x

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and
extra charges outstanding percentage

Rates_annual and exra charges outstand ing

Rates. annual and exra charges collectiole

3.49% 2.08% 3.15%

6. Cash expense cover ratio

Current vear's cash and cash equivalents

plus &l term deposits 19.53 4.96 551
®1Z

Payments from cash fiow of operating and mths mths mths

financing activities

Notes

"M Refer tc MNoles at Mote 13a(i) above
'™ General fund refers to all of Council's activities except forits water and sewer aclivilies which are listad s sparately

page 22
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Fimancial Statements 2017

Dubbo Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 14. Investment properties

$°000

Council has not classified any land or buildings as ‘investment properties’
Note 15. Financial risk management

Risk management

Caouncil's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including (1) price risk, (2) credit risk. (3) liguidity risk

and (4) interest rate risk

The Ceuncll's overall risk management pregram focuses on the unpradictabliity of financlal markets and seek:

to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Cauncil does not engage in transactions expressed in forsign curmencies and is therefars not
currency risk.

Financial risk management is carmed out by Council's finance sedtion under policies approve:

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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d by the Council
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Fimancial Statements 2017
Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 15. Financial risk management (continued)

$°000

Ceouncil's objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level o
llquidity and pressrvng capltal

Ceuncil's finance area manages the cash and Investments pertfolie with the assistance of independent
acvisors.

Council has an investment pelicy which complies with the Local Government Act 1983 and Mnister's
investment arder. This policy is regularly reviswed by Council and it's staff and an investment report is tablec
befors Councll an @ manthly basls sefting cut the partfolio braakup and its psrformancs.
The risks essoclgted with the Investments held are:
= Price risk - the risk that the capital value of Investments may fluctuate due to changes in markst prices,
whether thers changes ars caused by factors specfic to individual financial instruments or thair issusrs
or are caused by factors affecting similar instruments traded in a market.

= Interest rate risk — the risk that movements In interest rates could affect retums and Income

= Cradit risk - the risk that the investmant counterparty will not completa their obligations particular to a
financial mstrumsnt, resulting in a financial loss to Council = be it of a capital or incame nature.

Council manages these risks (amangst other measures) by diversifying its portfolie and only purchasing
investments with high credit ratings or capital guarantees.

Ceuncll also seeks advice from Independent advisers befors placing any funds In cash egulvalents and
Investments.

(a) Market risk — price risk and interest rate risk

The following represents a summary of the sensitivity of Council's Income Statement and accumulated surplu:
(for tha reporting peroc) due ta a change in sither the price of a financial asset or the interest rates applicable

It Is assumed thet the change In Interest rates would have been constant throughout the reporting period

Increase of valuesirates Decrease of valuesirates
1315116 to 0/G1T Prefit Equity Profit Equity
Possible Impact of a 1% movement in interest rales 1,880 1.880 (1.880) (1,880)
Fage 4
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 15. Financial risk management (continued)

$°000
(B) Credit risk

Council's major receivables comprise (i) rates and annual charges and (i) user charges and fees.

The majar risk associated with these receivables is credit risk — the risk that debts due and payable to Counci
may net be repald In full.

Council manages this risk by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent debt recovery procedures

Crediit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the agility of Council 1o secure a charge over the lanc
relating to the debts - that Is, the land can be sold to recover the debi. Councll s also able to charge Interest
on overdue rates and annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of de

There are ne significant concentrations of credit risk, wnether through expesure to individual customers
specific industry sectors and/or regions.

Caouncil makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries cut credit checks on most
non-rate debtors.

There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

A profile of Council's receivables credit risk at balance date folows:

2m7 2017
Rates and
annual Other

charges  receivables
(i) Ageing of receivablas - %

Current (not yet overdue) 57% 4%
Overdue 43% 26%
100% 100%
Rates and

(i) Ageing of receivables — value annual QOther
Rates and annual charges Other receivables charges receivables
i t 1072 12,750

) 30 d: 77e 3,319

- 337

- 36

- 706

1.851 17,148

fiii) Movemant in provision for impairment 017

of receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year {former Councils) 233
— amounts already provided for and written off this year 19
— previous impairment losses reversed (202)
Ealance al the end of the year 46
page 55
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 15. Financial risk management continued)

$°000

(c) Liguidity risk

Payables and barrowings are both subject 1o liquidity risk — the risk that Insufclent funds may be on hand

te meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Council manages this risk by monitering its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an

adequate cash buffer.

Payment terms can (In extenuating clrcumstances) aiso be extanded and overdraft facllities utllisec as requirs

The centractue| undiscounted cash outflows (le. principel and interest) of Councll's payebles end borrowings

are set out in the maturity table balow:

5°000 Subject Total Actual

1o ne payable in: cash

carrying

maturity 51 Year 1-2¥rs 2-3Yrs 3-4 Yrs 45 Yrs. >5Y¥rs  outflows values

13/5/16 to J0/6/17

Iradaiothar payablas 1,885 7,374 7,683 7 RES
Loans and advances M7 B.960 8,960 8,360 8,960 63269 108,126 72,008
Toftaltmancial labiibes 1,455 15,241 6,360 8,960 8,360 B, 960 63,269 115815 4697

Berrewings are alse subject o interest rate risk — the risk that movements In interest rates could acversely
affect funding costs and debt servicing requirements. Councll manages this risk threugh the diversification of

borrowing types. maturities and interest rate structures.

The following interest rates were applicable 2017
to Council s borowings at balance date Carrying Average

value  Interest rate
Trace/other payables 7889 0.00%
Loans and advances - fixed Interest rate 72.008 4.50%

79 697
Note 16. Material budget variations
In accardance with the Supplementary Code 25. this note s nat applicable for "new Councis”.
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Note 17. Statement of developer contributions

$°000

Council recovers contnhuhons, raisas levies and entars into planning agreements on development works that are subject to a development consentissued by Council
All contributions must be spert/utilisad for the specific purpose they were levied and any interest applicable to unspent funds must be attnbuted to remaining funds.

The following tablcs detail the receipt, interest and use of the above contributions and levies and the value of all remaining funds which are ‘restricted’ in their future use

SUMMARY OF CONTRIBUTIONS AND LEVIES

594 Funds Contributions merest | EXpanciture [ Intermal Held as Cll-lr;;:rl:gde
PURPOSE transferred from received durmgthe year earned uring barrow ing restricted boouings
ormar councils cash Non-cash In year year (ta)trom asset due({payadie)
Drainage 1.352 344 | - 33| (88) - 1,641 -
Roads 5,633 1,885 - 153 | (200) - 7,481 -
Parking 85 6 - 2 - - 83 -
Qpen space 945 1.040 - 30 (434) — 1,581 —
Voluntary planning agreements 25 &7 - - - - 92 -
S84 contributions — under a plan 8,040 3,352 - 218 (722) - 10,888 -
S04A levies — under a plan 2 9 - 1 - - k1] -
Tatal 594 revenue under plans 8,061 3,361 | - 219 | (722) - 10,919 -
S84 not under plans 252 13 _ g _ . _ 274 _
S64 contributions 370 3,831 - 74 (3,859) - 416
Total cantributions 8,683 7,205 - 302 (4,581) - 11,609 -
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Note 17. Statement of developer confributions (continued)

$°000

S94 CONTRIBUTIONS — UNDER A PLAN

CONTRIBUTION PLAN (former Dubbo)

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

594 Funds Contributions Interast Expenciture Intermal Held as CL_"”UI"’_U“'E
PURPOSE transferred from received durmgthe year earmed uring barrow ing restricted D_;:.rll:w:gz
former Councils Cash Non-cash In year year (to)rom asset duc/{payaic)
Drainage 1,352 344 | - 3 | 1) 1,641 -
Roads 5,633 1.895 - 155 (200) 7,481 —
Parking 35 8 - 2 - 93 _
Cpen space 945 1,040 3 (434) 1,581
Voluntary planning agreements 25 67 - - - 92 -
Total 8,040 3.352 - 218 (722) 10,588 -
S94A LEVIES — UNDER A PLAN
CONTRIBLUTION PLAN NUMBER 2012 (former Wellington)
594 Funds Conirib utions Interest Expenditure Intermal Held as CL_JmuIati'we
FURPOSE transferred from recelved duringthe year samed during bomew ing restricted b\;l,-,df:“n:g:
former Councils casn Non-casn Inyear yoar (to)rom Fsat Quef|payanie) |
Public order and safety 4 1 5
Community services and education 4 1] - - - 5 -
Household and community amenties 4 1] - - - 5 -
Recreation and cufture 3 2 - 1] - 6 -
Transport and communication 2 2| - - - 4 -
Economic affairs 4 2 6
Total 21 g/ - 1] - # -
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Note 17. Statement of developer confributions (continued)

$ °000
S94 CONTRIBUTIONS — NOT UNDER A PLAN

(former Wellingtan)

594 Funds Contrib utions Interest

PURPOSE transferred from received durngthe year earned

former Courecils Cash Non-cash Inyear
Drainage 62 10 —
Roeds 114 - —
Cpen space 34 _ _

Community faclities 9 1

Emergency services 33 2 —
Total 252 11 -

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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— B3

iy

Expenciture
during
year

Internal
barrew iIng
(ts)trom
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Held as Currlalive
inlerna
restricted bOrowWngs
asset due/| payaic)
75 —
118 —
35 -
10
36 -
74 -
page 33

Page 67

Page 148



APPENDIX NO: 1 - REPORTS - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE -
19 FEBRUARY 2018

ITEM NO: CCL18/21

APPENDIX NO: 1 - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016/2017 |

[ TEM NO: AUD18/1 |

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Firancial Statements 2017

Note 18. Contingencies and other assets/iabilities not recognised

$°000

The following assets and liablities do not qualify for
recognilion in lhe Slalement of T'inancial Posiion, bul
Lheir knowledoe and disclosure is sidered relovant
o the users of Council's financial report.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED:
1. Guarantees

(i} Defined benefit superannuation
contribution plans

Council participates in an emplover-sponsored
defined benefit superannuation scheme, and makes
contributions as datermined by the superannuation
scheme's Lruslees

Member councils bear responsibility of ensuring there
are sufficient funds available 1 pay aut the required
bensfits as they fall due.

The schemes mest recent full actuarial review
indicaled hal lhe nel assels of the scheme wene
ol sullicienl o meel the scorued benelils of the
schemes definad benefit mamber category with
member councils required to make significantly
higher contributions in future years

The Local Govemment Superannuation Scheme
hawever is unable to provide Council with an accurate
eslimale of ils share of lhe nel deficil and accordingly
Council has not recorded any net liakility frem it's
defined benefit schemea ohligations in accordance
with AASE 119,

Muture contrib utions made to the defined benefit
scheme to rectify the net deficit position will be
recognised as an expense when lhey become
payable — similar to the accounting for defined
contributions plans

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

(i} Statewide Limited

Ceuncil is 8 member of Statewide Mutual, a mutual
podl scheme providing liability insurance o lecal
govemment

Membersup includes the potential to shars in ether
the net assets or hiabilites of the fund depending on
its past performance. Council's shars of the net
assets or liabilities reflects Council's confributions to
the pool and the result of insurance claims within
each of the fund years.

I'he futurs realisation and finalisation of claims
ncurred but not reported to 30/ this year may result
nfuture liabiibes or benefits as a result of past
events thal Council will be required to fund or share
in respactively.

{iii) StateCowver Limited

Councilis @ member of StateCover Mutual Limited
and holds a partly pard share in the enbly.

StateCover is a company providing workers
compansation insurance cover fo the NSW local
govemmeant industry and spachcally Council

Council has a contingent hak ity to confr bule further
equity in the event of the erosion of the company's
capital base as a result of the company's past
performance andfor claims experience of &s a result

of any increased prudential requirements from APRA.

| hese fulure squity contnibulions would be required
to mantan the company's minimum leve| of nat
assets In accordance with s licence requirements.

(iv) Other guarantees

Counail has providad no other guarantess dhar than
those listed abava
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Note 18. Contingencies and other assets/liabilities not recognised (continued)

$°000

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED (continued):

2. Other liabilities

(i) Third party claims

I'he Counal 1s nvolved from tme to ims in vanous
clams incidental to the ordinary course of business
including claims for damagss ralating 1o its services

Council believes that it is appropriately coversd
for all claims through ts insurance coverage and
does net expect any maternal habiliies to eventuate.

(i) 394 plans

Council lavies seclion 84,844 confributicns upon
various development across the Council area through

the reqwred contribufions plans

As part of these plans, Council has received funds
for which twill be required to expend the monies in

accordance with hose plans.

Az well, these plans indicate proposed futurs

expendilure to be undertaken by Council, which will
be fundad by making levies and recapting funds in
fulure years or where a shortfall exists by the use of

Council's general funds.

| hese futurs expenses do not yet quality as habiltiss
as of the reporting date, but represert Council's
intention 1o spand funds in the mannar and timing

satautin those plans

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

{iii) Pctential land acquisitions due to planning
restrictions impesed by Council

Council has classified a number of pnvately owned
land parcels as local open spacs or bushland.

As a result, where notified in writing by the various
owners, Council will e required to purchase these
land parcels.

At reporting date, reliable eshmates as to the value
of any polental hability (and subsequent land asset)
from such potential acquisitrons has not been
possible.

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED

(i) Land under rcads

As permitted under AASH 1051, Counc| has elecied
not to bring to account land under roads that it
owned or confrolled up to and including S0/6/08

{ii} Infringement notices/fines

Fines and penalty income, the result of Council
issuing infnngement notces s followed up and

collected by the Infingemeant Processing Bureau

Council's ravenue recognition policy for such
ncomea 15 e account for i as revenua on recaipt

Accordingly, at ysar end, there s a polenhal asset
due to Council representing 1ssued but unpard
nfngement notices

Due to the limited information available on the slatus,

valua and durahon of outstanding noticas, Council s
unable to determing the valus of outstand ing iIncoma
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Note 19. Interests in other entities

$°000

Council's objectives can and in some cases are best met through the use of separate entities and operaticns.

These opereticns and entities range fram 100% ownership and control throLgh to lower levels of ownership
and contral via co-operative arrangements with othar councils, bodiss and other outside organisations.

The accounting and reporting for these various entities, operations and arrengements varies In accordance

with aceounting standards, depending on the |evel of coundl's (1} Interest and (i) control and the type (form) o
entity/operation, as follows:
Confrolled entities (subsidiaries) Nore 18(a)
Operational arrang ements where Council's control [but not necessarily interest) exceeds S0%
Jaint ventures and associates Nore 19(b)
Jont veniures are operational amangemenis whers the parlies that have jont contrel have
nahts 1o the net assets of the arrangement.
Associales are separate entilies whene Council has significant influence over the cperafions
[bul nether conlrols noe jonlly conlrols them)
Jaint operations Nore 79(c)
Operational arrangements where the parties that have jaint control have rights to specific
asscts and obligahons tor speohc labilifics relatng to the armngement rather than a nght
o 1he net assets of the arrangameant.
Unconsolidated structured entities Nore 15(d}
Unconsohdated shruchirad entities reprasant “special vahicles” that Council has an infarest
in but which are not centrolled by Council and therefore not consolidated as a subsidiary.
joint arrang ament or essociate. Attributes of structured entities include rastricted activities,
anarrow and wel| defined objechve and insufficient equity to finance its acivibes without
financial support.
Subsidi , joint g ts and i nol recognised Norc 14(e)
Accounting recognition:
(1) Subsidiaries disclosed under Note 19(a) and joint operations disclosed at Note 13(c) are accounted foron a
‘line by line’ consolidation basis within the |Income Statement and Statement of Financial Position
(i) Joint ventures and associates as per Note 19(b) are accounted for using the equity accounting method
and are disclosed as a 1 line entry in both the Income Statement and Statement of Financial Position
Council's Council’s
share of net share of net
income assefs
Actual Actual
13516
to 30/6AT 2017
Joint ventures 183 1333
Total 183 1,333
Fage &2
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MNote 19. Interests in other entities (continued)

$'000
(a) Controlled entities (subsidiaries) — being entities and operations controlled by Council

Ceuncll has no interest In any controlied antities (subsidiaries).

{£) Joint ventures and associates
Cauncil has incorporated the fallowing joint ventures and associates into its consclidated finandal statements

(a) Netcarrying amounts - Council's share

Nature of Measurement
Name of entity relationship method 2017
Macquarie Regional Library Joint Venture  Cquity 1,333
Total carrying amounts — material joint ventures and associates 1,333
(b) Details
Place of
Name of entity Principal activity business
Macquarie Regional Library Public library services Branches in
Dubbo
Narromine and
Warrumbungle
Council areas
[c) Relevant Interests and fair values Quoted Interest in Interestin  Proportion of
fair value outputs owmership  voting power
Name of entity 2017 2017 207 2017
Macguane Regional Library i 9% 73% 3%
page €3
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MNote 19. Interests in other entities (continued)

$°000

[d) Summarised financial information for joint ventures and associates

Statement of financial pasition
Current assets

Cash and cash eguivalents
Other current asseis

Non-current assels

Current liabllities
Other current liabilities

Nen-current liabilities
Net assets

Reconcilialion of the carrying amount
Opening net assets (former Councis)
Prefitifloss) far the period

Closing net assets

Council's share of net assets (%
Council's share of net assets [3)

Siatement of comprehensive income
Income

Interest income

Depredation and amortisation

Other expenses

Profit/{loss) frem eentinuing operations
Taotal comprehensive income

Share of iIncome - Councll (%)
Profit/{loss) — Council [5)
Tatal comprehensive income — Council &)

(c) Jaint operations.

Ceuncll has ne interest In any joint cperations.

(d) Unconsolidated structured enlities

Council has no unconsclidated structured entities

(e) Subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates not recognised

Macquarie
Regional
Library

217

1,653
BS

901

an
29

1,820

1,562
267
1,829

72.9%
1,333

2,921
a7

[313)

(2,378)
267
267

63.5%
183
183

Al subsidianies, joint amangements and assodates have been recognised in this financial report

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Fimancial Statements 2017

page G4

Page 72

Page 153




APPENDIX NO: 1 - REPORTS - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE -
19 FEBRUARY 2018

ITEM NO: CCL18/21

APPENDIX NO: 1 - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016/2017 |

[ MEM NO: AuD18/1 |

Financial Statements 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 20. Retained earnings, revaluation reserves, changes in acc
policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

$'000

(a) Retained eamings

Movements in retained earnings were as follows:

a Mt result for tha yaar

Balance at end of the reperting period

(b) Revaluation reserves

(i) Reserves are represented by:

— Infrastruciure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
Total

(il) Recencillation of movements in reserves:
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
= Revaluations for the year
— Balance at end of year
TOTAL VALUE OF RESERVES
{ill) Nature and purpose of reserves
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
= The Infrastru cture, property, plant and equipment revaluation
reserve is used to record incrementsidecrements of non-current
asset values due to thelr revaluation.

(c) Correction of error/s relating to a previous reporting period

Councll made na coredtion of errors during the current reporting period

(d) Voluntary changes in accounting policies

Council made no voluntary changes in any accounting pelicies during the year.

(e) Changes in accounting estimales

Councll made na changes In accounting estimates during the year

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

ounting

Aclual
2017

2,327,941
2,327 941

122 836
122,836

122,836
122,836

122,836
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Note 21. Financial result and financial position by fund

Income Statemant by fund

§'000

Continuing operations

Income from continuing operations

Rates and annual charges

User cherges and fees

Interest and Invesiment revenue

Other revenues

Grants and contributiens provided for operating purpeses
Grants and contributiens provided for capital purposes
Other income

Net gains from dispesal of assets

Share of Interests In Joint ventures and assoclates
using the equity method

Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from confinuing operations
Employee benefits and ocn-casts

Eorrowing costs

Materials and contracts

Depredation and amortisation

Other expenses

Net losses from the disposal of assets

Tetal expenses from continuing operations
Cperating result from continuing operations

Net operating result for the year

Gain on local government amalgamation

Assets and liabilities transferred from former councils
Net result for the year

Net operating result for the year before grants
and contributions provided for capital purposes

" General fund refers to all Council's activities cther than Water and Sewer.

Actual
13i6/16
to 30/6/17

Water

7.854
16.816
309
a1
170
2,858

200,296
208,836

5,732

Financial Statements 2017

Actual
13/6/16
to 30/6/17

Sewer

12729
5.213
1.678

66
141
2,733

65

224 354
230,765

3678

Actual
13616
to 300617

General'

39,404
33,883
3,704
1,631
37.683
30,584

3,786

183
150,838

1,842,020
1,888,290

15,706

HME. All amounts disclosed above are gross — thatis, they include internal charges and recoveries made betwesn

tha funds

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Note 21. Financial result and financial position by fund (continued)

Statement of Financial Positicn by fund Actual Actual
$°000 2017 2017
ASSETS Water Sewer
Current assets

Cash and cash egulvalents 6.204 45677

Investments 10.000 8.500

Recaivables 4,744 2.334

Inventerias 223 -
Other 5 -
Total current assets 21176 15,511

Non=current assets

Investments 15,500 28.000

Receivables - -
Inventories - -
Infrastruciure, property, plant and equipment 254 330 278 430

Investments accounted for using the equity method - -
Other 44 -
Total non-current assels 269 B74 306, 430

TOTAL ASSETS 291,050 321.941

LIABILITIES

Current liabllities

Payables 805 359

Income received in advance - -
Eorrowings 1.012 1.849

Frovisicns 365 113

Total current liabilities 2,782 2321

Non=current liabilities

Payables - -
Borrowings 25934 19.429
Provisicns 33 5
Tatal non-current liabilibes 25,867 19.434
TOTAL LIABILITIES 28,749 21,755
Net assets 262,301 300,186
EQUITY

Retained earnings 208 Ba6 230.765
Revaluation reserves 93,415 69421
Total equity 262,301 300,186

! Ceneral Cund refers to all Council’s activities other than Water and Sewer.

Actual
2017

General'

14,871
26,638
11,120
1.653
458
54,740

73,735
755

1,993
1,802,856
1333

451
1,881,153
1,935,893

6.524
770
1791
13,969
23,054

1

21,883
2,555
24,549
47,603
1,688,290

1,888,290

1,888,290

ME. All amounts disclosed above are gross — thatis, they include intemal receivablas and payables between the funds

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Note 22. ‘Held for sale’ non-current assets and disposal groups

$°000

Council did net classify any nen-current assets or disposal groups as ‘held for sale’,

Note 23. Events occurring after the reperting date

Events that occur between the end of the reporting period (30 June 2017) and the date when the finandal
statements are ‘authorised for issue’ have been taken into account in preparing these statements.

Council has adopted the date of receipt of the Auditors’ Report as the applicable ‘authorised for issue’ date
relating to these General Purpose Financial Statements

Accordingly. the ‘autheorised for issue’ date is 27/022018.
Events that occur after the reporling period represent one of two types:
(i) Events that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting period

These financlal statements (and the figures therain) Incorporate all ‘ac)usting events' that provided evidence o
cenditions that existed at 30 Junes 2017.

(i) Events that provide evidence of conditions that arose after the reporting period

These financial statements (and figures therein) do not incorperate any non-adjusting events that have occur
after 30 June 2017 and which are only indicative of conditions that arose after 30 June 2017.

Councll Is unaware of any material or significant ‘'nen-adjusting events’ that should be disclosed

Note 24. Discontinued operations

Council has not classified any of its operaticns as ‘discontinued’.

Note 25. Intangible assets
Intangible assets represent [dentiflakle non-monetary essets without physical substance.

Councll Is unaware of any control over intangible assets that warrant recognition In the financial statements,
Including either intamally gensrated and developed assets or purchased assets.
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Note 26. Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration habilities

$°000

Council has legal/public obligations to make restors, rehabilitate and reinstate the following assets/operations

Estimated NPV of

year of provision

Asseloperation restoration 2017
Quarries 2010 to 2000 821
Tips 2018 to 2023 1.296
Balance at end of the reporting period 2117

Under AASE 116 - Property, Plant and Equipment, where the use of an assat results in the obligation
to dismant/e or remove the asset and restore the site on which the asset stands. an estimate of such costs
is required to be included in the cost of the assat.

An equivalent liability must be recognised under AASB 137 - Provisions, Contingent Liabiities and Continger
Assets,

The provision has been calculated by determining the present value of the future expenditures expected to be
incurred. The discount rate used is the risk free bormowing rate applicable to Council,

Reconciliation of movement in provision for year:

Ealance at beginning of year (fermer Councils) 2,208
Effect of & change In discount rates used in PV calculations (154)
Amortisation of discount (expensed to borowing costs) B5
Total - reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration provision 2117
pege 63
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement

$°000

The Ceuncll measures the following asset and llabliity classes at fair value on a recurring basis
- Infrastructure, property. plant and equipment

The fair value of assels anc liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various accounting standards for

aither recognition and measurement requirements or far disclosure purposes

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liahilities measured at fair value to be assigned fo &

‘level' in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liahilities that the entity can access

at the measurement date.

Level 2; Inputs other than queted prices included Within level 1 that are shservable forthe assat or liability,

either directly or indirectly

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

{1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at

fair values:
air value measurement hierarchy
13/5/16 to 30/6M17 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Guoted = griticant Sgnmcan
Recurring fair value measurements orces i cbservabls  Unchservabie
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Capital works in progress - - 26917
Plant and eguipment - 26425 -
Office aquipment - 1,210 -
Furniture and fittings - 1,395 -
Operstional land - 32,258 -
Cemmunity land = - 35840
Land under roads (post 30/06/2008) - - 9,195
Land Improvements - non-depreciakle - - 1,801
Land Improvement - depreciable - - 3421
Buildings - non-specialised - - 19633
Bulldings - speciallsed - - Go,792
Other structures - - 57,048
Roads - - 1001870
Airport runwaysftaxiways - - 15,830
Eulk sarthworks - - 3,199

Stormwater drainage - -
Water supply network - -
Sewerage network -
Swimming pools - -
Other open space/recreational assets - -
Quarry assels - 1897
Hertage collections -
Other assets -
Tip resioration assels -
Quarry restoration assets -
Total infrastructure, property, plant and equipment - 63386 2,372,261

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Total

28917
26,425
1,310
1,385
32,258
33840
2,195
1,801
3421
10,633
G782
57,043
1,001 8¢5
15,8930
4,169
168,881
234,834
Rl

2,336,646
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$°000

[2) Transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies

Luring the year, ihere were no ransters between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies for recurring far
value measurements

[3) Valuation technigues used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values

Whera Council 1= unabla to denve fair valuahons using quoted market poces of dentical assats
fic 1 3 i ad ulilises & sproad of bolh o ahle s (lovel 2 inpuls) and

The [air valustion lechnigues Coundl has employed while ulilising level 2 and evel 3 inpuols are as lollows
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E]

Level 2 inputs

Plant & equipment

It is cansidered that there is a liquid second hand market for Counci's plant and equipment, however, there is
subjectivity of prices in this market dependent on the age and condition of the equipment being sold. Council
has determined that the plant and equipment is o be classified as level 2 inputs.

Office equipment and furniture & fittings

There i5 a lig ud secend hand market for these types of assets, but the market is not [iquid enough 1o qualify the
assets as valued at level 1. The reason for retaining book value in note 9 is that these assets typically have very
short useful lives, are held 1o the end of their economic life and have no residual value, and the writlen down
value reflects their value in use rather than their market value

Operational and

There is an active liquid market for most of Council's Operational Land, however, the subjectivity of pricing has
resultad inthis |and to be classified as Lavel 2.

Quarry assels

| he quarry assels are valued on the basis of the price of acquinng the same quality matenal from commercial
quamies that cperate within the Dubbo |ocal govemment area. |he reason for level 2 classificabon is that there
s g dogroe ol eshmabon regured lo delenmne he amounl of malenal remaining inihe quarry, and also the

patenhal varation in qual iy of the matanal that has yet o be won from the quarry

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$°000

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values [continued)

Level 3 inputs

Capital works in progress

aclive marke
sl o inp

lruclion of lhe assel As here s
varhaly conslrocled | The only valuabon avalable
consiruchon work, which i a level 3 unohserable input

Community land

Communily land was valucd using urban and roeal avesge monicipal sile valoes These we clermined by
analysing [he lolal ralesble value of urban and rural lands, and then dividing lhe lolal valualions by the lola

area to determine an average rale per hectars or square matre. This was then applied to the areas of

communily leand . This work was carmied oul by Councils raling stafll. This melhod has no markel cbservable

npuls as he raling value s he valualion provded by he Valoer Generdl Tor raling purposes, and may or may

not align with the market value of the land However it is not a market valuation of the land. The level 3
unchbservable inputs are the valuations provided by the VValuer Ceneral on which the value of the land is determined.

Land under roads

Council has elected fo only recognise land under reads that have been acquired after 30 June 2008. There are
two methods by which this land is valued. neither of which represent the market value of the land as there is no
market for land that is currently used for road of road reserve purposes. Land which s ransferred to Council from
private subdividers is valued using the municipal sile value as outiined in valuation of community land abcve
Land under roads relating to Ceuncils ewn subdivisions is valued at the cost of that land et acquisition. on an
area basis. The level 3 unobservable inputs are the average municipal site value of subdividers land vested in
Council, and the cost of the land acquired by Council for subdiision on an area basis.

Land imprevements depreciable and non-depreciable

Land improvements non depreciable are valued at current replacement cost. 1his 15 a level 3 unobs ervable
input as the valuation method does not reflect a market rate as there is no active market for sale of land
IME rovements - non-depreciable.

Buildings - specialised and non-specialised and other structures (including swimming pocls and
open space/recrealional assets)

Valualions of buldings was carred oul by an external valuer, but the valuation was on the written down current
eplacement cosl ol Ihe bwldngs ralber Than the markel value Gonscquenlly, gl bmidings are calegonsed as
leval 3 unobsarvable nputs as the valuahons do not reflact markst valuabons

Infrastructure roads, bridges and foatpaths

i

Vel ion of roads was
dor alue of [he road
alualion and n

aken by bolh an cxlernal val
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$°000

[3) Valuation technigues used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values [continued)
Bulk earthworks [non-depreciable)

valuahion of non-depreciablo bulk catiworks has two difforent valuations depending on whether tho carthwaorks

relata 1o roads or stormivater retarding basins. All earthworks relating 1o roads were valued in conjunclion with
lualion of lhe mads by an oxlemel vl il slall,
rmwalor redarding b Ihwearkess were 1acurrenl
as annlemal valuahon 1he has s of delermining the value for intemal vs
o ool by cil Iracl works, and 1
ar carlhworks Bolh the wl and exlornal val el El [ ‘

lhe lacl Ihal markel valualion wes nol a faclor in delemmining the value of lhe assels

Stormwater, waler and sewer infrastructure assets

Al Lhres assel nelworks were valued by Council slall using recenl Council cosl of conslrucli
el conlradar cosls o strucl Councl assels, and Then crss validaling e cosls (o mn
indexes provided by the NSW Office of Water. The written down value was then assessed by esfimating the total
and remaining useful [ives of the asset to determine the written down current replacement cost of each asset

Heritage collection assets

These items comprise historical artefacts that have been oblained generally by purchase through antique dealers
ar through private sale. As thera is nof an active liguid market in the types of ilems acquired, they are valued at
cost, and therefore have been assessed as being Level 2 unobservable inp ut valuations.

Library books

The library books are reported at fair value in the notes, however, due to the nature of these items they are valued
at cost. There are no major variancse between the fair value and carnying amount of these assets. The cost of these
assets were basad on invoices al the ime of capitalisation

Tip and quarry restoration assets

It has been recognised that there will be significant costs associated with the closure and post closure
management of the landhll and quarry assets. Closure of the landhill and quamy sites will Involve a wids range of
actrviies, mcluding final capping of the landhll waste and site revegedation, menitoring ot landhll gas, revision of
the surface waler management system and leachate management infrastruciure o suit post dlosure operahon

Valuations are based on actual iming of costs and future snvircnmental management reguirsments.

I hare ware no changes in valuahon techniques, from prior yaars

page 13
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$'000

(4). Fair value measurements using significant uncbservable inputs (level 3)

a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes.

Captal woks COmmunty Land under Land
nprogress and roads  improvements
non
depreciadke

Balance on transfer from former Councils 7,388 35 841 7715 1,801

Transfers fromv(to) another asset class (2,050) T
Purchases (GEV) 21,579 - 1,474 -
Disposals (WDV) - (1) - -
Deprecigtion and impaiment - - - -
Closing balance — 30/6/117 26,917 35.840 9,196 1,801
Roads Airpart Bulk Stommwater
UM ys carthwerks drainage
LM s

Balance on transfer from former Councils 1,003,845 15783 343 553 186,233
Transfers from/(to) another asset class 655 - - 53
Purchases (GEV) 12,907 614 B 5T
Disposals (WDV) (273) - (10) -
Depreciation and impaiment (12,009) (460) (1,152)
FV gains — other comprehensive income - - - -
Closing balance — 30/6/17 1,004,975 15,939 344199 188,851

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Lang
mprovemsnts
depreciable

3,622

177
|Z3T5]

3,421

Water
suoply
rebwcrk

183,837
377

1 886
(1)
4,543)
53,415

234 834

Bulalings
nocn
soccalised

16,023

134

(521)

15,633

Sewerage
neiwork

104,112
985
2152
(172)
(5,952)
69,421

260,59

Financial Statements 2017

Buaings oer
specidised struchies
Sub -Total
65,276 53,725 191,381
10 (2,033)
2809 7,378 33,551
(55) 181) (61)
(2,218) (3,873) (6,993)
65,782 57,049 215,649

Swimmi ng Oither open
poolks space
recr=aliona Sub-Total

2884 2,109 1,034,138
- 34 2049
121 124 20,519
- - (4.18)
(118) (151) (24,385)
- - 122,836

2 887 2418 2,054,739
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$ °000
(4). Fair value measurements using significant uncbservable inputs (level 3) conlinued

a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes. (coninuen)

Hertage Library
callections honks
Balance on transfer from former Counclls 29 1
Transfers from/(to) another asset class - -
Purchases (GEV)
Disposals WDV) — —
Depreciztion and impaiment 1) (1)
FV gains — other comprehensive income - -
Remeasurement - Income Stetement - -
Closing balance — 30/6/17 28 -

(5). Highest and best use

All of Council's nonfinancial assets are considered to being utilised for their highest and best use.

Note 28. Related party disclosures

In accordance with the Supplementary Code 25, this note is not applicable for "new Councis”.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Ciher
assets

Tp
restorabon
355045
518
(139)
(1

369
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Quarry
restaration
asscls Total

381 2127771
- 16
54,070
- (705)
(1h) (31,589)
- 122,836
1128) (138)

238 27272 261
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 29. Local Government amalgamation

$°000

The lecal government (Council Amalgamations) Proclamation 2018 [the Freclamation’)
under the Local Geverrment Act 1993 (NSW) transferred the assets and liablities of
tha former caunclis Wallingtan Council and Dubko City Counell t2 Dubko Reglonal
Counell es at 12 May 2016,

Actual

13/6M6

Gain on local government amalgamation to 30617
Assets and llaklltles transferred from former counclls 2,266,670
2,266,670

a. Assets and liabllities transferred from former councils
(i) Carrying amount of assets and liabilities transferred
Assets and llabllties of:

- Welllngten Councll
- Dubko City Councll

have bean recognised by the Coundl at the carrying amount recorded by the former councl.

Ceouncll balleves the camying amounts are not materially differsnt from thalr fair values as at the date of
transfer 12 May 2016

The fair value of the net assets has been shown as a gain on local government amalgamation in the income
statement and further information Is provided on the next page.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 29. Local Government amalgamation (continued)

$°000
a. Assets and liabilities transferred from former councils (conlimued)

(i) Carrying amount of assets and liabilitles transferred icortinu=d)

ramear Gan on local
Wellington  Former Dubbo government
Council City Council  amalgamation
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 11,088 10,208 21,934
Invesiments 7,805 £0.783 38,534
Receivables 4,388 18.B65 23,263
Inventeorias 456 1.903 1,859
Other 273 541 g14
Total current assets 24,020 112,604 136,624
Non-current assets
Investments 14,783 25.360 40,153
Receivables 272 2,358 2,630
Inventories - 1.814 1.814
Infrastructurs. property. plant and equipment 314,998 1,872,678 2,187,576
Investments accounted for using e equily melh 242 308 1,150
Other - 4395 495
Total non-current assets 330,305 1,903,513 2,333,818
TOTAL ASSETS 354,325 2,016,117 2,370,442
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payatles 1.822 7.006 8918
Borrowings 388 4983 5,377
Provisions 2,779 11,797 14,576
Total current liabilities 4,989 23,882 28,871
Non-current liabilities
Payables - 1 1
Borowings 8923 63142 72.085
Provisions 1,877 1,268 2,835
Total non-current liabilities 10,500 64,401 74,901
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,489 88,283 103,772
Net assets transferred 338 836 1,827 834 2 266,670

fii) Rates and Non-Reciprocal Grants income

The rates and non-reciprocal grants revenue for the period from 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2016

‘wars recorded in the finandal statements of the farmar coundls in accordance with AASE 1004 Contributions

The assels transferred to Council indude & porlion of rates end nonseciprocal grants thal were received but

related to the period after the former councils ceased to exist
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 30. Council information and contact details

Principal place of business:
Church Street
Dubbo NSW 2830

Contact detalls
Malling address:
PO Box 81

Dubko NSW 2630

Telephone: 026801 4000
Facsimile: 02 6801 4259

Officers
GENERAL MANAGER
Michasl McMahon

RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

Jane Bassingthwaighta

PUBLIC OFFICER
Craig Gifin

AUDITORS

Audit Office of New South Weles
GPO Box 12

Sydney NSW 2001

Other information
ABN: 533539070928

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Opening hours:
2:00 am to 5:00 pm
Wonday to Friday

Internet: wwwv.dubbo.nsv.gov.au
Emall:  dec@dubbo.nsw.gov.au

Elected members
MAYOR
Ben Shiclds

COUNCILLORS
Annemarie Jonas OAM
Jane Diffay

Vicki Etheridge

David Grant

Dayne Gumley
Stephen Lawrence
Grag Mehr

Kevin Parker

John Ryan
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SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017
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Dubbo Regional Council
Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017
Contents Page
1. Statement by Councillors and Management 2
2. Special Purpose Financial Statements:
Income Statement — Water Supply Business Activity 3
Income Statement — Sewerage Business Activity 4
Income Statement — Other Business Activities 5
Statement of Financial Positicn — Water Supply Business Activity 8
Statement of Financial Position — Sewerage Business Activity g
Statement of Financial Position — Cther Business Activities 10
3, Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements 13
4, Auditor's Report 22

Background

U]

{n

)

(v

These Special Pumpose Financial Statements have been praparad for the use by bath Council and the Office
Local Governmenl in fulfilling their reguirerments under Malional Compelilion Policy

The prnciple ef competitive neutrelity is based on the concept of a “level playing field’ between personsfentiies
competing in @ markei place. particularly between prvate and public sector competitors

Essenlially. the principle is that government businesses, whether Commaonwealih, state or local. should operate
without net competitive advantages over other businesses as a result of their public cwnarship.

T'or Council, the principle of competitive neutrality and public reporting applies enly to daclared business activiies

These include (a) those aclivities classified by the Ausiralian Bureau of Statistics as business aclivities being
water supply, sewerage services, abattoirs, gas production and reficulation, and (b) those activities with a turmover
of more than $2 million that Counc | has formally declared as a business actvity (defined as Catagory 1 activiies)

In preparing these financ ial statsmants for Council’s sslf classified Category 1 businesses and ABS defined
aclivities. councils must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and () apply full cost attributicn including tax-equivalar
regime payments and debt guaranese fees (whare the business benetits fram Council’s bomowing posibon by
companson with commercial rates ).

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Dubbo Regional Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant to the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have bean prepared in accordance with:

* the NSW Government Policy Statement “Application of National Competition Policy to
Local Government',

* the Division of Local Government Guidelines “Pricing and Gosting for Council Businesses —
A Guide to Competitive Neutrality',

* tha Local Government Cede of Accounting Practica and Financial Reparting,

= the NSW Offics of WWater Best-Practice Management of Water and Sewerage Guidelines.
To the best of cur knowledge and belief, these financial statements:

= present falrly the operating result and financial position for eech of Council's declared business
activities for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017, and

* accord with Council's accounting and other records

‘We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 26 February 2018,

Ben Shields Annemane Jones OAR
Mayor Councillor
Michael MoMahon Jane Rassinglhwaighle
General Manager Responsible accounting officer
page 2
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Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement of Council's Water Supply Business Activity
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

§°'000

Income from continuing operations

Arcess charges

User charges

Fees

Interest

Grants and contributiens provided for non-capltal purposes
Other Income

Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee kenefits end en-costs

Eorrewing costs

Materials anc contracts

Deprediation, amortisation and impairment
‘Water purchase cherges

Loss on sale of assets

Calculated taxetion equivalents

Other expenses

Total expenses from continuing operations
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations befare capital amounts

Grants and contributicns provided for capital purposes

Surplus (deficit) from continuing cperations after capital amounts
Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations

Surplus [deficit) from all operations before tax

Less: corporats taxaton equivalent (30% ) [based on resul belue capild]

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

Plus Assels and liabilities transferred from former councils
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid

— Taxation ivalent payments
Debl guaraniee fees
— Corporate taxation equralent

Less:

— Tax equivalent dividend paid
— Surplus ¢ividend paid
Closing retained profits

Return on capltal %
Subsidy from Council

Calculation of dividend payable

Surplus [deficit) after tax

Lass: capital grants and conftributions {oxclucing develoocr contributars)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes

Potential dividend calculated from surplus

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

SMFS 2017

Actual
13516
to 30/6M17

7,654
16,816
909
170

81
25,630

4770
1918
5,088
5,002
70

41
125
3,031
20,023
5,607

2,858
8,465

8,465
(1,682)
6,783
200 7ah
125
1,682
203,89;

3.0%

B,083

{2:813)
3840
1,970
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Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement of Council's Sewerage Business Activity
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

§°'000

Income from continuing operations

Arcess charges

User charges

Liquid trade waste charges

Fees

Interest

Grants and contributiens provided for non-capital purposes
Profit frem the sale of assels

Other income

Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations

Employee benefits and on-costs

Borrowing costs

Materials and contracts

Depredaticn, amortisation and impairment

Loss on s&le of assets

Calculeted taxetion equivalents

Other expenses

Total expenses from continuing operations

Surplus (deficit) from continuing cperations befare capital amounts

Grants and centributiens provided for capital purposes
Surplus [deficit) from continuing cperations after capital amounts

Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (30% ) oased on resul befue capild]

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

Plus Assels and liabilities transferred from former councils
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:

— Taxalion equivalenl paymenls

—Debt guararntse fees

— Corporate laxation equivalent

Less:

— Tax equivalent dividend paid

— Surplus dividend paid

Closing retained profita

Return on capital %
Subsidy from Council

Calculation of dividend payable

Surplus [deficit) after tax

Lowe. capilsl grants and conlibubions jzselusing sevelossr zontribubang)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes

Potential dividend calculated from surplus

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

SPFS 2007

Actual
13516
to 30/6M17

12,729
4,857
9
317
1,678
141

85

56
19,892

3,808
1,252
3,302
6,144
114
225
1,594
16,430
3,453

2,733
6,186

6,186
(1,036)

230,765

1.7%
1,822

5150
(2715)
2435
1,218
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Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement of Council's Other Business Activities

for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017
Cubbo City
aqional Arport

13516

5°000 to 30/817
Income from continuing operations
Arcess charges -
User charges 4,382
Fees -
Interest -
Grants and contributions pranlded for non-:apltal purposes -
Other Income 187
Total income from continuing operations 4,549
Expenses from confinuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 459
Borrowing costs 152
Materials anc contracts 1,830
Depredaticn, amortisatien and impairment £26
Loss on sale of assets -
Calculated taxation equivalents 100
Other expenses 254
Total expenses from continuing operations 3,621
Surplus (deficit) from continuing cperations before capital amounts 028
Grants and centributiens provided for capitel purposes 284
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 1,212
Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations -
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 1,212
Less: corparate texation equivalent (30%) nasea on resut betors capia) (278}
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 934
Plus Assets and llabilities transferred from former councils 25,871
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid
— Texation equivalent payments 100
— Debt quaranize fees -

Corporale laxslion equinalonl aja
Add:

Subsidy peid/connbulion ko operalions
Less:
— IER drwdend pad -
—Dwidend pand —
Closing retained profits 27,283
Return on eapital % 4.0%

Subs|dy from Ceuncil -

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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SPFS 2007

Livestock

Markats

category 1
Actual

13516
ta 30/6MT
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Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement of Council's Other Business Activities
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Property
Development
Category 1

Actual

13516
5°000 to 30/617
Income from continuing operations
Arcess charges -
User charges -
Fees -
Interest 26
Grants and contributions prsvlded for non-:apltal purposes -
Profit frem the sale of assets 4,205
Other income 12
Total income from continuing operations 4,243
Expenses from confinuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 2
Eerrewing costs -
Materlals and contracts 2,400
Depredaticn, amortisatien and imparment -
Calculated taxation equivalents 297
Other expenses —
Total expenses from continuing operations 2,699
Surplus (deficit) from continuing cperations before capital amounts 1,544
Grants and centributiens provided for capitel purposes -
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 1,544
Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations -
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 1,544
Less: corporate texation equivalent (30%) nasea on resut betors capia) (483}
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 1,081
Plus Assets and llabilities transferred from former councils 7,358
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid
— Texation equivalent payments 297
— Debt quaranize fees -

Corporale laxslion equinalonl 463
Add:
Subwsidy peid/con nbulion ko operalions

Less:
— IER drwdend pad -
—Lwidend pand —
Closing retained profits 9,195
Return on eapital % n/a

Subs|dy from Ceuncil -

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

SPFS 2007

Dubbec City
Holiday Park
caiegory ?

Actual

13516
ta 30/6MT

200
227

1,679
236

236

236

(71)

165
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Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement of Council's Other Business Activities
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

£°'000

Income from continuing operations

Arcess charges

User charges

Fees

Interest

Grants and contributicns provided for non-cepital purposes
Profit frem the sale of assels

Other income

Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from confinuing operations

Employee benefits and on-costs

Eerrewing costs

Materlals and contracts

Depredaticn, amortisatien and imparment

Calculated taxation equivalents

Other expenses

Total expenses from continuing operations

Surplus (deficit) from continuing cperations before capital amounts

Grants and centributiens provided for capitel purposes
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts

Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax
Less: corporate texation equivalent (30%:) nasea en resut beter= capial

SURFLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

Plus Assets and llabilities transferred from former councils
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid
— Taxation equivalent payments
— Debt quaranize fees

Corporale laxslion equinalonl
Add:

Subsidy peidicon nbulion ko operalions
Less:
— IER diwdend pad
—Dwidend pand
Closing retained profits

Return on eapital %
Subs|dy from Ceuncil

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

SMFS 2017

Rainbow

Cottage

category ?
Actual

13516
ta 30/6MT

726
581

1,307

630

-2 4%
182
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SMFS 2017
Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Position — Council's Water Supply Business Activity
as at 30 June 2017

Actual
5000 2017
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,204
Investments 10,000
Recalvebles 4,744
Inventeries 223
Other 5
Nen-current assets classifled as held for sale -
Total current assets 21176
Nen-current assets
Investments 18,500
Recelvables -
Inventeries -
Infrastructura, property, plant and equipment 254,330
Investmeant proparty -
Intangible assets -
Other 44
Total non-current assets 269,874
TOTAL ASSETS 291,050
LIABILITIES
Current liabllities
Eank overdratt -
Payables 805
Income recelved in advance -
Ecrrewings 1.012
Provisicns g85
Total current liabilities 2,782
Nonscurrent liabilities
Payables -
Income received in advance -
Eorrowings 25,934
Provisicns 33
Total non-current liabilities 25,967
TOTAL LIABILITIES 28,749
MNET ASEETS 262,301
EQUITY
Retained earnings 206,886
Revaluation reserves 53415
TOTAL EQUITY 262,301
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SMFS 2017
Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Position — Council's Sewerage Business Activity
as at 30 June 2017

Actual
5000 2017
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,677
Investments 8,500
Recalvables 2,334
Inventeries -
Other -
Nen-current assets classifled as held for sale -
Total current Assets 15,511
Nen-current assets
Investments 28,000
Recelvables -
Inventories -
Infrastructura, property, plant and equipment 278,430
Investmeant proparty -
Intangible assets -
Other -
Total non-current assets 306,430
TOTAL ASSETS 321,941
LIABILITIES
Current liabllities
Eank overdratt -
Payables 359
Income recelved in advance -
Ecrrewings 1.849
Provisicns 113
Total current liabilities 2,31
Nonscurrent liabilities
Payables -
Income received in advance -
Ecrrawings 19,429
Provisicns 5
Total non-current liabilities 19,434
TOTAL LIABILITIES 21,755
NET ASEETS 300,186
EQUITY
Retained earnings 230,765
Revaluation reserves 69,421
TOTAL EQUITY 300,186
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SMFS 2017
Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Position — Council's Other Business Activities
as at 30 June 2017

Dubbo City Livestock
Hagional Airport Markals
Calagory 1 Cadlegoy 1
Actual Actual
5'000 2017 2017
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cesh equivalents 1 -
Invesiments 1.624 4,192
Recelvebles 250 442
Inventaries - -
Other - -
Nen-current assets classified as held for sale - -
Total Current Assets 1,875 4,634
Non-current assets
Investments - -
Recelvables - -
Inventeries - -
Infrastructura, property, plant and equipment 26,953 20,652
Investment property - -
Intangible assets - -
Other - -
Tetal non-current assets 26,963 20,652
TOTAL ASSETS 23,838 25,286
LIABILITIES
Current llabilities
Eank overdratt - -
Peyatles 101 &7
Income recelved in advance - -
Berrewings 183 -
Provisiens 120 158
Total current liabilities 384 225
Nen-current liabilities
Payables - -
Income recelved in advance - -
Ecrrewings 1.183 —
Provisiens a 11
Total non-current liabllities 1,11 11
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,555 236
NET ASSETS 27 283 25050
EQUITY
Retained earnings 27.283 25,050
Revaluation reserves - -
TOTAL EQUITY 27,282 25050
page 10
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Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Position — Council's Other Business Activities

as at 30 June 2017
Property
Development
Calagory 1
Actual
5000 2017

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cesh equivalents -
Invesiments 5534
Recelvebles 1111
Inventeries 659
Other -
Nen-current assets classifled as held for sale -
Total Current Assets 7,304

Non-current assets

Investments -
Recelvables -
Inventeries 1,885
Infrastructura, property, plant and equipment -
Investment property -
Intangible assets -
Other -
Tetal non-current assets 1,895
TOTAL ASSETS 9,199

LIABILITIES

Current llabllities

Eank overdratt -
Peyatles -
Income recelved in acvance -
Berrewings -
Provisions -
Tetal current liabilities -

Nen-current liabilities

Payables -
Income recelved in advance -
Berrewings -
Provisiens -
Total non-current liabilities -
TOTAL LIABILITIES —
NET ASSETS 9199

EQUITY

Retained earnings 9,199
Revaluation reserves -
TOTAL EQUITY 9,198

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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SPFS 2007

Dubbec City
Holiday Park
Calegory 2

Actual
2017

246
430
5443

5.443

5443
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Dubbo Regional Council

SPFS 2007

Statement of Financial Position — Council's Other Business Activities

as at 30 June 2017

5000

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cesh equivalents

Invesiments

Recelvables

Inventaries

Other

Nen-current assets classifled as held for sale
Total Current Assets

Non-current assets

Investments

Recelvables

Inventeries

Infrastructura, property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Intangible assets

Other

Tetal non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current llabllities

Eank overdratt

Peyatles

Income recelved in acvance
Berrewings

Provisions

Tetal current liabilities

Nen-current liabilities
Payables

Income recelved in advance
Berrewings

Provisiens

Total non-current liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Retainsd earnings
Revaluation reserves
TOTAL EQUITY

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Rainbow

Cottage

Calegory 2
Actual
2017

640
852

12
12
222
630

630

530
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Dubbo Regional Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Contents of the notes accompanying the financial statements
Note  Details
1 Summary of significant accounting policies
2 Water Supply Business Best-Practice Managemen: disclosure requirements

3 Sewerage Business Eest-Practice Management disclesure requirements
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SMFS 2017
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Dubbo Regional Council

SPFS 2077

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements

Tar lhe poeriod 13 May 2016 1o 30 Junc 2017

Note 1. Significant accounting policies

These inanc slalomenls  are Spocial Pumposnz
Financial Statements prepared for use by Council
and the Office of Local Govemment. or the
purpeses of these statemants. the Coundil is a non-
reporting not-tar-profil antity

The figures presenied in ihese Special Pupose
Financial Statements have been prepared in
accardance with the recognition and measurement
crtena of relevant Australlan Accounting Standards,
alher aulbonlalive pronauncomaoenls ol he A AliE N
Accounlng Slandards Board (AASB) and Auslmalian
Accounting Interpretations.

The disclosures in these Special Purpose Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Local Government Act 1883 (NSW), the Local
Governmenl (Goenoral) Regulalion, and tho | ocal
Government Code of Accounting Practice and
Financial Reporting

| he stataments are prepared on an accruals basis.
I hey are bi on h =15 and do nal ke nlo
accounl changing money valucs or exeepl whore
spacifically staled, current values of non-current
assets Cerlain taxes and other casts, apprepriately
described, have been imputed for the purposes of
the MNational Com pethon Policy

Natlonal Competition Polley

Council has adopted the pnnciple of ‘competitive
neutrality” n its business achivihes as part of the
Malional Compelilion Palicy which is boing apphed
throughout Australia at all levels of gove mment.

The frameworx for its application is set out in the
June 1996 MSW government palicy stalement titied
‘Applieabion al Nalonal Compelihion Pohey 1o | ocal
Governmenl!

The Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses, A
Guide to Com petitive MNeutrality issued by the Office
af lacal Govarnment in July 1987 has also baen
adopled

The pricing and costing guidelines oulline the
process for icentifying anc allccating costs
achvities and provide a standard tor disclosure
requircmenls

sclosures s reflocled n Council's pridng
reparting  systems and include

These
and/or financial

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

laxalion cquivalenls, Counal subsidies, relum on
investmants (rate of return). and dividends paid

Declared business activities

In sceordance wilk Pricing and Gosting for Ca
Busineszes — A Cuide fo Compeiitive Neuftrality,
Council hes declared that the following are 10 be
considered as business activities:

Calegory 1

(Whefe oSS eperaning tumao\er is over 52 milion)

a. Water Supply Service

Comprising the whele of the water supply
operations and net assets servicing the city of
Uubkbo, the tawn of Wellngton and the villages ot
Wongarban,  Ballimore,  Rrocklchursl, Geurie,
Mumbil and Morth Yoeoval

b. Sewerage Service

Cormprising lhe whole of lhe secwerage reliculalion
and irestment operations and nel assels system
servicing the city of Dubbe, the town of Wellington
and the willages of Wangarbon, DBrocklehurst,
Geung and Mumbil.

c. Dubbo City Regional Airport

Gampnsng whole of lhe arporl operabons
and nel assels localed on Coreera Road

d. Dubbe Regional Livestock Markets

Compnsing the whole of the lvestock markets
aprrlions and nel assols loealod on Boolbenba
Road

e Properly Development

Council's property davelopment function
compeles wilh olther privale land devolopers in
Dubbo in the development of bolh mdustial and
residential land for purchase

MB. Ihe surplus on disposal of land 15 disclosed
in the Income Slatement of he Business Activitics
as opersling rovenue o lhe Geneal Purpose
Financial Statements this s disclosed as
gain/(lass) an disposal of asseats.
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Dubbo Regional Council

SPRFS 2017

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements

Tar lhe period 13 May 2016 1o 30 Junce 2017

Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Category 2

(where gross operating fumover is less than $2 milion)

a. Dubbo City Holiday Park

Comprising the whole of the holiday park
oparatiens and net assels located on VWhylandra
Strect

The park offers accommodalion Tor raEvans,
cabin accommaodation and tent sites. The Dubbo
City Ileliday Park is in direct competition with
other caravan parks within Dubbo.

k. Rainbow Cottage Long Day Care Centre
Hanmbow Coftage, located 1n Mtchsil Street,
provides day care for childien aged bolween 0

and 5§ years.

Severa| other leng dey care faciities operate
within Dubba, and Rainbow Cottage is in direct
competition with these cenires.

Monetary amounts

Amounts shawn in the financial statements are in
Australian currency and rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars, except for MNote 2 [Water ‘:supp|y
Bosl Praclien Managemenl Disclosums) and Nole
{Sewerage Besl-Mruclice Managemenl ler..lubure':]

As reguired by the NSW Dffice of W ater (Department
af Prmary Industres) the amounts shown in Note 2
and MNolo 3 are disdosod in whole dollars

(i) Taxation-equivalent charges

Council is liable to pay various taxes and financial
duties. Where this is the case, they are cisclosed as
a cost of operations just like all other costs

Howewver, whore Council does nol pay some [axes
which arc genemlly  paid by  privale  scelor
businessas such as income fax, these equivalent tax
payments have been appled to al Council-
nominated business activities and are reflected in
Speaal Purpose Financal Slatemants

For the purposes of disclosing comparative
information relevant to the private sector equivalent,
the following taxation equivalents have been applied
to all Council-neminated business activities (this
does not indude Council's nan-business aclivibies):

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Motional rate applied (%)
Corporate income tax rate — 30%

— the first §549,000 of combined land
values allracls 0% For lho eombined land values in
excess of §549001 up o $£3,357,000 the rate
is 1.6% + $100. For the remaining combinec land
wvalue that exceeds 53,257,000 a premium marginal
rate of 2.0% applies
Payroll tax — 5.45% on the value of taxable salaries
and wages in exeess ol $750.000.

In accordance with the Department of Primary
Industries Water (DPIVW), & payment for the amount
caleulated as the annual tax equivalent charges
{gxcluding mncome fax) musi be pawd from waler
supply and soworage business aclivilios

The payment of taxation equivalent charges, referred
1o in the NSW Office of Water Guidelines to as a
‘dvidend for taxation equivalent’, may be applied for
any purpose alowed under he Dol Govenomiend
Act, 1893

Achievemnent of substantial compliance to the HSW
Office of Water Guidelines i= not a prerequisite for
the payment of tha tax equivalent chargas howaver
the: payment must naol cxcecd §3 per assessmenl

Income tax

An income tax equrvalent has been apphed on the
profils of lhe business aclivilios

Whilst income fex is not a specific cest for the
purpose of pricing a good or service, it needs io be
taken nto account in terms of assessing the rate of
rlurn reouired on caplal im d

Accordingly, the refurn on capital invested is sef ata
pretax level - gain/floss) from ordinary aclivities
before capital amounts, as would be applied by a
privata saclor competdor That =, t should inch,
provision cguivalonl la the corporale income
curmrently 30%

Income tax is only appliec¢ where & gain/ (loss) from
ordinary activities before captal amounts has been
achicved

Sinee he laxalion cguivalonl is noliona!l  thal is, iLis
payable t Council as the owner of business
operations - it represents an internal payment and
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Dubbo Regional Council

SAFS 2017

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements

Tar lhe poeriod 13 May 2016 1o 30 Junc 2017

Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

has no offlecl on lhe oporalions ol the Gounal
Accordingly, there is no need for disclosure of

internal charges in Councl's General Furpose
linancial Statements.
The rale applicd of 30% & lhe cquivalenl company

tax rate prevalent at reporting dale. Mo adjustments
have been made fer variations that have occurred
during the year

Local government rates and charges

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges
payable on all category 7 businesses has been
applied to all land assets owned of exclusively used
by the business aclivity.

Lean and debt guarantee fees

Council has determined that there is no significant
differential between the Council borrowing rate and
the rates hat are avalable to commeraal operations,
and L e has nal nch i & loan and dobl
guarsnles componenl.

(ii) Subsidies

Government policy reguiras that subsidies provided
to cusiomers, and the funding of those subsidies,
musl b explicilly dsclosed

Subsidies occur when Council provides services on a
less-than-cost-recovery  basis. This  option is
exarased on a range of services in order for Council
lo meol ds communily service obligalions

Accordingly, ‘subsidies disclased’ (in relaton to
Mational Competition  Policy) represents  the
difference between revenue generated from ‘rate of
refurn’ pneing and revenue generated from pnoes sot
by Council i any green Ninancial year

The everall effect cf subsidies is containe¢ within the
Inceme Statsment of sach repertad business activity

(iii) Return on investments (rate of return)

I he MCE policy statement roquires that councils with
Calegary 1 busin ‘would bo expocled (o
goenerale a relurn on capilal inds crmployed Thal s
comparable 1o rates of return for private businesses
operating in a similar field”

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

nlly available for meoling
fnancing  future  investment

Such Tunds arn subs
commitments or
strategies.

Ihe actual rate of retum achieved by each business
achvily is disclosed al lhe ool of cach rospeclve
Income Stalement.

The rate of return is calculated as follows:

Operating result befora capkal Income + Interest axpense

Written down value of Infrastructure, Property, Plant &
Equipment as at 30 June

As aminimum, business adivities should generate
return egual to the Commanwealth 10 year bond rate
which is 2.38% at 30/G/17.

(iv) Dividends

Counal s nol roguimd [0 pay desdonds Lo cilber
ilsell (as ownor of @ range ol businessesy or lo any
external entities.

Local government water supply and sewerage
businesses ara permitted to pay an annual drodand
from ils waler supply ar seworage busino: urplis

Cach dividend must be calculated and approved in
accordance with the DFIW guidelines and must not
excead:

(I} 50% of this sumplus in any ane year, ar

() the number of water supply or sewerage
assessments at 30 June 2017 multiplied by 530
(less the payment far tax equivalent charges, not
excendng $3 por assessmenl)

In accordance with the DPMW guidelines a Dividend
Payment form_ Statement of Compliance. Ungualified
Independent kinancial Audit Heport and Complance
Judit Report are nequired ta be submitted to the
[MEY
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APPENDIX NO: 1 - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016/2017 |

[ TEM NO: AUuD18/1 |

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 2. Water supply business
besl-practice management disclosure requirements

Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated)

1. Calculation and payment of tax-equivalents
[all local govern ment local water utlities must pay this dividend for tax cquivalents]

(I) Calculated tax equivalents
(il)  Mumber of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment
(i) Amounts pavable for tax equivalents flesser of [i) 2nd [ii)]
(iv)  Amounts actually pald for tax equivalents
2. Dividend from surplus
) 50% of surplus before dividencs
[calculated In accordan ce with Best-Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage Guldelines|

(i) Mumber of assessments muftiplied by $30/assessment, |ess tax equivalent
charges/assessment

(iiiy  Cumulative surplus before dividends for the 3 years to 30 June 2017, |ess the
cumulative dividends paid for the 2 years to 13 May 2016 and 30 June 20156

2017 Surplus 3,939 300

(iv)  Maximum dividend from surplus jieast of (i), fii) and (i} above]
(V) Dividend actually paid from sumIUS [refer helow for required pre-dividend payment erlteria]
[vi)  Are the overhead reallocation charges to the water business fair and reasonable?*

3. Required outcomes for 6 criteria
[to be eligible for the payment of a “dividend from surplus’, all the criterla below need a 'YES'

i) Completion of strategic business plan (including financial plan]

(I} Full cost recovery, without signficant cross subsidies
[refor itam 2 {a] in table 1 on paye 33 of the Best Practice Guidelines]

- Complying ¢harges [iem 2 (b In mble 1]
= D3P with commercial developer charges [iem 2 () in mble 1]
— Ifdual water supplies, complying charges [irem 7 (g} in table 1]

(i) Seund water conservation and demand mamagement implemented
(iv)  Sound drought management implemented

(v) Complete performance reporting form (by 15 September each year}

(vl) a Intzgrated water cyde management evaluation

b. Cemplets and implement intagrated water cycle managsment strategy

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

SMFS 2017

131516
to 06T

125,000

56,725

58,725
=

1,969,950 |
578,525

12,679,800

578,525

YES

-

w
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&
v (=

(=

=

=< [=| ¢l x| |=|l=
T i TN |IT)
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 2.

Water supply business

besl-practice management disclosure requirements (continued)

1315116
Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) to 30/6/17
National Water Initiative ([NWI) financial performance indicators
NWI F1  Total revenue (water} 5000 27,552
Total ineame (wil) - granta for the aequisition of assets (wi 1) - interesr ine ome (W)
— Abariginel Communitizs W&S Program income [wila)
NWI F4  Revenue from residential usage charges (water) % 71.66%
Inenme from residentinl 1sane charges (wEh) x 100 divided by the sum of
lincome from residential usage charges (wha) + income trom residential
access charges (wib)|
NWI F3  Written down replacement cost of fixed assets (water} 000 253,109
Wiritten down current cost of system assets [wd /)
NWI F11  Operating cost (OMA] (water) 5000 11 §1§
g P (wi)+ il and mai & uxp (wi)
NWI F14  Capital expenditure (weter) 5000 2741
Acquisition of fined asscls (wiB)
NWIF17  Economic real rate of return (water) % o
[#: lal income iwl3)— inleves! inceme (w3} - granis (v acyuisiion of assels (wlla) -
operaling cosls (W1 F11) - curent cost depreciation {w3)] x 100 dividad by
[writen dewn current cost of system assers [wd7) + plant and equipment (w3 30)]
NWI F26  Cagital works grants (water) 5000 -
Grants for the acquisition of assets [wl 1a)
Hotes 1 Retesnces o w (2.9, W' Z) refer 1o 1lem numoers within Soecial Schedules 3 and 4o
Coundls Anmual Financka Statomonis.
2 Ihe NI perfarmance Indicators are bas=d Jpon the Nabonal Ferformance | ramework

Iandbook for Urban Ferformance Reporting Indicalors and Definiko ns

TETer 10 32 2) 07 page 15 @l he st Practce Management of Wiater Supoly
and Sewsrage Guidshnes, 2004

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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SMFS 2017
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SMFS 2017
Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 3. Sewerage business
besl-practice management disclosure requirements

Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) to ;g:g::g
1. Calculation and payment of tax-equivalents
[all local govern ment local water utlities must pay this dividend for tax cquivalents]

(I) Calculated tax equivalents 225,000
(i)  Mumber of assessmants muftiplied by $3/assessment [ 34441
(i) Amounts pavable for tax equivalents flesser of [i) 2nd [ii)] E
{iv)  Amounts actualy paid for tax equivalents =
2. Dividend from surplus

i) 50% of surplus before dividends [ 1217550

[ealculated in aeeardan ce with Reat M actice Management for Water Supply and Sewersga Guidelines]
(ii)  Mumber of assessments x (530 ess tax eguivalent charges per assessment) [ 489,969 |

(i)  Cumulative sumplus before dividends for the 3 vears to 30 June 2017, less the
cumulative dividends paid for the 2 years to 13 May 2018 and 30 June 2015 9,216,600

2017 Surplus 24795900

(iv)  Maximum dividend from surplus pieast of (il i) and (i} above] 439,859
(v)] Dividend actually pald from sumlus refur bulow for required pre dividend payment citeria] -

(Vl)  Are the overhaad raallacation charges to tha sewer businass far and raascnable?”

3. Required cutcomes for 4 criteria
[to be eligikle for the payment of a “dividend from surplus’, all the crierla below need a 'YES']

) Completion of strategic business plan (including financial plan]

(i) Pricing with full cost-recovery, without significant cress subsidies
[refer kem 2 (a) in1able 1 on page 22 of the Best-Practice Guidelines]
Gomplying charges (8) Residential fitem 2 (c) in 1able 1]

(b) Non-esidential [item 2 (=) in 1hie 1]

(€) Trade waste jikem 2 (d) in table 1]
DSP with commercial developer charges |item 2 (=) in table 1]
Liguid trade waste approvals and peliey [iwm 2 {1} in table 1]

fiii)  Complete performance reporting form (by 15 September ssch year) YCS
(iv) & Integrated water cyde management evaluation YCS
b. Complete and Implement Integrated water cycle management strategy Y5
page 19
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SMFS 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 3. Sewerage business
besl-practice management disclosure requirements (continued)

131516
Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) to 30/6/17

National Water Initiative ([NWI) financial performance indicators

NWI F2  Total revenue (sewerage) 000 20,875

Taral ineame (3 14) - grants for acquisition of A9sars (s 17a) - intarest ineome [s10)
— Abariginal Communities WES Program income [wila)

NWI F10 Written down replacement cost of fixed assels (sewerage) 5000 277,368
Wiritten down current cost of system assets [s48)

NWI F12 Operating cost (sewerage) 000 &,630
Management expenses {s1] + operational and maintenance expenses s}

NWI F15 Capital expenditure (sewsrage) S000 1,759
Acquisition of fixed assets (s14)

NWI F18 Economic real rate of return (sewerage) % 2.19%

Htotal income {514} - interestincome (s10) - grants for acquisition of assets {s12a}
—opeiating cust {NW| F12] - curment cost depreciation (s3)] x 100 divided by
Peritten down curent cosl (L. WDCU] ol syslem assels (18 + planl snd squipment (s $1b))

NWI F27  Cagpltal works grants (sewerage) 5000 -

Grants lur Lhe scyuisilion of assels [12a)

National Waler Initiative (NWI) financial performance indicators
Water and sewer (combined)

NWIF3  Total income (waler and sewerage) 000 46,371
Tatal ineame (w13 1 314} 1 gainioas on dispossl of assets [wid 815
minus grants for acquisition of assers (wi1a « s12a) - interest income (wd 1+ 510)

NWI FB  Revenue fram community service obligations [water and sewerage) % 0.57%
Community service obligations {NWI F23) x 100 divided by total income [NWI 1]

NWI F16  Capital expenditure (water and sewerage) 000 4 500
Acquisition of fixed assets [wlk ~s17}

NWI F19  Economic real rate of return (waler and sewerage) w [ 315%

Hotal income (w13 + 514} — interest income (wd + 510] — grants for acquisition of sssets
fwlla + s12a] - operating cost (NWIH11 + NWI H12] - current cost depreciation {w3 + s )] x 100
divided by [millen down replacement cosi ol lixed assels (NWIFS ~ NW1F10)
+ plant and equipment (w33b + s1db}]

NWI F20 Dividend (weter and sewerage) 5000 -
Uividend paid from surplus {2 {v} of Note 2 + Z (v of Nate 3}
NWI F21 Dividend payout ratio (water and sewerage) % gggﬁ

ividend (FNVI -20) x 100 dividud by met profit aller lax (NWI F24)

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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SMFS 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Note 3. Sewerage business
besl-practice management disclosure requirements (continued)
1315116
Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) to 30/6/17
National Water Initiative (NWI) financial performance indicators
Water and sewer (combined)
NWI F22 Net debt to equity (water and sewerage) % -4 3B%

NWI F23

NWI F24

NWI F25

Hotes 1

Overdraft (w6 « 337) 1 borrowings (w38 1+ 530} — eash and investments (w30 + 331)
x 100 divided by [total assets (w35 + 336) - 1otal iahiities (w40 1 541)]

Interest cover (water and sewerage ) 29

Farnings before imereat and mx (FEIT) dividad by net interesr

Larnings before interest and tax (LUII}: 16,769
Operating resutt (wiSa 1 s16) + interestexpense {wde 1+ sda) - interest income (w9 + 310)
—gainfloss on disposal of assets [wld + s15] + miscellaneous expenses (wib « wdc + sdb + s4c)

Interest axpanse (wla - s4a) - interest income (wd = 5 10]

Net profit afler tax (water and sewerage) 5000 § gg

Surplus belore dividend s (w1a + s 162} - lax eyuivaknls paid [Now 2 1 (iv) = Notw 3 1 (v])

Community service cbligations (water and sewerage) 5000 77

Grants lor pensiones rebales (wlib - s12b)

Hele=nces fo w [2q. 12) refer (o i=m numbers wihin Specal Schedules S and & of
Coundis Anmual Francia Staicme s

I'he WVWI perfarmance indicators are bassd upon the Nabonal Fertormance | ramework | landbook
1or Urban Ferformance Renaring Indicalors and Defintians

TETer 10 32 2) 07 page 15 @l the LisstPractce Management of Wiater Supoly
and Sewsrage Guidshnes, 2004
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Dubbo Regional Council

SPECIAL SCHEDULES
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017
DUBBO
"Great community, great council™ REGIONAL
W counciC

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Page 109

Page 191




APPENDIX NO: 1 - REPORTS - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - ITEM NO: CCL18/21
19 FEBRUARY 2018

APPENDIX NO: 3 - SPECIAL SCHEDULES 2016/2017 | | ITEM NO: AUD18/1 ]

Special Scheoules 2017
Dubbo Regional Council

Special Schedules
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Contents Page

Special Schedules’

Special Schedule 1 Net Cost of Services 2
Special Schedule 2(a) Statement of Long Term Dabt (al purpuses) 4
Special Schedule 2{b) Statement of Intemal Loans [Secl 4103) LGA 1993) nia
Special Schedule 3 Water Supply Operations — incl. Income Statement 5
Special Schedule 4 Water Supply — Statement of Financial Pesition 8
Special Schedule § Sewerage Senvice Opsrations = incl. Income Statement g
Special Schedule 6 Sewerage Servica — Statemant of Financial Positior 12
Netes to Special Schedules 3 and S 13
Speclal Schedule 7 Report on Infrastructure Assets 14
Special Schedule 8 Permissible Income Calculation 18

! Special Schedules are not audited (with the exception of Special Schedule &).

Eackground
@ Ihese Special Schedulss have besn designed fo mest the requirements of special purpese USers such as

*  the NSW Grants Commission
= lhe Auslalian Bueso of Sla
*  lhe NSW OIfice of Waler (MO I
* Ihe Glhce ol | ocal Gavermmenl (O GG)

iy The firencial dala is collecled for vanous vses including,

+  lhe allocation of Ninencial Assislance Cranls,

*  lhe mooporalion of | ocal Governmenl linancial Tigures n nabional slalishes,
= the monitaring of loan approvals
.
.

the allocation of barrowing rights, and
Ihe moniloring of the inancis] solivilios of spocilic sorices

Fage 1
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[ MEM NO: AUD18/1 |

Cubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 1 — Net Cost of Services
for the period 13 May 2018 to 30 June 20717

Specia’ Schedules 2017

5'000
Expenses from Income from

- . . tinui tions Net cost

Function or activity continuing conlinuing opera of services
operations Non-capital Capital
Governance 4,565 200 - (4,365)
Administration 7,184 11,908 8177 13,801
Public order and safety
Fire: senvioe levy, fire pratect ion
EMCFJeNEy SeVIces 2448 G 485 (1,190)
Beach control - - - -
Cnforcement of local government regu/ati 409 2 - (407}
Animal contro 1,278 227 - (1.051)
Other 10 - - (10)
Tetal public order and safety 4143 1,000 485 (2.658)
Health 332 169 - (163}
Environment
Maocus plants and insect/vermin conftro 166 45 - {121)
Other emarcnmenta’ protection 663 3 - (660)|
Solwd waste management 8,086 9550 - 1,464
Streef cleaning 183 - - (483}
Lranage 2452 1,544 2,049 1.141
Slormwaler mansyemen | - g - 49
Total environment 11,850 11191 2,049 1.390
Community services and education
Adminislralion and educalion 1,100 239 - (861}
Social pratection (weltare) A44 16 - (428)
Aged persons and disabled 219 1413 - (72)]
Children's services 38413 348/ 1,029 1,673
Total community services and ed ueat| on) 5,602 3,985 1929 312
Hous ing and community amenities
Fubliz cemeteries B8 470 1127}
Fublic convenicnoes 153 {163)
Street lighting 1,310 biieh ] (1,088}
Tewn planning 2248 a7l [1.277)
Other community amenities 40 (48}
Tetal housing and community amenities 4,366 1671 — [2.698)
Water supplies 18,287 25,630 2858 8551
Sewerage services 16,213 19,892 2734 6413
page 2
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Specia’ Scheduloes 2017

Cubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 1 — Net Cost of Services (continued)
for the period 13 May 2018 to 30 June 20717

5'000
Expenses from Income from
- . - tinui tions Net cost
Function or activity continuing conlinuing opera of services
operations Non-capital Capital
Recreation and culture
Fublic: liizres T in - [2.333)
huscums 47 (47}
Art galleries 2783 KEES [1,938)
Communiy cenlies and halks Bl 24 (63}
Ferdorming arts venues 3015 1884 161 (2,080}
Other performing ans -
Other cultural services 9 - [1,202)
Sporting grounds and venucs 33 334 [4.427)
Swimm ing poals 454 (3832}
Farks and gardens (lakes) 670 1,289 {336}
Other spart and recreation 453 - [2.060)
| Total reereation and sulture 4219 1,784 (16.061)|
Fuel and anergy - — — -
Agriculture - — — -
Mining, manutacturing and canstructian
Building cantral 2142 1170 - {972)
Other mining, marn ufacturing and canstnud| 13 (13)]
Total mining, manufacturing and const 2156 1170 — [EL13]
Transpart and commun leatlon
Urban roacs [UR) - lacal 9,140 3244 8462 2 568
LUrban roads - regonal - - - -
Sealed rural roads (SRR) - loca 4 480 532 307 [3.621)
Sealed rural roads (SRR) - regional 2582 2003 45 (33d)|
Unsealed rural roacs (URR) — local AA2 2180 - [1.613)
Unsealed rural reads (URR) — regonal -
Bridges on UR — local 242 - 783 541
Dridges on SRR - loca 273 - - (273}
Bndges on URR — local 42 - - (42)
Cridges on reccral rcads 36 - - (38}
Farking areas 260 - - (260)
Feotpaths 1,378 72 268 [1.038)
serodromes. 35M 4549 284 1.312
Ofther transport and communication TO 8095 1,868 2926
Total transpert and cemmu nication 32963 20,675 12,017 {271)
Economic affairs
Camping areas and caravan parks 1617 1815 - 298
Other economic affairs T.or4 9464 3123 5013
Total economic affairs 9,191 11,379 3123 5311
Totals — functions 140,525 113,089 36,156 8,720
General purpose revenues'" 52,369 52,369
Share of interests — joint ventures and
assoclates using the equity method — 183 183
MET OPERATING RESULT % 140,525 165,641 36,156 61,272
(1) Inchirl=s ries ant annual cham=s (InCuding £ grahs, eciirling waler and sewer), non-cap A generdl DUpnse (/) A3 Exarled n e Inenme Stalemeant
grams, irereston wstments (exclung exdenaly esticled assels) and imees| oo cverue s aid ane dags
page 3
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Special Schedules 2017
Dubbo Regional Council
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017
$'000
be Fi:zﬁ_:pa:;::ta::rl?f%:;er New Debt redemption Principal outstanding at the
9 9 Y loans during the year | Transfers | Interest end of the year
Councils) raised to sinking |applicable
Current Non- Total during From Sinking funds far year Current Non- Total
Classification of debt current the year revenue funds current
Loans (by source)
Cemmonwealth Government - - - - - - - - - - -
MNSW Treasury Corporation - - - - - - - - - - -
Other State Govemment 1" 3 14 - 14 - - - - - -
Public subscription - - - - - - - - - - -
Financial institutions 5.366 72.062 77,428 - 5420 - - 5,150 4,652 67,356 72,008
Other - - - - - - - - - - -
Total loans 5377 72,065 77.442 - 5434 - - 5,150 4,652 67,356 72,008
Other long term debt
Ratepayers advances - - - - - - - - - - -
Govemment advances - - - - - - - - - - -
Finance leases — — - - - - - - - - -
Ceferred payments - - - - - - - - - - -
Total long term debt - - - - - - - - - - -
Total debt 5,377 72,065 77,442 - 5,434 - - 5,150 4,652 67,356 72,008
Moles. excudes () ineral ans and (i) pincipal inllows/oulows relding o oan e-linandng
This scherue is nrepared 1sing the face value of debt chligations, rather than fair value [which are reported inthe GPTS)
pags 4
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Specia’ Schedules 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 3 — Water Supply Income Statement
Includes all mternal transactions. i.e. prepared on a gross basis
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

5'000

A Expenses and income
Expenses

1. Management expenses
a. Administration
b. Engineering and suparvision

2. Operation and maintenance expenses
—dams and weirs
a. Operation expenses
b. Maintenance expenses

= Mains
¢. Operation expenses
d. Maintsnance sxpenses

— Reservoirs
e. Operation expenses
1. Maintenance expenses

— Pumping stations

g. Operation expenses (sxcluding energy costs)
h. Energy costs

I Maintenance expenses

— Treatment

j Operation expenses (excluding chemical costs)
k. Chemical costs

I. Maintenance expenses

— Gther

m. Cperation expenses

n. Maintenance expenses
0. Purchase of water

3. Depreciaticn expenses
a. System assets
b. Plant and equipment

4. Miscellanecus expenses
a. Interest expenses
b. Revaluation decrements
¢. Other expenses
d. Impairment — system assets
e. Impairment — plant and equipment
1. Aberiginal Communities \Water and Sewsrage Program
g. Tax equivalenis dividends (actualy pa <]

5. Total expenses

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Actuals
131516
to 300617

3,693
819

217
1.245

48
236

179
307
111

2,656
1,31
458

443
13
70

4876
126

1916
1.023

19,857
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Special Scheoules 2017
Dubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 3 — Water Supply Income Statement (continued)
Indudes all nternal transactions, i.e. prepared on a Qross basis
for the period 13 May 2016 ta 30 June 2017

Actuals
13516

5'000 to 300617

Income
6. Residential charges

a. Access (Including rates) 5,299

b. Usage charges 13,228
7. Nene-residentlal charges

a. Access (Including rates) 2,355

b. Usage charges 3,491
B. [Extra charges -
9. Interestincome 909
10. Other Income 81
10a. Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program 27
11. Grants

a. Grants for acquisition of assets -

b. Grants for pensicner rebates 143

¢. Other grants -
12. Centributions

a. Developer charges 1,887

b. Developer provided assets 786

¢. Other contributions 125
13. Tolal income 28,488
14. Gain (or loss) on dispesal of assets (1)
15. Operating result 8,590
15a. Operating result (less grants for acquisition of assets) £.5%0

page &
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Special Scheoules 2017
Dubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 3 — Water Supply Income Statement (continued)
Indudes all nternal transactions, i.e. prepared on a Qross basis
for the period 13 May 2016 ta 30 June 2017

Actuals
13616
5'000 to 300617
B Capita transactions
Non-operating expenditures
16. Acquisition of fixed assets
a. New assets for improved standards -
b. New assets for growth T4
. Renawals 1,434
d. Plant and equipment 5332
17. Repayment of debt 132
18. Totals 2,873
Non-operating funds emplayed
19. Proceeds from disposal of assets 83
20. Borroewing utilised -
21. Totals B3
C Rates and charges
22. Number of assessments
a. Resldential (occuplad) 17,246
b. Res/dentlal (unsccupled, le. vacant lot) -
¢. Non-residentiel (occupled) 2,329
d. Non-residential {uncccupied, ie. vacant lot) -
23. Number of ETs for which developer charges were received 385 ET
24, Total amount of pensioner rebates (actual dollars) § 203272
page r
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ITEM NO: CCL18/21

APPENDIX NO: 3 - SPECIAL SCHEDULES 2016/2017

[ TEM NO: AUD18/1 |

Dubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 4 — Waler Supply Statement of Financial Position

Indudes intemal transactions, i e. prepared on a gross basis

as at 30 June 2017

§'000

25.

26.

7.
28.

30.

3.
32

33.

35.
36.

37.
38.
39.

40.

EEE

. Current replacement cost of syslom ass:
. Accumulaled current cost deprecialion of
. Wrillen down current eost ol syslom as

ASSETS

Cash and Investments
a. Developer charges

b. Spedal purpose grants
¢. Accrued leave

d. Unaspended loans

e. Sinking fund

1. Cther

Receivables

a. Specific purpose grants

b. Rates and availabilty charges
c. Usercharges

d. Other

Inventories

Property, plant and equipment
a. System assets
b_Plant and equipment

. Other assets

Tolal assels

LIABILITIES
Bank overdraft
Creditors

Borrowings

Provisions

a. Tax squivalents

b. Dividend

c. Other

Total liabllities

NET ASSETS COMMITTED
EQUITY

Accumulated surplus

Asset revaluation reserve
Other reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

Mote to systemazzets:

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Actuals
Current

21,176

805

1.012

965
2,782
18,394

Actuals
Non-current

253,109
1,221

42
269,874

33
25,967
243,907

Actuals
Total

253,109
1,221

49
291,050

805

26,946

998
28,749
262,301

208,886
93,415

262,31

35367
(100 562)
353,108

Specia’ Scheduloes 2017
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19 FEBRUARY 2018

ITEM NO: CCL18/21

APPENDIX NO: 3 - SPECIAL SCHEDULES 2016/2017 |

[ MEM NO: AUuD18/1 |

Specia’ Schedules 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 5 — Sewerage Service Income Statement
Incudes all mternal transactions. i.e. prepared on a gross basis
for the period 13 May 2016 ta 30 June 2017

5'000

A Expenses and income
Expenses

1. Management expenses
a. Administration
b. Engineering and suparvision

2. Operation and maintenance expenses
= mains
a. Operation expenses
b. Maintenance expenses

— Pumping stations

¢. Operation expenses [caduding o ncigy custs)
d. Energy costs

e. Maintenance expenses

= Treatment

1. Operaticn €XPenses j. chumical smrwy, szl amd tis cids managemsnl cos s
g. Chemical costs

h. Energy costs

I. Effluent management

|. Blosellds management

k. Meintenance expenses

= Other
| Opergtion expenses
m. Maintenance expenses

3. Depreciaticn expenses
a. System assets
b. Plant and equipment

4. Miscellanecus expenses
a. Interesi expenses
b. Revaluation decrements
¢. Other expenses
d. Impeirment — system assets
e. Impelrment — plant and equipment
1. Aberiginal Cammunities Water and Sewerage Pregram
g. Tax equivalents dividends jacivaly pa <

5. Total expenses

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Actuals
13516
to 300617

3.268
881

TE
169

103

434

1.774

590

472

196
38

6,036
108

1.252

16,100
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19 FEBRUARY 2018

APPENDIX NO: 3 - SPECIAL SCHEDULES 2016/2017 | | ITEM NO: AUD18/1 |

Special Scheoules 2017
Dubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 5 — Sewerage Service Income Statement (continusd)
Indudes all nternal transactions, i.e. prepared on a Qross basis
for the period 13 May 2016 ta 30 June 2017

Actuals
13616

5'000 to 300617

Income
6. Residential charges (including rates) 12,729
7. None-residential charges

a. Access (incluging rates) -

b. Usage charges 4,857
B. Trade waste charges

a. Annual fees 37

b. Usage charges 39

¢. Excess mass charges -

d. Re-inspection fees -
9. Extra charges -
10. Interestincome 1,678
11. Other Income 56
11a. Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program 7
12. Grants

a. Grants for acquisition of assets -

b. Grants for pensicner rebates 134

¢. Other grants -
13. Contributions

a. Developer charges 1,854

b. Develcper provided asssts 384

¢. Other contributions 475
14. Total income 22,560
15. Gain (or loss) on dispesal of assets 49)
16. Operating result 6,411
16a. Operating result (less grants for acquisition of assets) 6,411

page 10
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 119

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 201




APPENDIX NO: 1 - REPORTS - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE -
19 FEBRUARY 2018

ITEM NO: CCL18/21

APPENDIX NO: 3 - SPECIAL SCHEDULES 2016/2017 | | ITEM NO: AUD18/1 |

Specia’ Schedules 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 5 — Sewerage Service Income Statement (continusd)

Indudes all nternal transactions. i.e. prepared on a gross basis
for the period 13 May 2016 ta 30 June 2017

5'000

B Capita transactions
Non-operating expenditures

17. Acquisition of fixed assets
a. New assets for improved standards
b. Wew assets for growth
. Renawals
d. Plant and equipment
18. Repayment of debt
19. Totals
Nen-operating funds employed
20. Proceeds from disposal of assels

21. Borrewing utilised

22. Totals

C Rates and charges
23. Number of assessments
a. Residentlal (occupled)
b. Residential {unsccupled, le. vacant lot)
¢. Non-residential (occupled)
d. Nen-residential (uneccupled, le. vacant lot)

24, Number of ETs for which developer charges were received

25. Total amount of pensioner rebates (actual dollars)

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Actuals
13516
to 300617

242
1,030
487

214

1,973

16,380

1,787

336 ET

S 194,344
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19 FEBRUARY 2018

APPENDIX NO: 3 - SPECIAL SCHEDULES 2016/2017 | | ITEM NO: AUD18/1 ]

Special Scheoules 2017
Dubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 6 — Sewerage Service Statement of Financial Position
Incudes intemal transactions, i e. prepared on a Qross basis
as at 30 June 2017

Actuals Actuals Actuals
§'000 Current Non-current Total
ASSETS
26. Cash and investments
a. Daveloper charges 238 - 238
b. Spedal purpese grants - - -
c. Accrued leave - - -
d. Unexpended loans - - -
e. Sinking fund - - -
1. Cther 12,938 28,000 40,939
27. Receivables
a. Specific purpose grants - - -
b. Rates and availability charges 401 - 4m
c. Usercharges 1.244 - 1,244
d. Other B339 - 689
28. Inventories - - -
29. Property, plant and equipment
a. System assets - 277.363 277,368
b. Plant and equipment - 1.062 1,062
30. Qther assets - - -
31. Total assets 15,511 306,430 321,941
LIABILITIES
32. Bank overdrafl - - -
33. Creditars 358 - 359
34. Barrowings 1.849 19.429 21,278
35. Provisions
a. Tax equivalents - - -
b. Dividend - - =
c. Other 113 5 118
36. Total liabllities 2,321 19,434 21,755
37. NET ASSETS COMMITTED 13,190 286,996 300,186
EQUITY
38. Accumulated surplus 230,785
39. Assetrevaluation reserve 69,421
40. Other reserves -
41. TOTAL EQUITY 300,186
Note to system assats:
42, Current replacement cost of system assets 330,110
43, Accumulatad current cost depreciation of system assels (52,742)
44. Written down current cost of system assets 277368
page 12
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ITEM NO: CCL18/21

APPENDIX NO: 3 - SPECIAL SCHEDULES 2016/2017 | | ITEM NO: AUD18/1

Special Scheoules 2017
Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to Special Schedules 3 and 5
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Administration'" Engineering and supervisio "’
iitem 1a of Specal Schedues 3 and 5 co morses the followng fitzm 1o of Speda Schedules 3 and 5) comprises the folowing
*  Admnistration staff. « Engineering staff:
- Salaries and allovance - Salaries and allowance
- Travelling expenses - Travelling expenses
= Accrual of leave entitiements = Accrual of leave entitlements
- Employment overheads - Employment overheads
Meter reading - Othertachnical and supervision staff:
= Salaries and allowance
Bad and doubtiu| debts - Travelling expenses
= Accrual of leave entitlements
= Cther administrative/corporate support services - Empleyment overheads.

Operational expenses (tem 2 of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprise the day to day cperational expenses
excluding maintenance expenses

Maintenance expenses (item 2 of Spacial Schedules 3 and 5) comprise the day ta day repair and maintenar
expenses. (Refer to Section 5 of the Local Government Assst Accounting Manual regarding capltallsation
principles and the distinction between capital and maintenance expenditure)

Other expenses (item 4¢c of Special Schedules 3 and 5} Includes &ll expenses nct recorded elsewhere,
Revaluation decrements (item 4b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) is to be used when | PP&E decreases in

Impairment losses (item 4d and 4e of Special Schedules 3 and 5) are o be used when the carmying amount
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount (rafer to page D-31)

Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program (item &f of Special Schedules 3 and 5) 5 to be
used when cperalion and maintenance work has been undertaken on behalf of the Aboriginal Communities
Water and Sewerags Program. Similarly, iIncome for tem 17a of Special Schedule 3 and item 12a of Spacial
Schedule § are for senvices provided to the Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program and is not
part of Councll's water supply and sewerage revenue

Residential charges' (items Ea, Bb and item & of Spedal Schedules 3 and & respectively) include all incom
from residential charges. Item & of Schedule 3 should be separated intc 8a access charges (induding rates if
applicabls) and 6b usage charges.

Non-residential charges"’ (items 7a, 7t of Spedal Schedules 3 and 5) include all income from non-resident
charges separated Into 7a access charges (Including rates if applicable) and Th usage charges.

Trade waste charges (item 8 of Special Schedule S)include all income from trads waste charges separated
into 8a annual fees, &b usage charges and &c excess mass charges and 8d re-inspection fees.

Other income ([tems 10 and 11 of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) Include &ll income not recorded
elsewhere.

Other contributions (items 12c and 13c of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) including capital contribu
for water supply or sewerage services recsived by Coundl under Section 565 of the Local Govemment Act.

sewerage, andnot in items 1a and 1b).
'3 Tg enable accurate reporting of residential revenue from usage charges, it is essential for councils to accurately
separate 1heir residential (tem 6) charges and non-residential (item 7) charges

page 13
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APPENDIX NO: 1 - REPORTS - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 19 FEBRUARY 2018 | | ITEM NO: CCL18/21

APPENDIX NO: 3 - SPECIAL SCHEDULES 2016/2017 | ‘ ITEM NO: AUD18/1 |

Specal Schedules 7017

Dubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 7 — Report on Infrastructure Assets as at 30 June 2017

§'000
Estimated cost] Etimated cost As sets in condition as a percentage of gross
to bring assets 1o bring to the 201617 201617 Cross R Ipl,hw'mplr:l " |.:-;| e et grass
o salislaciony agreed level of Required Aciual Nel canying e placemean| R )
Asset class Asset category standard  scrvice sct by maintenance” maintznance amount cost [GRC) 1 2 3 4 5
Council
Buildings Buldings 215 a1h 7, 0b6 i ] B147% TH0 551 | 46% A% 13% 3% 1%
Sub-total 515 815 2,566 2,566 81,425 180,551 | 46.0% 37.0% 13.0% 30% 1.0%
Dther Other siructures — - - - hHY7,049 109, /23 100%
astructures |Sub-total - - - - 57,049 109,723 | 0.0% 0.0% 00% 00% 1000%
Roads Sealed roads {92 I au? 2501 2 5h09 EAARETS 6750 B85 | 31% 43% 20% 5% 1%
lInsealed rmads — - 1,990 1800 143297 75 018 A% 0% 29% 38% 10%
lindges — - - - 2 HY94 40727 | 34% 57% 6% 0% 3%
Footpaths 1,107 1.107 a2 82 33,483 45553 | SE%  19% @ 22% 2% 1%
Other road assels 137 a7 660 660 269374 40,223 | S0% 2% 16% 2% 0%
Bulk earthworks — - - - 344 109 344 198 | 100% 0%
Sub-total 49,846 9. 846 5,21 5211 1349174 1,621,713 | 378% 258% 183% 144% 3I7%
Water supply|YWater supply network — - 1,585 1 hiln 2 nd MG 207 | 34% 9% 19% 8% 0%
network Sub-total - - 1,585 1.585 234834 316,252 | 340% 39.0% 19.0% B8.0% 00%
Sewerage Sewerage network 5,943 5843 840 840 25871 255004 | 445 4% 11% 10% 1%
network Sub-total 5,943 5943 B840 B40 260,596 355004 | 440% 34.0% 11.0% 10.0% 1.0%
page 14
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Specal Schedules 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 7 — Report on Infrastructure Assets as at 30 June 2017 (continued)

£'000
Estimated cost| Esimated cost As sets in condition as a percentage of gross
to bring assets 1o bring to the 201617 201617 Gross renla " 4 g
; ! i 2place men| cost
o salislaciony. agreed kevel of Required Aciual Nel canying replacemean|
Asset class Asset category standard  scrvice sct by maintenance” maintznance amount cost [GRC) 1 2 3 4 5
Council
Stormwater |Slormwater dranage L6 LY, A6 a6 188 B9 219 42/ 38% 45% 8% A% 1%
drainage Sub-total 526 526 326 326 184,891 219,427 | 38.0% 450% 80% 8.0% 1.0%
Dpen space/ |Swimming pools 1,078 1028 3] ] 2 Bl 6,964 | 33% 39% 27% 1% 0%
recreational |Other recreatonal assets FOvs o7 1,44 134 4418 6174 | 44% 30% 12% L% 12%
assets Sub-total 1,735 1,738 1,349 1.349 5,305 13,138 | 368% 34.8% 200% 29% S56%
Other
infrastructure|Other - - - - 1¢ 936 34 4| 100% 0%
assets Sub-total - - - - 17,936 34,740 |100.0% 0.0% 00% 0.0% 0.0%
TOTAL - ALL ASSETS 18,565 18 565 11,877 11877 2195210 2850548 | 380% 29.2% 154% 111% E3%
Notes:
a Requred maintenarce is the amount dertfied in Council's ess=t maregament plars
Infrastructure asset condition assessment ‘key”
1 Excellent MNo work required (normal maintenance)
2 Good Only minor maintenance work required
3 Average Maintenance work required
4 Poor Renewal required
5 Vary pooi Uigenl renewal/uparading required
page 15
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APPENDIX NO: 3 - SPECIAL SCHEDULES 2016/2017 | | ITEM NO: AUD18/1 ]

Specia’ Scheduloes 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 7 — Report on Infrastructure Assels (continued)
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 Juns 2017

Amounts
§'000 2017
Infrastructure asset performance indicators *
consolidated
1. Infrastructure renewals ratio
Ass et renewals 33673
Cepreciation, amortisation and impairment 31,000
2. Infrastructure backlog ratio
Cstimated costte bring assets o a satisfactory standard 18,565
fwet carming amount of infrastructure assets 1,854 432
3. Asset maintenance ratio
Actual assel mairtenance 11,877
Requirsd asssl maintenance 11,877

All asset performance indicators ars ealculated using the asset elasses identified in the pravious table

W Assel renawals represant the raplacemant and/or returbishment of exsting assats 1o an aquivalent
pac 9 gsed to the acquisition of new assets (or he refutishment of old assets) that

capacity

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Indicator
2017

108.62%

1.00%

1.00
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APPENDIX NO: 3 - SPECIAL SCHEDULES 2016/2017 | | ITEM NO: AUD18/1 |

Specia’ Schedules 2017

Dubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 7 — Report on Infrastructure Assels (continued)
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Water Sewer
§'000 2017 2017

Infrastructure asset performance indicators
by fund

1. Infrastructure renewals ratio

Assat renewals 2 N 5
Depreciation, amortisation and impaimment 24.48%  32.09%

2. Infrastructure backlog ratio
Cstimated cost te bring assets 1o a satisfactory standard

0.00% 2.28%
fwet carming amount of infrastructure assets % %

3. Asset maintenance ratio
Actual as srei(rrwaml.arun;a 1.00 1.00
Requirad assal maintenance

Wodes

General !
2017

149.48%

0.93%

1.00

"W General fund refers to all of Council's activilies except for its water and sewer activities which are listad separately

1 pssel renewals represent e replacement and/or ielurbishmenl of exisling assols Lo an cguisalenl

capacity/periormance as opposed fo the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that

increases capacityiperformance

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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19 FEBRUARY 2018

ITEM NO: CCL18/21

APPENDIX NO: 3 - SPECIAL SCHEDULES 2016/2017

| ITEM NO: AUD18/1

Dubbo Regional Council

Special Schedule 8 — Permissible Income Calculation
for the year ended 30 June 2018

$'000

Notional general income calculation '

Last year netional general Inc_ome yleld
Plus or minus adjustments '’
Notional general income

Permissible income calculation

Spacial varlation percentage '
or rate peg percentage
or crown land adjustment (incl. rate peg percentage)

Less expiring special variation amount
Plus special variation amount

or plus rate peg amount

or plus Crown land adjustment and rate peg amount
Sub-total

Plus (or minus) last year's carry forward total
Less Valuation objections claimed In the previous year
Sub-total

Total permissible income

Less notional general Income yield
Catch-up or {excess) result

Plus income lost due to valuation objections daimed !

Less unused catch-up
Camry forward to next year

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Calculation
201718
The former
Dubbe Cily
Council
27.773
375
28,148

0.00%
1.50%
0.00%

422

28,570
;

(106)

(105)

28,465

28.437
28

28

Calculation
201718
The farmer
Wellinglon
Coundil

6,348
3
6,351

0.00%
1.50%
0.00%

EE
6,446
25
25
6,471
6,469

Special Echedules 2017

Calculation
201718

Total

34,121
378
34,499
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19 FEBRUARY 2018
APPENDIX NO: 3 - SPECIAL SCHEDULES 2016/2017 | ‘ ITEM NO: AUD18/1
Special Echedules 2017
Dubbo Regional Council
Special Schedule 8 — Permissible Income Calculation (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes

{1} The notional general incomae will not reconcile with ratc income in the financial statcments in the corresponding year. The stalements are reporied on an accrual accounting basis
which include amounts that relate to prior years' rales income

(2 Adjustments account for changes in the number of assessments and any increase or decrease in land value occurring during the vear. The adjustments are called ‘supplementary
valugtions as defined in the Valuation of Land Act 1971€.

(3} The 'special vanation percentage’ is inclusive of the rate peg percertage and where applicable Crown land adjustment.

) Valuation cbjections are uncxpected changes in land values as a result of land owners successfully objecting to the land valuc issued by the Valucr-General. Councils can claim the
value of the income: Inst due o waluation objechons inany single year

{v) Unused catch-up amounts will be deducted if thoy are not caught up within 2 years. Usually councils will have a nominal carry forward figure. These amourts can be adjusted for in
seiting the rales in a future year.

&) Camy forward amounts which ars in excess (an amount that exceeds the permissible income) require ministenal approva by order publis hed in the NSW Govemment Gazette in
accordance wilth section 512 of lhe Local Governmeni Act 1993 The OLG will exlracl lhese amounls rom Council’s Special Schedule 8 in the linancial dala relurm (FDR) o adminisler
thig process.

page 12
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26 FEBRUARY 2018 CCL18/22

n REPORT: Power of Attorney for the
| _ General Manager
DUBBO REGIONAL AUTHOR: General Manager

COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 30 January 2018
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/172

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Council has the ability to grant, by resolution, Council’s power of attorney to the General
Manager allowing signing of documents following formal resolutions by Council. It is
recommended that Council grant the General Manager the power of attorney to facilitate
the timely implementation of decisions of Council.

The power of attorney is prescribed, and not irrevocable or an enduring power of attorney.
That is, the power of attorney can be terminated, revoked or suspended by Council at any
time. The power of attorney must be registered for any dealings affecting land with the Land
and Property Information Authority of NSW.

As Council’s current General Manager, Michael Gerard McMahon, is expected to cease
employment with Council later this year, Council may terminate this power of attorney and
reissue it to Council’s next General Manager in due course should it wish to do so.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: Granting of this power of attorney assists in facilitating the timely
implementation of decisions of Council.

Integrity: The General Manager will be required to report to Council every three (3) months
on those instances where the documents have been signed under the power of attorney.
One Team: No applicable.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications arising from this report.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.
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26 FEBRUARY 2018 CCL18/22

RECOMMENDATION

1. That Council delegate to Michael Gerard McMahon, General Manager, a prescribed
power of attorney in accordance with the General Power of Attorney attached to the
report as Appendix 1.

2.  That Council authorise the Mayor and Deputy Mayor to execute the General Power
of Attorney under the Common Seal of the Council.

3.  That the General Manager report to Council every three (3) months on all documents
signed under the prescribed Power of Attorney.

Michael McMahon
General Manager
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REPORT

Council has the ability to grant, by resolution, Council’s power of attorney to the General
Manager allowing signing of documents following formal resolutions by Council. It is
recommended that Council grant the General Manager the power of attorney to facilitate the
timely implementation of decisions of Council.

The following information is provided to assist Councillors in making the determination as to

whether power of attorney should be delegated to the General Manager:

(a) a prescribed power of attorney can be granted to the General Manager to enable him
to sign documents to give effect to resolutions of the Council made pursuant to its non-
delegable functions under Section 377(1) of the Act.

(b) a prescribed power of attorney can be granted to the General Manager to enable him
to sign documents to give effect to functions of the Council which the Council has
validly delegated to the General Manager under Section 377(1) of the Act.

(c) if the Council resolves to grant a prescribed power of attorney to the General Manager,
the prescribed power of attorney should be registered in the General Register of Deeds
at the NSW Land and Property Management Authority (LPMA) to enable the General
Manager to sign documents of title for registration at the NSW LPMA.

(d) the signing of documents by the General Manager under a prescribed power of
attorney is a more expeditious way of implementing decisions of the Council rather
than by affixing the Seal of Council to documents in the presence of two people
(including at least one Councillor) in accordance with the requirements of clause 400 of
the Regulation.

(e) if the Council grants a prescribed power of attorney to the General Manager, the
prescribed power of attorney will not authorise the General Manager to execute a
document or do any act which will confer a benefit on the General Manager unless the
prescribed power of attorney expressly authorises the conferral of the benefit: Section
12(1) of the POA Act.

(f)  the General Manager will maintain a register of documents signed under the prescribed
power of attorney and report to Council every three (3) months at its meetings on each
document which the General Manager has signed pursuant to the prescribed power of
attorney.

(g) the Council is free to terminate or suspend the prescribed power of attorney at any
time after giving the prescribed power of attorney to the General Manager.

(h) an instrument revoking or terminating a registered power of attorney may also be
registered by the Registrar-General in the General Register of Deeds.

(i)  many councils in New South Wales grant powers of attorney to their general managers
and to other senior staff including (but not limited to) the City of Sydney, North Sydney
and Burwood councils.

The Powers of Attorney Act 2003 (POA Act) includes a provision for Councils to grant a power
of attorney. The POA Act defines a “principal” in Section 3(1) as “the person giving the
power”. “Person” is not defined in the POA Act, but is defined in Section 21(1) of the
Interpretation Act 1987 as including “an individual, a corporation and a body corporate or
politic”. Under Section 220(1) of the Local Government Act 1993 (the Act), a council is a body
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politic of the State with perpetual succession and the legal capacity and powers of an

individual, both in and outside the State. Consequently, councils fall within the definition of a
“principal” for the purposes of the POA Act and can give powers of attorney to individuals.

Section 377(1) of the Act provides that a council may, by resolution, delegate to its general
manager or any other person or body, any functions of the council other than the functions
listed in that Section. The functions listed in Section 377(1) of the Act must only be exercised
by a council. In the exercise of these functions, such as the sale and purchase of land or the
borrowing of money, ordinarily a council enters into a contract, agreement or loan facility by
affixing its seal to the relevant document in the manner required by clause 400 of the Local
Government (General) Regulation 2005 (the Regulation). There is no reason why in the
exercise of its non-delegable functions under Section 377(1) of the Act, a council cannot
resolve that the signing of documents which give effect to the resolution be effected by its
general manager. Making such a resolution does not result in a delegation of non-delegable
functions, but simply provides for a more efficient process for the signing of relevant
documents than by affixing the seal of the Council to those documents.

Additionally, in circumstances where a council, by resolution, delegates functions (other than
those functions listed in Section 377(1) of the Act — such as the delegable functions of
creating easements or leases), to its general manager or any other officer of the council, a
council can resolve that the signing of documents which give effect to the delegated functions
be done under power of attorney.

The POA Act permits the granting of prescribed powers of attorney, irrevocable powers of
attorney and enduring powers of attorney. If Council resolves to give a power of attorney to
the General Manager, the power of attorney should be a prescribed power of attorney and
not an irrevocable or enduring power of attorney. Irrevocable powers of attorney remain
effective despite, among other things the bankruptcy, mental incapacity or death of the
principal. Enduring powers of attorney remain effective, even if the principal lacks capacity
through loss of mental capacity, after execution of the power of attorney. Such powers of
attorney are not relevant where the principal is a body politic such as Council.

Although, the POA Act does not expressly empower a principal to terminate, revoke or
suspend a prescribed power of attorney, it is clear from Division 2 of Part 6 of the POA Act
and from Schedule 1 of the POA Act that a principal can terminate or revoke a prescribed
power of attorney. A prescribed power of attorney terminates on the death or mental
incapacity of the attorney and may be revoked by the principal at any time by written notice.
The Council will be free to terminate, revoke or suspend a prescribed power of attorney at
any time after giving a prescribed power of attorney to the General Manager.

Powers of attorney may be registered, but must be registered for any dealings affecting land
in accordance with Section 52 of the POA Act. If any registered power of attorney is

terminated, such termination can be registered.

Council’s legal advisors Booth Brown Legal have prepared a draft power of attorney
document for the consideration of Council which is attached to this report as Appendix 1.
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Appendices:
10  Draft Power of Attorney - Michael Gerard McMahon
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DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL
(Principal)

AND
MICHAEL GERARD MCMAHON

(Attorney)

GENERAL POWER OF ATTORNEY
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MCMAHON

GENERAL POWER OF ATTORNEY

A general power of attorney is a legal document that allows you, the principal, to
nominate one or more persons, referred to as attorneys, to act on your behalf. A
general power of attorney gives the attorney the authority, if you choose, to manage
your legal and financial affairs, including buying and selling real estate, shares and
other assets for you, operating your bank accounts, and spending money on your
behalf.

A general power of attorney ceases if you lose your mental capacity after its execution.
If you wish the power of attorney to continue if you lose your mental capacity, use the
enduring power of attorney prescribed form. An attorney under a general power of
attorney cannot make decisions about your lifestyle or health. These decisions can only
be made by a guardian, whether an enduring guardian appointed by you or a guardian
appointed by the New South Wales Civil and Administrative Tribunal or the Supreme
Court.

You may set whatever conditions and limitations on your attorney that you choose. An
attorney must always act in your best interest. If your attorney does not follow your
directions or does not act in your best interest, you should revoke the power of
attorney. You or someone on your behalf should inform the attorney of the revocation,
preferably in writing. The attorney must then immediately cease to act as your attorney.
If anyone else, such as a bank, has been advised about the power of attorney, that
person or entity should also be informed of the revocation.

The important information set out at the end of this form includes notes to assist in
completing this form and mare fully explains the role and responsibilities of an attorney.

192419 Page 1 of 6
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GENERAL POWER OF ATTORNEY

Appointment of attorney by the principal

DUBBOQO REGIONAL COUNCIL (Principal)
of Civic Administration Building, Church Street, Dubbo, NSW 2830, appoints
MICHAEL GERARD MCMAHON of

to be its attorney (Attorney).
Nomination of substitute attorney

Not applicable
Powers

The Attorney may exercise the authority conferred on him by Part 2 of the
Powers of Attorney Act 2003 to do anything on behalf of the Principal anything
which the Principal may lawfully authorise an attorney to do. The Attorney's
authority is subject to the conditions and limitations specified in Part 3 of this
document.

* Additional powers

Not applicable

Conditions and limitations

The following limits and/or conditions apply to the authority of the Attorney:

(a) This power of attorney is limited to the execution of documents which give

effect to:
(i) resolutions of the Principal where resolutions are required for
the exercise of any function of the Principal; and
(i) functions of the Principal which have been delegated to the

Attorney,
in accordance with the Local Government Act 1993.

(b) This power of attorney does not operate as a delegation of any function of
the Principal for the purposes of Section 377 of the Local Government Act
1993.

Commencement

This power of attorney operates immediately.

192419
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5.  Signing by principal to give effect to the appointment of the attorney

The Common Seal of DUBBO )
REGIONAL COUNCIL was
hereunto affixed on this
day of 2018 pursuant to Mayor
the authority conferred by

Council resolution made

2018 in the presence of the Full Name
Mayor and Deputy Mayor:

—

Deputy Mayor

Full Name

192419 Page 3 of 6
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MCMAHON

6. Attorney responsibilities

Your attorney must do the following:

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

Keep your money and property separate from the attorney's money and
property,

Keep reasonable accounts and records of your money and property;
Not benefit from being an attorney, unless expressly authorised by you;
Always act in your best interests; and

Always act honestly in all matters concerning your legal and financial
affairs.

Failure to do so may incur civil and/or criminal penalties.

NSW LRS OFFICE USE ONLY

192419
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n REPORT: Delegation of Authority to the
| _ General Manager
DUBBO REGIONAL AUTHOR: Manager Governance and Risk

COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 1 February 2018
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/197

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A Council may delegate to the General Manager any of its functions other than those
functions specifically detailed in Section 377. Section 380 of the Local Government Act
requires that each Council must review all its delegations during the first twelve (12) months
of each term of office. A review has been completed and the proposed delegations to the
General Manager are attached to this report as Appendix 1.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: Delegating functions of Council to the General Manager assists in
facilitating the timely implementation of decisions of Council and allows Councillors to
concentrate on the strategic planning of Council.

Integrity: The delegations comply with the requirements of the relevant acts. They also
provide for circumstances where Council or Standing Committee consideration is
appropriate.

One Team: Not applicable.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications arising from this report.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Delegation of Authority to the General Manager be as contained in the document

attached to the report of the Manager Governance and Risk dated 1 February 2018 as
Appendix 1.

Michael Ferguson
Manager Governance and Risk
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REPORT

Section 377 of the Local Government Act, 1993 enables the Council to delegate the functions
of the Council to the General Manager. This section also specifies various functions such as
making of a rate, fixing of a fee, borrowing of money, voting of money for expenditure and
the acceptance of tenders where those services are already provided by council staff cannot
be delegated.

The delegation of functions to the General Manager enables the organisation to meet the
needs of residents and other stakeholders in an effective and efficient manner. It means that
decisions which reflect Council's policies, standards, codes and management and other plans
can be made at appropriate levels within the Organisation. It also enables staff to be
authorised to undertake functions under other legislation.

Section 380 of the Act provides that each council must review all its delegations during the
first 12 months of each term of office. A review of the delegations to the General Manager
has been undertaken and the proposed delegations are now as attached to this report as
Appendix 1.

Appendices:
10  Draft Delegation of Authority to the General Manager - February 2018
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DUBBO REGIONAL
COUNCIL

Delegation of Authority to
the General Manager

DRAFT

FEBRUARY 2018
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Document Revision History

Description

Date

Amended and adopted following merger of Dubbo City and
Wellington councils

Amended as a result of delegations with respect to the Defined
Asset Management Policy as adopted August 2017

May 2016

August 2017

Notes

Appendix 7 -Delegations of Authority to the General
Manager
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PURPOSE

In accordance with Section 377 of the Local Government Act 1993, Council may, by
resolution, delegate the General Manager any of the functions of the Council with the
exception of those functions as listed below. Such delegations assist the General Manager
to understand his/her authority to make decisions on behalf of the organisation. Delegating
authority to the General Manager is not a hindrance to effective decision-making, or a
bureaucratic mechanism that slows decision-making. Rather, it provides the ability for the
General Manager to perform functions of Council to allow Council to concentrate on
strategic issues.

This document outlines what functions are, and are not, delegated to the General Manager
and thereby the General Manager has delegation to undertake all other functions.

DELEGATIONS

The General Manager does not have the delegation to undertake the following in
accordance with Section 377 of the local Government Act 1993 (the Act):

1.  The appointment of a general manager.

2. The making of arate.

3. Adetermination under section 549 as to the levying of arate.

4. The making of a charge.

5.  The fixing of a fee.

6.  The borrowing of money.

7. The voting of money for expenditure on its works, services or operations.

8.  The compulsory acquisition, purchase, sale, exchange or surrender of any land or
other property (but not including the sale of items of plant or equipment).

9.  The acceptance of tenders to provide services currently provided by members of staff
of the council.

10. The adoption of an operational plan under section 405.
11. The adoption of a financial statement included in an annual financial report.
12. A decision to classify or reclassify public land under Division 1 of Part 2 of Chapter 6.

13. The fixing of an amount or rate for the carrying out by the council of work on private
land.

Appendix 7 -Delegations of Authority to the General
Manager 3
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

The decision to carry out work on private land for an amount that is less than the
amount or rate fixed by the council for the carrying out of any such work.

The review of a determination made by the council, and not by a delegate of the
council, of an application for approval or an application that may be reviewed under
section 82A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

The power of the council to authorise the use of reasonable force for the purpose of

gaining entry to premises under section 194.

A decision under section 356 to contribute money or otherwise grant financial
assistance to persons.

A decision under section 234 to grant leave of absence to the holder of a civic office.
The making of an application, or the giving of a notice, to the Governor or Minister.
This power of delegation.

Any function under this or any other Act that is expressly required to be exercised by
resolution of the council.

Development Application Delegations

The General Manager cannot approve Development Applications where:

1.

A petition with eight or more signatures from separate households within the
notification area has been received and the application has not been refused.

Where eight or more valid planning objections to the development application have
been received from separate households within the notification area and the
application has not been refused.

Development where there is major variation (more than a 10%) from Council’s
Development Standards under Clause 4.6 of the Dubbo LEP 2011 and Wellington LEP
2012 unless concurrence has been received from the State Government to determine
particular matters under delegation.

Where two or more Councillors request a Development Application to be bought to
Council.

Any matter subject to appeal where the matter has gone to a hearing or Section 34A
Conference.

Applications having a major environmental impact on the locality and which involve
land owned by Council.

Applications where income is to be forgone such as a reduction in developer
contributions levied under an adopted Section 94 Plan or Section 64 Policy.

Appendix 7 -Delegations of Authority to the General
Manager 4
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Voluntary Planning Agreements

. The General Manager does not have the delegation to enter into Voluntary Planning

Agreements (VPAs)

These matters must be referred to either Council or the Planning, Development and

Environment Committee where appropriate for determination.

Other Matters

. Writing Off Accounts

The General Manager does not have the delegation to approve the writing off of
accounts greater than $10,000. Write offs are reported to Council on an annual basis.

. Writing Off Stores and Materials

The General Manager does not have the delegation to approve the write on and off

stores and materials greater than $10,000.

. Leases

The General Manager cannot approve on behalf of Council:

(a) Any lease or licence of land classified operational pursuant to s26 of the Local

Government Act 1993 where:

i. Theterm (including any option(s)) exceeds 10 years

ii. Therentis less than fair market rent, but excluding any lease of licence for
which tenders are required under the Local Government Act 1993 to be

invited by the Council

(b) Any temporary lease and/or licence of Crown Land controlled or managed by

Council where the term exceeds 12 months.

. Power of Attorney

The General Manager has delegation to sign documents on behalf of Council under
Power of Attorney which give effect to Council’s resolutions or in accordance with

the Delegations to the General Manager.

Appendix 7 -Delegations of Authority to the General
Manager
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” REPORT: Delegation of Authority to

Council Committees
DUBBO REGIONAL AUTHOR: Manager Governance and Risk

COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 8 February 2018
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/228

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A Council may delegate to the General Manager or any other person or body any of its
functions other than those functions specifically detailed in Section 377. This report
recommends that Council grant delegated authority to several of its Committees to make
decisions on behalf of Council in accordance with the draft delegation as appended to this
report. Granting these Committees delegated authority to make decisions within the
restrictions as listed in the draft delegations allows Council to focus on more strategic
outcomes as these matters will be dealt with at the Committee level.

It is proposed that the following Committees be granted delegated authority as specified in
the draft delegations as appended to this report.

Planning, Development and Environment Committee (Appendix 1)
Infrastructure, Community and Recreation Committee (Appendix 2)
Economic Development, Business and Corporate Committee (Appendix 3)
Dubbo Regional Airports Committee (Appendix 4)

It is noted that delegated authority has also been recommended to be granted to the Street
Tree Advisory Committee through a recommendation from the Infrastructure, Community
and Recreation Committee February 2018 meeting.

It is also recommended to amend the dates of the standing committee meetings so that they
are held on the second Monday of each month (except January). There may also be
occasions throughout the year where the second Monday of each month will be unsuitable
due to public holidays. It is recommended that in these instances, the date of the meeting
will be determined by the Mayor following consultation with the relevant chairpersons, to be
usually held on the next available normal workday.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: Delegating functions of Council to these Committees assists in facilitating
the timely implementation of decisions of Council and allows Councillors to concentrate on
the strategic planning of Council.

Integrity: The delegations comply with the requirements of the relevant acts. They also
provide for circumstances where Council or Standing Committee consideration is
appropriate.
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One Team: Not applicable.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications arising from this report.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the delegations of authority to the Planning, Development and Environment
Committee (Appendix 1), Infrastructure, Community and Recreation Committee
(Appendix 2), Economic Development, Business and Corporate Committee (Appendix
3) and Dubbo Regional Airports Committee (Appendix 4) be adopted.

2. That Council’s Standing Committees be held on the second Monday of each month
(except January) at 5.30pm except in the case of public holidays and December (due
to Christmas) where the meeting date shall be determined by the Mayor following
consultation with the relevant chairpersons.

3. That the Airport/Airstrip Working Party be renamed the Dubbo Regional Airports
Committee.

Michael Ferguson
Manager Governance and Risk
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REPORT

A Council may delegate to the General Manager or any other person or body any of its
functions other than those functions specifically detailed in Section 377. This report
recommends that Council grant delegated authority to several of its Committees to make
decisions on behalf of Council in accordance with the draft delegation as appended to this
report. Granting these Committees delegated authority to make decisions within the
restrictions as listed in the draft delegations allows Council to focus on more strategic
outcomes as these matters will be dealt with at the Committee level.

It is proposed that the following Committees be granted delegated authority as specified in
the draft delegations as appended to this report.

Planning, Development and Environment Committee (Appendix 1)
Infrastructure, Community and Recreation Committee (Appendix 2)
Economic Development, Business and Corporate Committee (Appendix 3)
Dubbo Regional Airports Committee (Appendix 4)

It is noted that delegated authority has also been recommended to be granted to the Street
Tree Advisory Committee through a recommendation from the Infrastructure, Community
and Recreation Committee February 2018 meeting.

The draft Delegations of Authority to each of these Committees includes a number of
restrictions on the Committee making decisions under delegated authority. Generally, the
Committees may only make a decision under delegated authority when a report has been
presented to the Committee by staff or the Mayor. The Committee is also restricted from
making a delegated decision where unbudgeted funds have been requested or income has
been forgone as a result of the decision. There is also a rescission clause which allows three
(3) Councillors an opportunity to rescind a motion so that the matter is referred to Council for
determination. In any case, there are no conditions in this delegation that prevents these
Committees from referring a matter to Council for determination.

Should Council approve these delegations to standing committees, it would be appropriate to
extend the time between conducting the standing committees and Council meetings. It is
recommended to amend the dates of the standing committee meetings so that they are held
on the second Monday of each month (except January). This would allow Council decisions to
be made, usually every two (2) weeks. There may also be occasions throughout the year
where the second Monday of each month will be unsuitable due to public holidays. It is
recommended that in these instances, the date of the meeting will be determined by the
Mayor following consultation with the relevant chairpersons, to be usually held on the next
available normal workday.
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Appendices:
10  Draft Delegation to the Planning, Development and Environment Committee
21l Draft Delegation to the Infrastructure Community and Recreation Committee
3]  Draft Delegation to the Economic Development, Business and Corporate Committee
4]l  Draft Delegation to the Dubbo Regional Airports Committee
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DELEGATION TO THE PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND ENVIRONMENT
COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL

PURSUANT TO SECTION 377 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1993

That, subject to compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1993, and
Regulations thereunder, the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, and any
Regulations, Policies, Plans or Directions thereunder, and subject to any direction given by
the Council, the Council, pursuant to the provisions of Section 377 of the Local Government
Act 1993, and every other enabling legislation hereby delegates to the Planning, Development
and Environment Committee to exercise and perform on behalf of the Council the following
powers, authorities, duties and functions:

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979

Development Assessment

1.  To assess and determine any application in accordance with Part 4, Divisions 2 and 5
of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (NSW) and Part 6, Divisions
1,2,3,4,7,8,10, 11, 12 & 13 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Regulation, 2000 (NSW).

2. To assume the concurrence of the Director-General of the Department of Planning
pursuant to s64 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation, 2000
(NSW) in relation to deciding that it is unnecessary to require compliance with a
development standard pursuant to State Environmental Planning Policy No. 1 -
Development Standards.

3. To endorse support for a development application and refer the application to the
Director Planning and Environment for determination with or without a
recommendation for the imposition of proposal specific conditions of consent.

4. To review a determination, pursuant to Section 82A of the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act, 1979, of a development application by staff under delegation.
The Committee may utilise this delegated authority to determine a review of
determination made by staff under delegation but cannot review a determination
made by the Council using this delegated authority.

5.  To modify a development consent pursuant to Section 96(1), (1A) and (2) of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979.

6.  To extend the period after which a development consent lapses in accordance with
Section 95A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979.

7. To revoke or modify a development consent pursuant to section 96A and 96AA of
the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979.

Preparation of a Planning Proposal for a Draft Local Environmental Plan in Accordance with
the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979
1. Section 55
To prepare a Planning Proposal.
2. Section 57
To undertake community consultation
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AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE

Preparation of a Development Control Plan (DCP) or Amendment thereto in Accordance
with the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979

1. Section74Cand D
To prepare or amend or revoke a Development Control Plan

Entering into a Voluntary Planning Agreement in Accordance with the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act, 1979

1. Section 93F —93L
To enter into or amend a Voluntary Planning Agreement (VPA)

Notices and Orders

To exercise the provisions of Division 2A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act,
1979 and Chapter 7 Part 2 of the Local Government Act, 1993 in particular but not limited to:
. The unauthorised use of land and structures
] Compliance with conditions of development consent
] Other matters listed in the respective Tables of Section 121B of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 and Section 124 of the Local Government Act,
1993.

Local Government Act, 1993 (NSW)

The Council pursuant to the provisions of Section 377 of the Local Government Act 1993,
delegates to the Planning, Development and Environment Committee of the Council to
exercise, or perform on behalf of the Council, all of the Council's powers, authorities, duties
and functions in relation to such matters as the General Manager, or his delegate, shall from
time to time refer to that Committee for consideration.

This delegation excludes the following functions expressly reserved in Section 377, which
cannot be delegated:

a) the appointment of a general manager,

b) the making of arate,

(

(

(c) adetermination under section 549 as to the levying of arate,

(d) the making of a charge,

(e) the fixing of afee,

(f)  the borrowing of money,

(g) the voting of money for expenditure on its works, services or operations,

(h)  the compulsory acquisition, purchase, sale, exchange or surrender of any land or

other property (but not including the sale of items of plant or equipment),

(i)  the acceptance of tenders to provide services currently provided by members of the
staff of the council,

() the adoption of an operational plan under section 405,

(k)  the adoption of a financial statement included in an annual financial report,

() adecision to classify or reclassify public land under Division 1 of Part 2 of Chapter 6,
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(m) the fixing of an amount or rate for the carrying out by the council of work on private

land,

(n)  the decision to carry out work on private land for an amount that is less than the

amount or rate fixed by the council for the carrying out of any such work,

(o) the review of a determination made by the council, and not by a delegate of the
council, of an application for approval or an application that may be reviewed under

section 82A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979,

(p) the power of the council to authorise the use of reasonable force for the purpose of

gaining entry to premises under section 194,

(q) a decision under section 356 to contribute money or otherwise grant financial
assistance to persons, unless the financial assistance is part of a specified program in

council’s Operational Plan for the year,

this power of delegation,

) adecision under section 234 to grant leave of absence to the holder of a civic office,
s)  the making of an application, or the giving of a notice, to the Governor or Minister,
)

u) any function under this or any other Act that is expressly required to be exercised by

resolution of the council (including decisions to use Council’s Common Seal)

Exercising of delegations are subject to the following limitations and conditions:

1. That the Delegated Authority of the Committee to make a delegated decision may
only be exercised on consideration of a report from the Mayor or the proper
employee of the Council with those matters being included on the Business Paper of
the Committee as prepared and distributed in accordance with the requirements of

the Local Government Act 1993, and Regulations thereunder.

2. The Committee shall not make any decision under delegated authority where an
unbudgeted financial contribution from Council’s fund is sought or income is to be

forgone. This includes the variations of required developer contributions.

3. Any decision in respect of matters being considered in terms of the delegated
authority shall be in accordance with a decision by majority vote of all members of
the Committee in attendance at the Committee meeting. Any decision that does not
receive a majority vote of all members present shall be deferred to the next meeting

of Council for determination.

4.  Adecision made under delegated authority shall not take effect as a decision of the
Council until 12.00pm on the second working day following the date of the meeting

at which the Committee makes the decision.

5. If any three duly elected Councillors advise the General Manager or the Director
Corporate Services prior to the time specified in clause 4, that they seek the
rescission of any such decision, the decision shall not take effect and the decision will
be referred to the next Ordinary Meeting of the Council for consideration and

determination.

6. If adedision is rescinded in accordance with clause 5 the decision shall be treated as

a recommendation to the Council from the Committee.

7. Notwithstanding the provisions of clause 3, the Committee may, by Majority vote of
all members in attendance, refer for further consideration or report, any item/s or
matter on the Committee’s Business Paper, to any future Standing Committee or

Council meeting.
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DELEGATION TO THE INFRASTRUCTURE, COMMUNITY AND RECREATION
COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL

PURSUANT TO SECTION 377 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1993

That, subject to compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1993, and
Regulations thereunder, any expressed policy of the Council, and subject to any direction
given by the Council, the Council pursuant to the provisions of Section 377 of the Local
Government Act 1993, and every other enabling legislation, delegates to the Infrastructure,
Community and Recreation Committee of the Council to exercise, or perform on behalf of the
Council, all of the Council's powers, authorities, duties and functions in relation to such
matters as the General Manager, or his delegate, shall from time to time refer to that
Committee for consideration.

This delegation excludes the following functions expressly reserved in Section 377, which
cannot be delegated:

) the appointment of a general manager,

b) the making of arate,

o

(

(

(c) adetermination under section 549 as to the levying of arate,

(d) the making of a charge,

(e) the fixing of afee,

(f)  the borrowing of money,

(g) the voting of money for expenditure onits works, services or operations,

(h)  the compulsory acquisition, purchase, sale, exchange or surrender of any land or

other property (but not including the sale of items of plant or equipment),

(i)  the acceptance of tenders to provide services currently provided by members of the
staff of the council,

i) the adoption of an operational plan under section 405,

the adoption of a financial statement included in an annual financial report,

I)  adecision to classify or reclassify public land under Division 1 of Part 2 of Chapter 6,

m) the fixing of an amount or rate for the carrying out by the council of work on private

land,

(n)  the decision to carry out work on private land for an amount that is less than the
amount or rate fixed by the council for the carrying out of any such work,

(0) the review of a determination made by the council, and not by a delegate of the
council, of an application for approval or an application that may be reviewed under
section 82A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979,

(p) the power of the council to authorise the use of reasonable force for the purpose of
gaining entry to premises under section 194,

(gq) a decision under section 356 to contribute money or otherwise grant financial

assistance to persons, unless the financial assistance is part of a specified programin

council’s Operational Plan for the year,

) adecision under section 234 to grant leave of absence to the holder of a civic office,

s)  the making of an application, or the giving of a notice, to the Governor or Minister,

) this power of delegation,

u) any function under this or any other Act that is expressly required to be exercised by

resolution of the council (including decisions to use Council’s Common Seal)

=
Laas
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Exercising of delegations are subject to the following limitations and conditions:

1.

That the Delegated Authority of the Committee to make a delegated decision may
only be exercised on consideration of a report from the Mayor or the proper
employee of the Council with those matters being included on the Business Paper of
the Committee as prepared and distributed in accordance with the requirements of
the Local Government Act 1993, and Regulations thereunder.

The Committee shall not make any decision under delegated authority where an
unbudgeted financial contribution from Council’s fund is sought or income is to be
forgone.

Any decision in respect of matters being considered in terms of the delegated
authority shall be in accordance with a decision by majority vote of all members of
the Committee in attendance at the Committee meeting. Any decision that does not
receive a majority vote of all members present shall be deferred to the next meeting
of Council for determination.

A decision made under delegated authority shall not take effect as a decision of the
Council until 12.00pm on the second working day following the date of the meeting
at which the Committee makes the decision.

If any three duly elected Councillors advise the General Manager or the Director
Corporate Services prior to the time specified in clause 4, that they seek the
rescission of any such decision, the decision shall not take effect and the decision will
be referred to the next Ordinary Meeting of the Coundil for consideration and
determination.

If a decision is rescinded in accordance with clause 5 the decision shall be treated as
a recommendation to the Council from the Committee.

Notwithstanding the provisions of clause 3, the Committee may, by Majority vote of
all members in attendance, refer for further consideration or report, any item/s or
matter on the Committee’s Business Paper, to any future Standing Committee or
Council meeting.
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DELEGATION TO THE ECOMONIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL

PURSUANT TO SECTION 377 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1993

That, subject to compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1993, and
Regulations thereunder, any expressed policy of the Council, and subject to any direction
given by the Council, the Council pursuant to the provisions of Section 377 of the Local
Government Act 1993, and every other enabling legislation, delegates to the Economic
Development, Business and Corporate Committee of the Council to exercise, or perform on
behalf of the Council, all of the Council's powers, authorities, duties and functions in relation
to such matters as the General Manager, or his delegate, shall from time to time refer to that
Committee for consideration.

This delegation excludes the following functions expressly reserved in Section 377, which
cannot be delegated:

) the appointment of a general manager,

b) the making of arate,

o

(

(

(c) adetermination under section 549 as to the levying of arate,

(d) the making of a charge,

(e) the fixing of afee,

(f)  the borrowing of money,

(g) the voting of money for expenditure on its works, services or operations,

(h)  the compulsory acquisition, purchase, sale, exchange or surrender of any land or

other property (but not including the sale of items of plant or equipment),

(i)  the acceptance of tenders to provide services currently provided by members of the
staff of the council,

j)  the adoption of an operational plan under section 405,

the adoption of a financial statement included in an annual financial report,

I)  adecision to classify or reclassify public land under Division 1 of Part 2 of Chapter 6,

m) the fixing of an amount or rate for the carrying out by the council of work on private

land,

(n)  the decision to carry out work on private land for an amount that is less than the
amount or rate fixed by the council for the carrying out of any such work,

(o) the review of a determination made by the council, and not by a delegate of the
council, of an application for approval or an application that may be reviewed under
section 82A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979,

(p) the power of the council to authorise the use of reasonable force for the purpose of
gaining entry to premises under section 194,

(gq) a decision under section 356 to contribute money or otherwise grant financial

assistance to persons, unless the financial assistance is part of a specified program in

council’s Operational Plan for the year,

) adecision under section 234 to grant leave of absence to the holder of a civic office,

s)  the making of an application, or the giving of a notice, to the Governor or Minister,

) this power of delegation,

u)  any function under this or any other Act that is expressly required to be exercised by

resolution of the council (including decisions to use Council’s Common Seal)

=
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Exercising of delegations are subject to the following limitations and conditions:

1.

That the Delegated Authority of the Committee to make a delegated decision may
only be exercised on consideration of a report from the Mayor or the proper
employee of the Council with those matters being included on the Business Paper of
the Committee as prepared and distributed in accordance with the requirements of
the Local Government Act 1993, and Regulations thereunder.

The Committee shall not make any decision under delegated authority where an
unbudgeted financial contribution from Council’s fund is sought or income is to be
forgone.

Any decision in respect of matters being considered in terms of the delegated
authority shall be in accordance with a decision by majority vote of all members of
the Committee in attendance at the Committee meeting. Any decision that does not
receive a majority vote of all members present shall be deferred to the next meeting
of Council for determination.

A decision made under delegated authority shall not take effect as a decision of the
Council until 12.00pm on the second working day following the date of the meeting
at which the Committee makes the decision.

If any three duly elected Councillors advise the General Manager or the Director
Corporate Services prior to the time specified in clause 4, that they seek the
rescission of any such decision, the decision shall not take effect and the decision will
be referred to the next Ordinary Meeting of the Coundil for consideration and
determination.

If a decision is rescinded in accordance with clause 5 the decision shall be treated as
a recommendation to the Council from the Committee.

Notwithstanding the provisions of clause 3, the Committee may, by Majority vote of
all members in attendance, refer for further consideration or report, any item/s or
matter on the Committee’s Business Paper, to any future Standing Committee or
Council meeting.
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DELEGATION TO THE DUBBO REGIONAL AIRPORTS COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL

PURSUANT TO SECTION 377 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1993

That, subject to compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1993, and
Regulations thereunder, any expressed policy of the Council, and subject to any direction
given by the Council, the Council pursuant to the provisions of Section 377 of the Local
Government Act 1993, and every other enabling legislation, delegates to the Dubbo Regional
Airports Committee of the Council to exercise, or perform on behalf of the Council, all of the
Council's powers, authorities, duties and functions in relation to such matters as the General
Manager, or his delegate, shall from time to time refer to that Committee for consideration.

This delegation excludes the following functions expressly reserved in Section 377, which

cannot be delegated:

a) the appointment of a general manager,

b) the making of arate,

a determination under section 549 as to the levying of arate,

the making of a charge,

the fixing of a fee,

the borrowing of money,

the voting of money for expenditure on its works, services or operations,

the compulsory acquisition, purchase, sale, exchange or surrender of any land or

other property (but not including the sale of items of plant or equipment),

(i)  the acceptance of tenders to provide services currently provided by members of the
staff of the council,

i) the adoption of an operational plan under section 405,

the adoption of a financial statement included in an annual financial report,

I)  adecision to classify or reclassify public land under Division 1 of Part 2 of Chapter 6,

m) the fixing of an amount or rate for the carrying out by the council of work on private

land,

(n)  the decision to carry out work on private land for an amount that is less than the
amount or rate fixed by the council for the carrying out of any such work,

(o) the review of a determination made by the council, and not by a delegate of the
council, of an application for approval or an application that may be reviewed under
section 82A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979,

(p) the power of the council to authorise the use of reasonable force for the purpose of
gaining entry to premises under section 194,

(g) a decision under section 356 to contribute money or otherwise grant financial

assistance to persons, unless the financial assistance is part of a specified program in

council’s Operational Plan for the year,

) adecision under section 234 to grant leave of absence to the holder of a civic office,

s)  the making of an application, or the giving of a notice, to the Governor or Minister,

) this power of delegation,

u) any function under this or any other Act that is expressly required to be exercised by

resolution of the council (including decisions to use Council’s Common Seal)
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Exercising of delegations are subject to the following limitations and conditions:

1. That the Delegated Authority of the Committee to make a delegated decision may
only be exercised on consideration of a report from the Mayor or the proper
employee of the Council with those matters being included on the Business Paper of
the Committee as prepared and distributed in accordance with the requirements of
the Local Government Act 1993, and Regulations thereunder.

2. The Committee shall not make any decision under delegated authority where an
unbudgeted financial contribution from Council’s fund is sought or income is to be
forgone.

3. Any decision in respect of matters being considered in terms of the delegated
authority shall be in accordance with a decision by majority vote of all members of
the Committee in attendance at the Committee meeting. Any decision that does not
receive a majority vote of all members present shall be deferred to the next meeting
of Council for determination.

4. A decision made under delegated authority shall not take effect as a decision of the
Council until 12.00pm on the second working day following the date of the meeting
at which the Committee makes the decision.

5. If any three duly elected Councillors advise the General Manager or the Director
Corporate Services prior to the time specified in clause 4, that they seek the
rescission of any such decision, the decision shall not take effect and the decision will
be referred to the next Ordinary Meeting of the Coundil for consideration and
determination.

6. If adecision is rescinded in accordance with clause 5 the decision shall be treated as
a recommendation to the Council from the Committee.

7. Notwithstanding the provisions of clause 3, the Committee may, by majority vote of
all members in attendance, refer for further consideration or report, any item/s or
matter on the Committee’s Business Paper, to any future Standing Committee or
Council meeting.
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n REPORT: Proposed Policy - Injured
| _ Companion Animals not in Council's

DUBBO REGIONAL Ca re/lmpound

COUNCIL .
AUTHOR: Manager Environmental Control
REPORT DATE: 19 February 2018
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/229

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Council’s Ranger Services Branch within the Planning and Environment Division provide after-
hours services to the community, with services restricted to those that are public safety
emergencies such as dog attacks and stock on roads. A significant gap has been identified in
relation to the response to injured animals after hours.

With no RSPCA or other community organisation in the area with the capacity to respond
and local veterinary practices unable to attend sites away from their practice due to Work,
Health and Safety concerns, the expectation consequently is for Council to take responsibility
for the animals and associated veterinary costs, until the animal has been claimed by its
owner.

There is no legislative requirement for Council to take on this responsibility and therefore
feedback from the community was sought as to whether it is supportive of the use of Council
resources. The proposed policy was presented to Council’s Planning, Development and
Environment Committee on 11 December 2017 and then placed on public exhibition from
22 December 2017 to 9 February 2018. The proposed policy is attached as Appendix 1.

Two (2) submissions were received in support of the proposed Policy and are addressed in
the report.

This report recommends that the Policy, ‘Injured Companion Animals not in Council’s
Care/Impound’ (Appendix 1) be adopted for a 12 month trial period.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: This report aims to meet community expectations to ensure injured
animals receive the required treatment prior to an owner being found.

Integrity: Filling this recognised gap in a service within our local government area shows that
Council is showing a duty of care to the community and reducing the potential pain and
suffering of our residents’ pets.

One Team: The proposed Policy extends this organisational value to our stakeholders
showing that we not only work together as an organisation but as a community to achieve
desired outcomes.
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FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Adding these services will increase Ranger overtime and veterinary costs incurred by Council.
It is estimated that the additional veterinary costs could be in the order of $15,000 to
$25,000 per annum above the current $38,000 veterinary costs for Shelter services. To cover
the costs for the remaining 2017/2018 period, the annual Companion Animals Welfare
Scheme would not be undertaken and that budget reallocated for this purpose.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

A new Council Policy is proposed, namely, Injured Companion Animals not in Council’s Care.

RECOMMENDATION
1. That the draft Policy, ‘Injured Companion Animals not in Council’s Care/Impound’

(Appendix 1) be adopted for a 12 month trial period.
2.  That the people who made submissions be advised of Council’s determination.

Debbie Archer
Manager Environmental Control
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BACKGROUND

The responsibility of injured animals that are not in Council’s control is not the responsibility
of Council, however there is some indication that Council in the past has accepted some of
this responsibility and the associated veterinary costs. Animal welfare is regulated by the
Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Act, 1979 (POCTA), with the RSPCA and the Police having the
relevant authority. POCTA protects the welfare of animals requiring that appropriate care be
given when required by any person that has injured the animal or is in possession of the
injured animal.

The Department of Local Government Circular No. 01/18 dated 13 March 2001 (Appendix 2)
and correspondence from the Division of Local Government dated 20 July 2012 (Appendix 3)
outline Council’s responsibilities for injured animals. Both documents indicate that Council is
not responsible for an animal or associated costs until Council has been notified and the
animal has been impounded.

A survey of 45 NSW councils in 2012 revealed that:

° 24.4% of councils require rangers to always attend injured companion animals after
hours. The majority of these were smaller regional councils where no other services are
available;

. 46.7% attend sometimes, usually when the RSPCA or the police are unable to attend, if
there is a public risk or at request by a councillor or the police;

. 64.4% never cover the cost of veterinary treatment prior to the animal coming under
their control;

. 73.7% responded that veterinary practices cover the cost of treatment, not council; and

° 93.3% of respondents collect stray, uninjured animals from veterinary practices if
dropped off by the public.

In the former Dubbo City Council area it has historically been up to the community member
that finds an injured animal to seek veterinary care and the cost of that care to be agreed on
by the veterinary practice with the person or owner, with the practice undertaking their own
processes to recover costs from the owner, where known. Council has until recently utilised
all four (4) Dubbo veterinary practices on a monthly roster basis to provide services to Council
with a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and agreed fee schedule providing discounted
rates for Council services.

REPORT
Community Consultation
The draft Policy was placed on public exhibition from 22 December 2017 to 9 February 2018.

Notification was given to each veterinary practice in the Council area encouraging feedback
from both employees and customers.
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As a result of the exhibition period, two (2) submissions were received from members of the
public in support of the Policy as follows:

1. Kathryn McAllister
“As an animal lover | support the adoption of this policy. | am pleased that Council
has acknowledged the gap in relation to injured companion animals and is seeking
a solution to this distressing issue for animal loving residents, particularly as the
RSPC has effectively withdrawn their services in the Dubbo community.
Whilst it appears that this may be a further administrative, budgetary and
resourcing matter for Council, | applaud this commitment to assisting injured or
stray companion animals in the community.”

2. Anna Russell
“I enthusiastically support this proposed policy.”

Relevant Legislation

Companion Animals Act, 1998

Section 6A of the Act details the general duties of councils under this Act as follows:
(1) A council is required:

(a) to promote awareness within its area of the requirements of this Act with
respect to the ownership of companion animals, and

(b) to take such steps as are appropriate to ensure that it is notified or
otherwise made aware of the existence of all dangerous, menacing and
restricted dogs (including dogs that might reasonably be considered to be
the subject of a declaration under Division 1 or 6 of Part 5) that are
ordinarily kept within its area.

Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Act, 1979 (POCTA)

Council’s responsibilities under POCTA are to provide care to any animal in Council’s control
which includes animals impounded, owned or in possession of Council. Council has no legal
responsibility to accept the responsibility of an injured or ill animal from another person that
is not complying with their responsibilities under POCTA.

° Section 5, (3)(c) of the Act requires that a person in charge of an animal shall not fail at
any time, where it is necessary for the animal to be provided with veterinary treatment,
whether or not over a period of time, to provide it with that treatment. For these
purposes a person in charge is defined as the owner or a person who has the animal in
the person’s possession or custody, or under the person’s care, control or supervision.
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° Section 14 states that the driver of a vehicle which strikes and injures an animal (other
than a bird) shall not fail:

(a) where, in consequence of the injury, pain has been inflicted upon the animal - to
take reasonable steps to alleviate the pain, and

(b) where that driver believes, or ought reasonably believe, that the animal is a
domestic animal - to inform, as soon as practicable, an officer or a person in
charge of the animal that the animal has been injured.

° Section 26AA details the powers of veterinary practitioners to destroy animals
(1) Where, in the opinion of a veterinary practitioner:

(a) an animal is so severely injured, so diseased or in such a physical condition
that it is cruel to keep it alive, and

(b) the animal is not about to be destroyed, or is about to be destroyed in a
manner that will inflict unnecessary pain upon the animal,

the veterinary practitioner may:

(c) take possession of the animal,

(d) remove the animal to such place as the veterinary practitioner thinks fit,
and

(e) destroy the animal, or cause it to be destroyed, in a manner that causes it to
die quickly and without unnecessary pain.

(2) The reasonable costs incurred by a veterinary practitioner in the exercise of the
powers conferred upon the veterinary practitioner by subsection (1) in respect of
an animal may be recovered from the owner of the animal as a debt in a court of
competent jurisdiction by the veterinary practitioner.

Vet Practices Regulation 2013

° Schedule 2 - Veterinary practitioners code of professional conduct states:
(2) Welfare of animals must be considered

A veterinary practitioner must at all times consider the welfare of animals when
practising veterinary science.

(3) No refusal of pain relief
(1) A veterinary practitioner must not refuse to provide relief of pain or
suffering to an animal that is in his or her presence.

(2) Inthis clause, relief, in relation to pain or suffering, means:

(a) first aid treatment, or
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(b) timely referral to another veterinary practitioner, or
(c) euthanasia,

as appropriate.
(16) Fees for veterinary services

A veterinary practitioner must, where it is practicable to do so and before
providing veterinary services in relation to an animal, inform the person
responsible for the care of the animal of:

(@) the likely extent and outcome of the veterinary services, and
(b)  the estimated cost of those services.

Further Information

The responsibility of injured animals has been continually discussed amongst Council and
veterinary practitioners for many years with numerous attempts by Council’s former
Companion Animals Advisory Committee to develop a clear understanding and agreement on
the process and responsibilities. The issue only appears to be in relation to Companion
Animals due to Council’s unrelated responsibilities to regulate and impound these under the
Companion Animals Act. Council rarely receives requests to take responsibility for injured
wildlife, stock or other pets (rabbits, birds, turtles, lizards, etc).

In addition to the abovementioned Circular and correspondence from the Office of Local
Government (OLG), clarification was sought from LGNSW Legal Officer, Bruce McCann who
conferred that the original advice provided by the OLG still stands and that it is not Council’s
responsibility until the animal is in our care.

With neither Council nor veterinary practitioners ultimately responsible for injured
companion animals, an acceptable resolution has never been reached. Due to the unresolved
issue, all four veterinary practices recently refused to enter into the most recent
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for services to Council with one practitioner ceasing
its provision of services to Council. In an attempt to form a final position on the matter, this
report presents the legal responsibilities and community expectations for Council’s
consideration and possible allocation of resources in accordance with the proposed Policy,
Injured Companion Animals not in Council’s Care.

Council is already experiencing an increase in these costs during business hours with the
public presenting stray injured animals to a veterinary practice and Council being contacted
immediately to impound the animal and authorise treatment. Where the owner is present or
able to be contacted due to a microchip, a veterinary practice should contact the owner for
authorisation and recover costs directly from the owner without Council’s involvement
however veterinary practitioners are reluctant to do so if the owner is not a current client.
Where Council is contacted, authorisation is only given for basic first aid and pain relief to
allow an opportunity for the owner to be found and authorise further treatment if required.
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Where injuries are severe and no owner can be located, euthanasia may be authorised. A

veterinary practitioner can choose to euthanize without any authorisation from Council if it is
their opinion that it would be cruel to keep the animal alive.

Input was requested from local veterinary practices so that their position could be adequately
detailed in this report. In order to gain this feedback it was agreed that their comments
would be kept confidential. Submissions and discussions with the practices in summary
detailed that injured animals are a risk to the public and are unpredictable and therefore
Council Rangers that have appropriate training should be attending and taking control of
these animals to negate any public safety issues. In addition, the concern is that the ‘Good
Samaritan’ member of the public that may attempt to assist an injured animal is responsible
for the costs of initial veterinary care which may result in animals not receiving any assistance
or veterinary care, resulting in further pain and suffering. It is the vets’ view that the
community expects Council to respond to these matters for the welfare of animals. One
submission estimates that incidents would not exceed once per week with an annual cost of
less than $25,000. It has also been suggested that should Council fail to address the issue the
long standing relationship and services provided to Council is likely to be discontinued

It is assumed that these costs account for initial first aid treatment, pain relief or euthanasia
only and veterinary call-out fees where required which would be less than $500 per animal.
Further basic treatment and pain relief would be authorised by Council once notified that the
animal was to be impounded. Attempts are made by Council to recover veterinary fees from
the owner but Ranger overtime/call-out costs are not recovered from the owner should the
animal be claimed.

A high portion of stray animals are not owned by responsible pet owners however a range of
circumstances can lead to responsible owners’ pets becoming unsecured also. Unfortunately,
only a small percentage of injured animals are claimed, with costs of veterinary care,
registration and impound fees discouraging owners from coming forward. Often those that
do claim their animal are extremely grateful that their pet received treatment. Should Council
take on the initial veterinary care costs, these release fees would be even higher for the
owner and therefore the likelihood of the animal being claimed could be further reduced
meaning that Council would bear the total cost of injured, stray animals. Current veterinary
costs are approximately $38,000 per year which includes desexing of adoption animals which
are fully recovered at the point of sale.

Additional concerns raised by veterinary practices include that it is becoming more difficult to
retain young veterinary practitioners in Dubbo with after-hours call-outs and high euthanasia
requirements becoming a disincentive for these practitioners to stay. The Work, Health and
Safety issues for young practitioners responding to call-outs alone, late at night, in isolated
areas with inadequate equipment is also of concern for the practitioners.

Rangers are equipped with the appropriate equipment to handle injured and aggressive
animals, whereas community members are not. Injured animals may be scared and
aggressive and therefore difficult to handle. After-hours rangers generally operate alone or
request police support for more urgent assistance. The alternate Dubbo or Wellington Ranger
can also assist when required however in the case of an injured animal the response time is
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likely to be too long to render the required assistance to reduce pain and suffering in a timely

manner. Although most veterinary practices provide an on-call service, this does not extend
to responding in the field.

On the assumption that these incidents only occur approximately once a week, the impact on
ranger call-outs would result in 2-4 hours additional overtime. Being that this is after hours,
there may be an impact on the rangers. Excessive call-outs can significantly impact a ranger’s
ability to effectively perform their duties and therefore additional resources may be required
for relief or time may be lost during normal hours if incidents are excessive.

Should Council agree to provide this additional service it is not proposed that Council take on
the responsibility for any sick or injured animal that is in the possession of an owner. In this
instance, the owner is to instruct the veterinary practitioner in regards to the level of care
they are willing to authorise. Should financial restrictions prevent the owner from authorising
the care, it is then a matter for the practitioner to negotiate the cost of treatment or to
provide pain relief or euthanasia in accordance with their responsibilities under their code of
professional conduct, and to recover the cost as a debt from the owner.

SUMMARY

With the absence of any other local organisation able to take on the responsibility of
responding to injured animals and to prevent unnecessary suffering of injured companion
animals, it will be necessary that Council allocate the required resources for ranger response
and veterinary costs should the proposed Policy be ultimately adopted. The proposed Policy
outlines the parameters of this arrangement.

In taking on this responsibility, the concern that currently exists between Council and local
vets would be reduced, veterinary services to Council could be retained, and the relationship
could be strengthened. As a result, an enhanced service would be provided by Council to the
Dubbo Regional Council area, and potentially, the community, giving residents peace of mind
that should their animal be injured, it has the best possible chance of receiving the care it
requires without delay.

Community consultation was completed with two (2) submissions received in support of the
proposed Policy. The draft policy is therefore recommended for adoption by Council.

Appendices:
10  Draft Policy - Injured Companion Animals not in Council's Care/Impound
2l Correspondence from DLG dated 20 July 2012
30  DLG Circular dated 13 March 2001 - Stray and Injured Animals
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POLICY

PURPOSE

To detail the circumstances where Council will respond to incidents of injured, stray companion
animals and provide veterinary treatment at Council’s cost to prevent unnecessary pain and
suffering to the animal.

BACKGROUND AND RELATED LEGISLATION

Council is required under the Companion Animals Act, 1998 (CAA) to raise awareness of the
requirements of the Act and to be aware of the existence of all dangerous, menacing and restricted
dogs within the Council area. Council does not have any legal responsibility for animals that are not
yet under Council’s care and control.

The responsibility of injured animals that are not in Council’s control is not the responsibility of
Council and this position is supported by the Office of Local Government. Animal welfare is
regulated by the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Act, 1979 (POCTA), with the RSPCA and police
having the relevant authority. POCTA protects the welfare of animals requiring that appropriate
care be given when required by any person that has injured the animal or is in possession of the

animal.

A significant gap has been identified in relation to the response to injured companion animals, after
hours in particular. With no RSPCA or other community organisation in the area with the capacity to
respond, and local vets unable to attend, the expectation is that Council would take on this
responsibility, including the associated veterinary costs, until an owner has claimed the animal.
Costs may be recovered from the owner if the animal is claimed.

Related legislation:

. Companion Animals Act, 1998 — Section 6A
. Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Act, 1979 — Sections 5, 14 and 26AA
. Vet Practices Regulation — Schedule 2, Veterinary Practitioner’s Code of Professional Conduct

SCOPE

Stray companion animals may become injured by incidents such as vehicle strikes or dog attacks.
POCTA requires the driver or a person in charge of an animal to seek appropriate veterinary care
when required. Due to the likelihood that this person would be responsible for the associated costs,

animals may suffer unnecessarily as it is possible no one may take responsibility for the animal.
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This Policy aims to address this gap by allowing Council resources to be utilised for ranger
attendance at these incidents. In addition, Council will cover the costs of basic treatment, pain relief
or euthanasia until the owner can be contacted, the animal claimed and fees recovered.

It is not the intent of this Policy for Council to financially assist pet owners that cannot pay for
urgent vet care, but instead to ensure that an animal is given appropriate care to relieve pain and
suffering until the owner can be contacted and the animal claimed. Council will not assume the
responsibility and cost for companion animals whose owner is present, easily identified, or where

the animal is in the possession of a person responsible for its care.

Council’s responsibilities and procedures for the care of sick and injured animals under its control
are not included in this Policy.

PoLICY

1.  Where notified, Council rangers will respond to incidents of sick or injured stray animals and
authorise basic first aid, pain relief or euthanasia in accordance with a vet's recommendations

and impound the animal.

2. Costly procedures such as x-rays and surgery will not be authorised by Council and therefore
euthanasia may be required if a vet considers it cruel to keep the animal alive without further

treatment.

3. Council response times include during business hours and after hours by the ranger on-call
where available.

4. Council will not respond or accept veterinary costs where the animal is in the possession of its
owner or a person representing the owner or responsible for the animal.

5. Where a stray, sick or injured animal is presented to a vet and the person in possession
cannot cover the costs of treatment, and is not the owner or responsible for the animal,
Council will accept responsibility for the cost of basic first aid, pain relief or euthanasia to a

maximum of $350, and impound the animal.

6.  Council will not accept the surrender of sick or injured animals by their owners. Owners must
comply with their responsibilities under POCTA and seek veterinary care. Failure to comply
with their responsibilities, such as abandoning an animal, will result in Council reporting the
matter to the RSPCA.

7. Veterinary practices are encouraged to make attempts to contact the owner of an animal (eg
from a microchip) and obtain authorisation and payment for treatment without involvement
from Council. Where an owner cannot be contacted, Council must be advised in accordance
with the requirements of the CAA.
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8.  Once Council accepts responsibility for a companion animal, the animal is considered to be

impounded and must not be released to the owner without Council authorisation and

impound fees being paid.

RESPONSIBILITIES

Council’'s Ranger and Impounding Services are responsible for enforcing and enacting this Policy.

Customers may contact Council to report an incident by calling 6801 4000.

Animals other than companion animals are not covered under this Policy. Organisations such as
RSPCA, WIRES, NPWS or LLS may be able to assist.

DEFINITIONS

To assist in interpretation, the following definitions apply:

Term Definition

RSPCA Royal Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals

POCTA Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Act, 1979

CAA Companion Animals Act, 1998

Owner Each of the following persons is the owner of a companion animal:
(a) the owner of the animal (in the sense of being the owner of the animal as
personal property),
(b) the person by whom the animal is ordinarily kept,
(c) the registered owner of the animal.

WIRES | NSW Wildlife Infﬁation, Rescue and Education Service

NPWS National Parks and Wildlife Service

LLS Local Land Services
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Wik
NSW

Premier & Cabinet

covernvent | Division of Local Government

Our Reference:
5 O'Keefe Averue NOWRA NSW 2541 Gl i b AR
Locked Bag 3015 NOWRA NSW 2541 Comac‘c; Patricia Machin
Phone 02 4428 4198

Mr Mark Riley
General Manager
Dukbo City Council
PO Box 81

DUBBO NSW 2830

Dear Mr Riley

I am writing in reply to an email of 15 June 2012 from Ms Debbie Archer, Manager
Environmental Control, Dubbo City Council, about the responsibility for the cost
and welfare of injured or stray animals.

The Division of Local Government, Department of Premier and Cabinet
administers the policy and legal framework within which NSW councils manage
their companion animals responsibilities. Although it is not the Division's role to
provide legal advice to councils or members of the public, or to comment on
specific circumstances, this general information is provided for your assistance.

The Companion Animals Act 1998 (the Act) requires an authorised officer who
seizes an animal — or a person who finds a lost or injured animal — to deliver the
animal to its owner, a council pound or an approved premises. Approved premises
include any approved animal welfare organisation or a veterinary practice operated
by an approved person.

When a seized or lost animal is delivered to an approved premises or a council
pound, the person in charge must do their best to find out who the owner of the
animal is and return the animal to that person. To help with this, an approved
person may access information on the NSW Companion Animals Register.

If an animal’s owner cannot be located, the operator of an approved premises can
contact the local council of the area at any time within a period of 72 hours from
accepting the animal. If an animal is not claimed within 72 hours, the operator of
the approved premises must arrange for the animal to be taken to a council pound.

Veterinary practices or approved persons are not authorised under the Act fo
otherwise re-home companion animals. Further information about approved
premises is in the Guideline for approved persons to access the NSW Companion
Animals Register, which can be found on the Division of Local Govemnment

website at www.dlg.nsw.gov.au.

T024428 4100 FO024428 4180 TTY 02 4428 4209 HWINI}I”""H"' ”ﬂl M”"w
E do@dignsw.govau W wwwdlg nswgovau ABN 93 667 863 195 L
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Councils must accept and facilitate delivery of an animal to its owner ar a council
pound. However, if an animal is injured and the council's pound facility is not
suitable to house it, the council may arrange for the animal to be cared for by an
approved premises, an animal welfare organisation or other vet as appropriate.
This is a matter for individual councils to decide. Councils are not responsible for
veterinary costs before an animal is delivered to a pound, unless these costs are
authorised by the council.

If treatment has not been authorised by the animal's owner or a council, an
approved premises may wish to establish independent procedures to recover
costs from an animal's owner for any treatment administered. This may include
euthanasia costs if an animal cannot be saved or a veterinary practitioner believes
it is inhumane to keep the animal alive.

If the Council remains in any doubt, it may wish to seek and be guided by
independent legal advice on any matters of concern.

| hope this information is of assistance.

Yours sincerely

it Al
Y

FQ_; Ro'és!'oodw
’ Chief Executive, Local Government
A Division of the Department of Premier and Cabinet

! . .
: 24 JuL zmzf 2 f
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Date: 13/3/01

D;partment of Log:al Government - .
Clrcular to COHHCI]S Contact: Policy & Research
(02) 9793 0822

COMPANION ANIMALS - STRAY & INJURED ANIMALS
FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

Councils, vets and members of the general public have been contacting the
Department seeking information about what they should do with stray and injured
animals in relation to the Companion Animals Act 1998.

A Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) document has been prepared on this issue and
is attached. Councils may use this information to inform staff dealing with companion
animals enquiries or to distribute to local vets or general public seeking information
on this issue. A copy of the FAQ is also located on the companion animals web page
at www.dlg.nsw.gov.au/compan.htm.

Councils are reminded that the following FAQ documents are also available on the
companion animals web page:

e General Information
e Pet Shops & Breeders
¢ Working Dogs

Garry Payne
Director General

New South Wales Department of Local Government
66-72 Rickard Road, Bankstown NSW 2200  Locked Bag 1500, Bankstown NSW 2200
Tel: (02) 97930793 Fax: (02) 9793 0799 TTY: (02) $707 2508
Email: dig@dlg.nsw.gov.au  Web: htip:/fwww.dig.nsw,gov.au
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Department of Local Government

[T W W W W W

Companion Animals Act

- Stray & Injured Animals -

Frequently Asked
Questions

&
L 7

First Edition February 2001

FAQ - Stray & Injured Animals First Edition Feb 2001 page 1
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CONTENTS

1. When is a dog a “stray"?

2. When is a cat a “stray”?

3. What are some examples of when a dog or a cat is not a “stray”"?

4. What do | do with a stray or “seized” animal?

5. What do | do with an injured animal?

6. Do councils have to collect stray dogs and cats?

7. Do councils have to have an after hours service for stray cats and dogs?
FAQ - Stray & Injured Animals First Edition Feb 2001 page 2
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1. When is a dog a “stray”?

Under the Companion Animals Act 1998 any dog which is in a place (other than
where it is ordinarily kept) unaccompanied by a responsible person is a “stray”.

Any person (including a council officer) may seize a stray dog in the following

circumstances as provided under the Act:

» If a dog is found in a public place and is not under the effective control of some
competent person (section 13)

» If a dog is in a public place prohibited under the Act (eg children’s play area or
food preparation/consumption area) (section 14)

» If seizing the dog is reasonable and necessary for the protection of any person or
animal or to prevent damage to property (section 22).

» |f the dog has attacked a person or animal and the dog is on property owned or
occupied by the person seizing the dog. (section 18)

In addition, council officers and police have powers to seize a dog which has

attacked from the owner's property if the owner is not present and the dog cannot be

adequately secured on the property (section 18).

2. When is a cat a “stray”
Unlike dogs, cats are allowed to roam public places and onto private property

Under the Companion Animals Act 1998 a cat may only be seized in the following

circumstances:

» If a cat is in a public place prohibited under the Act (eg food
preparation/consumption area or wildiife protection area) (section 30)

» If seizing the cat is reasonable and necessary for the protection of any person or
animal (section 32).

3. What are some examples of when a dog or a cat is a “stray”?

» A dog which is walking along the footpath, not causing any threat to anyone, may
be seized as a “stray” under section 13; a cat doing the same thing may not be
seized as there is no offence under the Companion Animals Act.

» A dog which comes onto your own property and digs up the garden (damaging

property) may be seized under section 22; a cat doing the same thing may not be

seized as there is no offence under the Companion Animals Act (however a

nuisance order could be issued).

A dog which is on the road in the way of traffic may be seized under section 22

(as it may cause an accident resulting in either injury to persons or fo itself); a cat

doing the same thing may be seized under section 32 (as it may cause an

accident resulting in either injury to persons or to itself).

Y

FAQ - Stray & Injured Animals First Edition Feb 2001 page 3
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4, What do | do with a stray or “seized” animal?

A person who seizes a dog or cat under the Companion Animals Act must cause it to
be delivered as soon as possible to its owner (if the owner can be identified) or to the
council pound or other authorised council officer (eg ranger) (section 62). A person
who does not comply with this is guilty of an offence and may be liable for a penaity
of up to $2200.

Strictly speaking, delivering an uninjured animal seized under the Companion
Animals Act to a vet is an offence. However, it is acknowledged that in practice
many people deliver animals to their local vet surgery because it is not practicable
for them to deliver the animal to a pound (eg they can walk to the vet and may not
have a car to transport the animal to the pound). In this circumstance, a vet may
choose not to accept the animal (which is, strictly speaking, complying with the
Companion Animals Act) and advise the person to call the council ranger or take it to
the council pound. If the vet does choose to accept the animal, they do so in the
same context as “any person” under the Act, and must return the animal to its owner
or contact the council as soon as possible. Vets should not undertake to hold the
animal and re-house it themselves — there is no legal basis for the vet to give the
animal to a new owner and if the original owner should come forward at some future
time a vet may find themselves subject to civil legal action.

5. What do | do with an injured animal?

Any animal which is injured is not seized under the Companion Animals Act but
under the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Act 1979 (POCTA).

POCTA provides that where a cat or dog has been injured in a vehicle accident, the
driver of the vehicle is responsible for ensuring that it receives appropriate treatment
to alleviate pain. The driver must also, as soon as practicable, inform the owner of
the animal, or an officer of the RSPCA, AWL or a police officer (section 14).

In any circumstance where an animal is injured (for example, as the result of an
attack by another animal), if a person seizes or takes charge of the animal, that
person is responsible for ensuring that the animal receives any necessary veterinary
treatment (section 5(3)). Where an animal is so severely injured that a vet takes
possession of the animal to euthanase it, the vet may recover from the owner of the
animal the reasonable costs incurred in euthanasing the animal (section 26A).

If the owner for an injured animal cannot be located, under the Companion Animals
Act, the council should be notified. Once the animal's condition is stabilised and it no
longer requires veterinary supervision, the animal should be transferred to the
council pound. Council is not liable for any costs of treatment up to this point in time
(unless of course it was council who delivered the injured animal to the vet in the first
place). Nor is council under any obligation to inform the vet of the owner’s details if
they succeed in locating the owner (in fact this could be a breach of privacy
legislation). As a courtesy council could inform the owner that the animal was
treated by a particular vet and there are outstanding costs — but there's no obligation

FAQ - Stray & injured Animals First Edition Feb 2001 page 4
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to do so; and if the owner chooses to ignore this information there’s nothing more a
council can do.

6. Do councils have to collect stray dogs and cats?

The Companion Animals Act requires a council to accept into the pound any cat or
dog which is delivered to the pound or other authorised person of the council (such
as a ranger). However, the Act does not require a council to collect a "stray” animal
from any public or private place. Some councils do provide this as an additional
service to their community, others do not. It is a discretionary matter for the
particular council to decide. Whether an individual council provides a “pick up”
service for animals, and if so, in what circumstances, should be indicated in a
formally adopted council management plan (this may be a specific animal
management plan or be part of an environmental management plan or council's
general management plan). Councils should ensure that local vets, animal welfare
organisations and other relevant groups are informed of what is in their plan.

7. Do councils have to have an after hours service for stray cats and dogs?

The Companion Animals Act does not require a council to have an “after hours”
service for accepting cats and dogs. Again, this is a discretionary matter for council
to determine. However, the majority of local councils do have some form of general
“after hours” contact for their rangers. What “after hours” arrangements council has,
and when and how they operate, again should be included in a council management
plan. Councils should ensure that local vets, animal welfare organisations and other
relevant groups are informed of what is in their plan.

FAQ - Stray & Injured Animals First Edition Feb 2001 page 5
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” REPORT: Update on enquiry to purchase
| _ Council owned land 10L Mogriguy Road

ousso reciona. Y ABribusiness enterprise

COUNCIL
AUTHOR: Manager Property Assets
REPORT DATE: 14 February 2018
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/255

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

10L Mogriguy Road is situated on the northern outskirts of Brocklehurst within Industrial
Candidate Area 3. The subject land is zoned IN3 Heavy Industrial. Council acquired the land in
April 2015 so as to be able to offer suitable land to industrial businesses who are seeking to
establish or expand in Dubbo.

The subject land has been leased to an adjoining owner for stock grazing purposes until such
time the property is developed for a higher and better use.

Council staff have been liaising with an agribusiness that is investigating the establishment of
a mustard manufacturing plant in Dubbo and that particular business has advised Council the
subject land seems suitable for such manufacturing plant. A report was adopted by Council
to seek expressions of interest in order to enable the agribusiness to make a public offer to
purchase.

The agribusiness subsequently advised that they were pursuing other opportunities in other
local government areas and were no longer interested in acquiring 10L Mogriguy Road.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: Council acquired the subject property to provide opportunities for an
industrial operation to establish in Dubbo where suitable land may be limited.

Integrity: Any sale of the subject property would be based on a valuation by an independent
valuer.

One Team: The introduction of the agribusiness to Dubbo was due to efforts by Council’s
economic development team.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications arising from this report.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.
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RECOMMENDATION

That Council maintain ownership of Lot 451 DP 599741, 10L Mogriguy Road, to provide
opportunity for future sale to appropriate industrial businesses seeking to expand or

establish themselves in Dubbo.

Simon Tratt
Manager Property Assets
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BACKGROUND

Lot 451 DP 599741 is vacant land having an area of 17.93 ha and is currently used for general
agriculture. The land was zoned IN3 Heavy Industrial as part of the Dubbo LEP 2011 and forms
part of Industrial Candidate Area 3. Lot 451 is located on the northern boundary of
Brocklehurst and is currently unserviced.

Figure 1. Lot 451 DP 599741 (shown hatched)

The acquisition by Council of Lot 451 in April 2015 can best be viewed as an ‘opportunity
purchase’ which provides Council with flexibility to be able to offer heavy industrial land to
either an existing business looking to expand or a new business looking to establish itself in
Dubbo.

Upon acquiring Lot 451, Council subsequently leased the land to adjoining owners, Mr and
Mrs Goodman, for them to use the land for agricultural purposes until such time as a
redevelopment opportunity arises.

REPORT

Mr David Ward of ‘Solutions Agronomy’ made enquiry in March 2017 regarding the possible
acquisition of the subject land in order to establish a mustard processing plant. After a
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number of months of correspondence Mr Ward advised Council’s Property Asset Manager in
late 2017 that he is no longer interested in acquiring this land.

SUMMARY
The adoption of this report by Council will reinforce and clarify the intent of Council to see

the subject land developed for industrial purposes, which supports the strategic decisions of
Council to zone the land to IN3 Heavy Industrial with the adoption of the Dubbo LEP 2011.
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n REPORT: Dubbo Regional Council review -
| _ Safety Camera Network in Dubbo and

DUBBO REGIONAL Wellington

COUNCIL . .
AUTHOR: Manager Social Services
REPORT DATE: 16 February 2018
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/270

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A resolution at the Ordinary Council meeting held on 23 October 2017 resolved:

“That the General Manager be requested to engage with relevant stakeholders with a view to
developing a prioritised plan, including costing, for the expansion and upgrade of the Dubbo
and Wellington security camera network for consideration in the 2018/2019 budget.”

Dubbo Regional Council staff along with NSW Police and Simtec (a local security
infrastructure business) have undertaken an extensive review of the safety camera systems
in both Dubbo and Wellington. This review formed the basis of a grant application on 14
November 2017 for $767,977 to the Australian Government-Safer Communities Fund, Round
2. There has been no response to this grant application to date.

The review identified an expansion of the existing systems and centralising for both systems
so that the Dubbo Police Station can access footage from both Dubbo and Wellington in real
time on a 24 hour basis. The review also identified 8 new locations in Dubbo and 6 new
locations in Wellington. It also identified the possibility of utilising contemporary technology
to replace existing cameras. This will mean upgrading some existing pan, tilt and zoom
cameras to four (4) fixed cameras in individual locations. These upgrades generally ensures
appropriate coverage of the areas under surveillance.

Provision for upgraded infrastructure in Dubbo and Wellington and communication links
between Dubbo and Wellington has also been identified.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: The provision and maintenance of a Safety Camera System in both Dubbo
and Wellington provides residents and visitors to both communities assurance from both
threat to safety and perceived threat to safety.

Integrity: The Safety Camera Systems in Dubbo and Wellington are professionally utilised by
both NSW Police and Dubbo Regional Council in the spirit of appropriate law enforcement
processes.

One Team: The Safety Camera Systems in Dubbo and Wellington are secure and well
maintained by Dubbo Regional Council. This ensures that the system provides all users with
seamless access.
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FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications would be the requirement to budget for $15,000 per year for cyclic
maintenance of the cameras in the 2018/2019 budget and ongoing.

If successful in the Grant Funding, tenders would be called as the overall cost would be
between $500,000 to $800,000.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the information contained within the report of the Manager Social Services
dated 16 February 2018 be noted.

2. That further analysis be undertaken with NSW Police, Simtec and Dubbo Regional
Council staff to determine priorities in relation to the expansion or upgrade of both
the Dubbo and Wellington safety camera systems.

3. That an annual budget allocation of $15,000 be made for cyclic maintenance and
cleaning of the cameras in Dubbo and Wellington.

John Watts
Manager Social Services
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REPORT

Dubbo has had a safety camera system operating since July 2002 and Wellington since June
2012. There are currently 29 cameras in Dubbo and 42 cameras in Wellington. Evidence
throughout the years in both communities has indicated a stronger feeling of well-being and
a greater perception of safety by residents and visitors.

Dubbo Regional Council staff along with NSW Police and Simtec (a local security
infrastructure business) have undertaken an extensive review of the safety camera systems in
both Dubbo and Wellington. This review formed the basis of a grant application for $767,977
to the Australian Government-Safer Communities Fund, Round 2. There has been no
response in relation to this grant application to date.

The review identified an expansion of the existing systems and centralising for both systems
so that the Dubbo Police Station can access footage from both Dubbo and Wellington in real
time on a 24 hour basis. The review also identified 8 new locations in Dubbo and 6 new
locations in Wellington. It also identified the possibility of utilising contemporary technology
to replace existing cameras. This will mean upgrading some existing pan, tilt and zoom
cameras to four (4) fixed cameras in individual locations. These upgrades generally ensures
appropriate coverage of the areas under surveillance.

Provision for upgraded infrastructure in Dubbo and Wellington and communication links
between Dubbo and Wellington has also been identified.

Estimated costs for an expanded and upgraded network would be in the vicinity of $500,000 -
$800,000 so if Council were to be successful in the grant application tenders would be sought.

Not identified in the review is the ongoing maintenance of an expanded new uniform system.
Given that the current cost of replacing a camera and related infrastructure is in the vicinity
of $10,000 and the life expectancy of a camera is eight (8) years this is a consideration that
needs to be factored into future budgets. Future budgets also need to allow for ongoing six
(6) monthly cyclic maintenance and cleaning of each camera in Dubbo and Wellington. This
will be in the vicinity of $15,000 per annum.

Another issue not identified is initial and ongoing training in a new system. Given the
transient nature of the NSW Police Force and the fact that no one person is responsible for
the provision of footage to victims this will need to be examined dependent on the
configuration of the expansion or upgrade and timeline of same.
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” REPORT: Appointment of Dubbo State
| _ Emergency Service Unit Local Controller
DUBBO REGIONAL AUTHOR: Director Infrastructure and Operations

COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 16 February 2018
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/275

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Commissioner of the State Emergency Service periodically re-appoints the Unit Local
Controller. Council is required to advise of its concurrence to the Commissioner of this
appointment.

It is proposed that Mr Stephen Evans be recommended for appointment to the position of
Local Controller of the Dubbo SES for a period of two (2) years. Mr Evans has replaced
Ms Fiona Douglas who resigned late last year.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: Council is responsible for ensuring that the community has a capable and
responsive State Emergency Service Local Unit.

Integrity: Council must concur with the appointment of the Local Unit Controller with
reference to the recommendation of the Commissioner for such appointment.

One Team: Council financially supports the Local SES Unit through the provision of a
headquarters from which the unit operates.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications arising from this report.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION
That pursuant to Section 17 of the State Emergency Service Act 1989, Council endorse the

appointment of Mr Stephen Evans to the position of Local Controller, Dubbo SES Unit for
the ensuing two (2) years.

Chris Devitt
Director Infrastructure and Operations
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REPORT

The Local Controller position of Dubbo City Local State Emergency Service Unit is an
appointment made by the Commissioner upon the recommendation of the Council and the
SES Macquarie Region Controller.

Ms Fiona Douglas has held the position of Unit Local Controller until her resignation in late
2017. The replacement for this position is proposed to be Mr Stephen Evans. Mr Evans comes
highly recommended with the requisite management skills to fulfil this position. The
appointment of Mr Evans to the position of Dubbo SES Unit Local Controller is recommended
for Council’s endorsement.

Appendices:
10  State Emergency Service - Local Controller Recommendation
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RECOMMENDATION

ITEM NO: CCL18/28

19 December, 2017

General Manager

Dubbo Regional Council

PO Box 81
Dubbo NSW 2830

Dear Sir,

- SES

Dubbo City

21 DEC 2017

LOCAL CONTROLLER RECOMMENDATION — DUBBO CITY STATE EMERGENCY

SERVICE

As you would be aware, Ms Fiona Douglas recently resigned from the position of

Local Controller of the Dubbo City SES Unit.

The position of Local Controller was recently advertised with Mr Stephen Evans
being recommended by the selection panel. | have reviewed Mr Evans application
and have appointed him to the position of Acting Local Controller and recommend

that he be formally appointed to the position.

In accordance with the requirements of the SES Act, the formal appointment of
Controllers is made by the NSW SES Commissioner upon the recommendation of

both the Region Controller and Local Council.

As the position of Controller is a key appointment and has a major bearing on the
capacity of the local SES to effectively and efficiently respond during emergencies, |
invite Council’s input into the appointment process and seek their recommendation
for formal appointment. Council’s response would be appreciated to enable the

finalisation of this matter.

Wik
NSW

GOVERNMENT

DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

MACQUARIE REGION HEADQUARTERS
160 Bultje Street, Dubbo NSw 2830

P (02) 6841 3160
F (02) 68413170

E mgradmin@one.ses.nsw.gov.au
WWW.$e5.NSW.gov.au
ABN: 88 712 649 015
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RECOMMENDATION

NSW

Should you require any clarification on the appointment process, please do not
hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

bl

David Monk
Region Controller

WWW.5e5.n5w.gov.au
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n REPORT: Neighbourhood Shopping Strip
| _ Redevelopment Concepts
DUBBO REGIONAL AUTHOR: Director Infrastructure and Operations

COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 19 February 2018
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D18/276

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In response to Council’'s request that neighbourhood shopping centre beautification
proposals be developed at the centres in Boundary Road, Tamworth Street, Victoria Street
and Myall Street, Dubbo, steps have been taken to engage professional advice in the
preparation of Design Concept Plans that would inform a budget being developed to
undertake this project. The landscape architectural firm Moir Landscape Architecture has
been engaged to implement a three phase brief incorporating site review, community
consultation and Design Concept Plan preparation being developed for each site.

The brief will focus on the higher priority areas as initially determined by the site review and
in consultation with Council. It is envisaged that the preparation of design concepts will take
10 weeks.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

Customer Focused: Council seeks to consult with and respond to the needs of the community
when replacing infrastructure due for renewal, or when accelerating the renewal and
upgrading of infrastructure, in order to accommodate strategic outcomes of functionality
and amenity of the road network.

Integrity: Council endeavours to best meet the needs and desires of the community within
the general principles of providing value for money for the whole of the community, and to
act with impartiality and fairness when allocating resources and delivering outcomes.

One Team: Council employs its range of resources including human, financial and material
when developing proposals and delivering them to the community. Through appropriate
consultation and utilisation of all resources at Council’s disposal it strives to attain the
optimal outcome as seen by the community.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The engagement of an external consultant to develop concepts for redevelopment of the
streetscape environment of neighbourhood shopping centres as nominated will initially cost
$40,000. In order for such funding to proceed within the current financial year will
necessitate a reallocation of unspent Urban Road Preconstruction estimate, plus a
reallocation of funds from the CBD Streetscape Refurbishment estimate of $39,902.
Preparation of detailed engineering design plans for each site will be undertaken in-house at
an additional cost, the estimate of which is subject to the scope of works resulting from each
concept plan. An allowance of $20,000 per site is to be provided for in the draft 2018-2019
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budget estimates. On top of these costs an estimate for the actual construction will be
determined once the construction plans are finalised.

Any physical improvement works at the neighbourhood shopping centres are currently
unbudgeted and once a budget estimate has been prepared, such proposed expenditure will
be presented for Council’s consideration to fund such works.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION
That the current progress of developing neighbourhood shopping centre beautification

proposals in Boundary Road, Tamworth Street, Victoria Street and Myall Street, Dubbo be
noted.

Chris Devitt
Director Infrastructure and Operations
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BACKGROUND

At the Ordinary Council Meeting on 23 October 2017, Council considered a Notice of Motion
regarding the beautification of neighbourhood shopping centres. It was resolved:

“That the General Manager be requested to report to the February 2018 Ordinary meeting of
Council detailing a plan, including costing to potentially beautify the neighbourhood shopping
strip clusters including Boundary Road, Tamworth Street, Victoria Street, Myall Street and
other similar areas and such a plan recognise the need to not reduce available car parking in
these areas.”

REPORT

The neighbourhood shopping centres in suburban Dubbo have been constructed at different
times over the course of the City’s development, and therefore their standard of construction
and design reflect the accepted standard of the time. The age and condition of the footpath
infrastructure at these centres also differ. All streets are subject to Council’s current
maintenance service level standards and intervention standards for repair and/or renewal
and therefore keep the footpath functional and safe. However, notwithstanding the current
maintenance Policy, the general streetscape aesthetics remain as they were when originally
constructed.

In response to requests from some of the business proprietors in these centres, Council has,
over the last three years, implemented a refurbishment program with a limited budget of
$10,000 per year per site with a view to installing street furniture such as seating, planter
boxes and waste bin enclosures. Council has also, through the purchase of a high pressure
concrete cleaning machine, implemented a footpath cleaning program at these centres
funded within the refurbishment budget. The centres treated to date include Boundary Road,
Tamworth Street and the Victoria Street centre is ongoing to co-ordinate with current shop
refurbishment which has been ongoing for a number of years. Whilst the cost impact of this
program has been modest and funded within existing estimates, it has enabled Council to
show good faith with the local shopping centres that a collaborative approach to street scape
improvements can produce positive results.

Some of the neighbourhood shopping centres have been developed to include areas of
publicly accessible streetscape, which is in both private and public ownership such as at the
Tamworth Street, Victoria Street and Myall Street centres. In these locations a collaborative
approach may be necessary with affected owners in order to develop and implement the
design concepts which achieve mutually agreed objectives particularly in regard to cost
sharing where privately owned areas are part of the beautification proposal.

The neighbourhood shopping centre beautification proposals will address the aesthetic and
functional nature of the streetscape in order to maintain a contemporary standard of amenity
at these sites, and provide a complementary benefit to any shop redevelopment or
refurbishment that may occur in the years ahead.
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To initiate the process of review of what might be possible in terms of beautifying the
identified neighbourhood shopping centres, Council has engaged the assistance of a
landscape architectural firm to prepare concepts for an upgrading plan at each site. The
Landscape Architect has previously worked with Council on various landscape redevelopment

projects in the transport and recreation landscape of the City with positive outcomes. The
brief has the following objectives:

° To improve the amenity and liveability of the neighbourhood/commercial centres

° To undertake community consultation and address community needs

. To support local commerce, businesses and employment

° To protect and enhance the local character and history of each centre

° To bring the community together, encourage social interaction and foster civic pride.

The methodology of the brief is a three phase scope of works:

1. Survey and Site Analysis — including a review of existing background information,
studies, history of customer requests, design guidelines and existing planning
instruments; identification of opportunities and constraints; submit daft of findings to
Council staff for review.

2. Concept Design Development — including preparation of a furniture, planting and
materials palette; preparation of colour concept plans; presentation of concept plans
and visualisations to Council; Obtain Council approval to further define the concept
package.

3. Community Consultation and Final Concept Plan — Implement a community
consultation program and obtain feedback to the draft Concept Plan; refine further
from feedback received; submit a final concept design package including
recommendations for the implementation of the package.

A budget estimate is to be prepared for each site for the consideration of Council to fund the
proposed works going forward in the 2019/2020 Capital Works Prioritisation framework with
a view to inclusion in the draft estimates for that year.

SUMMARY

Council has engaged a landscape architectural consultant to undertake a review of the
Neighbourhood Shopping Centres located at Boundary Road, Tamworth Street, Victoria
Street and Myall Street. The consultant will also work on the development of landscaping
concepts for the Church Street redevelopment project under this brief. The brief will produce
design concepts, after having undertaken a site analysis and community consultation, to
determine the critically important elements of the design that the community would like to
see incorporated within the beautification.
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